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Applicant Name: Symetra Life Insurance Company NAIC No. 68608 
FEIN: 91-0742147 

Item 7 -Holding Company Form .. 8" Registration Statement 

The following are included as Item 7 of the Application. 

Exhibit 7-A . 2012 Annual Form B Insurance Holding Company System Registration Statement as of December 
3 I, 2012 filed with the Washington State Office of the Insurance Commissioner by Symetra Life 
Insurance Company on behalf of itself and Symetra National Life Insurance Company 

Exhibit 7-B Amendment No. I to 2012 Annual Form B Insurance Holding Company System Registration 
Statement as of November 13, 2013 _filed with the Washington State Office of the Insurance 
Commissioner by Symetra Life Insurance Company on behalf of itself and Symetra National Life 
Insurance Company 
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Statutory Membership 



Applicant Name: Symetra Life Insurance Company NAIC No. 68608 
FErN: 91-0742147 

Item 8- Statutory Memberships 

As applicant is already licensed to write life insurance business in Iowa, it is a member of the Iowa Life and Health 
Insurance Guaranty Association. 



SEC Filings or Consolidated GAAP 
Financial Statement 



Applicant Name: Symetra Life Insurance Company NAIC No. 68608 
FEIN: 91-0742147 

Item 9- SEC Filings or Consolidated GAAP Financial Statement 

Symetra Life Insurance Company is a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Symetra Financial Corporation ("Symetra 
Financial"), a publicly traded holding company (NYSE: SY A). Symetra Financial fil~d a registration statement on 
Form S-1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on January 15, 2010 in connection with a public 
offering. The registration statement is available electronically from the SEC at: 
http://www.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/ 1403385/000095012310003041 /v53541 a6sv I za.htm. 

All supplements and amendments thereto, as well as each ofSymetra Financial's filings on Form 8-K, 10-K and 10-
Q are also available electronically from the SEC at: 
http://www.sec.gov/cgi-binlbrowse edgar?CIK=sya&owner-exclude&action=getcompany. 
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Debt to Equity Ratio Statement 



UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COl\'lMISSION 

Washington, D.C. 20549 

Form 10-Q 
(Mark One) 

00 QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE 
ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2013 

OR 

0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR lS(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE 
ACT OF 1934 

Commission me number: 001-33808 

SYMETRA FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

Delaware 
(Stat~ or otber jurisdiction of 

incorpontioo or Ofluizatioo.) 

777 108th Avenue NE, Suite 1200 
BeUevue, Washington 98004 

(Addrts• of principal eucutive officn, lncludln1 zip todt) 

(42.5) 2S6-800D 
(Rocistrant's telephone number, including aroa code) 

20-097802.7 
(l.ltS. Employ~ 

ldtndfocatioo No.) 

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant: (I) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Ellchange Act of 1934 
during the preceding 12 months (or for sucb shorter period that the Registrant was required to file sucb reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing 
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes IRl No 0 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, ever:y Interactive Data File 
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S· T U232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 1 2" months (or for such shorter 
period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes lEI No D · 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See 
the deftnitions of"large accelerated filer," "accelerated fLier" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one): 

Large accelerated filer 

Non-accelerated filer 

IRl 

0 

Accelerated filer 

Smaller reporting company 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes D No [EJ 

As of October 30, 2013, the Registrant had 1 I 7, 799,5 53 common voting shares outstanding, with a par value ofSO.Ol per share. 

0 
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Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q to "we, .. "our, " "us" and "the Company " are to 
Symetra Financial Corporation together with its Sllbsidiaries. References to "Symetra" refer to Symetra Financial Corporation on a stand-alone, non­
consolidated basis. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuh.s ofOpe111tions, contains 
statements which constirute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27 A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21 E of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. All statements, other than statements of current or historical facts, included or referenced in this report that address activities, events or 
developments that we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future are forward-looking statements. The words "may," "will," "believe," "intend," 
"plan," "expect," "anticipate," "project," "estiniate," "predict," "potential" and similar expressions also are intended to identify forward-looking statements. 
These forward-looking statements may include, among others, statements with respect to the Company's: 

estimates or projections of revenues, net income (loss), net income (loss) per share, adjusted ope111ting income (loss), adjusted operating income (Joss} 
per share, market share or other financial forecasts; 

trends in operations, financial performance and ftoancial condition; 
financial and operating targets or plans; 
business and growth strategy, including prospective products, services and distribution partners; and 

stock repurchase program. 

These statements are based on certain assumptions and analyses made by the Company in light of its experience and perception of historical trends, 
current conditions and expected furure developments, as well as other factors believed to be appropriate under the circumstances. Whether actual results and 
developments will conform to the Company's expectations and predictions is subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and contingencies that could cause 
acrual results to differ materially from expectations, including, among others: 

the effects of fluctuations in interest rates, including a prolonged low interest rate environment or a rapidly rising interest rate environment; 
general economic, market or business conditions, including economic downturns or other adverse conditions in the global and domestic capital and 
credit markets; 
the effects of changes in monetary and fiscal policy; 
the effects of changes in government programs to stimulate mortgage refinancing and significant corporate refinance activity; 

the performance of our investment portfolio; 
the continued availability of quality commen;ial mortgage loan investments and our continued capacity to invest in <Oommen:ial mortgage loans; 

our ability to successfully execute on our strategies; 
recorded reserves for futun: policy benefits and claims subsequently proving to be inadequate or inaccurate; 
deviations from asswnptions used in setting prices for insurance and annuity products, or establishing cash flow testing reserves; 

continued viability of certain products under various economic, regulatory and other conditions; 
market pricing and competitive trends related to insurance products and services; 
changes in amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and deferred sales inducements; 
financial strength or credit 111tings changes; 
the availability and cost of capital and ftoancing; 
the continued availability and cost of reinsurance coverage; 
changes in laws or regulations, or their intel']lretation, including those that could increase the Company's business costs, reserve levels and required 
capital levels; 
the ability of subsidiaries to pay dividends to Symetra; 
tbe effects of implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act ("PP ACA "); 
our ability to implement effective risk management policies and procedures, including hedging strategies; 
the initiation of legal or regulatory investigations against us and the results of any legal or regulatory proceedings; 
the effects of implementation of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of20!0 (the "Dodd Frank Act"); and 
the risks that are described in Part ll, Item lA- "Risk Factors" in this report; and Part I, Item lA-"Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012. 



Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this report are qualified by these cautionary statements, and the~ can be no assurance that 
the actual =ults Ol' developments anticipated by us will be realized or, even if subsW!tially realized, that they will have the expected consequences to, or 
effects on, the Company or its business or operations. We assume no obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking statements, whether as a result 
of new information, future events or otherwise. 
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PART I - Financial Information 

Item ). Condensed Financial Sratements 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In millions, except share and per share data) 

-·· ---····----------- ··- ·- .. ·-- --·· ·---------- -

As or 
Septrmber 30, 2013 

As of 

Doc•mber 31,2012 

-·------- - ---- . --·----·---·-··-· .. ·--~~!"!~-- . - -·· ·····-· ..... - ··- ..... ··--.- ------
. __ (U~~~-~i~~L. •.. ·--· ... ---- - _ __ . j 

---- ·- -----···----- ---- ---- -·---- · _________ ] 
InvestmentS: 

r---·- --- -----· ·- -·-·-
L ----~':!i.!_a_?k-fo~:~l~ ~-~~~ . _. _ .. 

Fixed maturities,.! ' fair _value (arnortiz.ed cost: 522,002.1 and $21,073.4, respecti"ely) $ 23,306.5 $ 23,519.0 

L__ Marketable equity securities, at fair value (cost: $87.1 and S52.0, respectively) _ ___ :=·_:::~~=~:==---------rn==---=------~XJ 
Trading securities: 

Marketable eq~i!Y securities, at fair vahle (eost: $449.1 an_d__!-498.2, res~~~)IL ___ ___ _____ __ __ 509.4 --~=--===--:=- 552.7 ] 

Mortgageloans, nct ___ - - ----- -- -·---- - ·-- - - - ------------..... -. .. -· - .... - - --·- · -- --___ -_ .. _-_·_·:·_-__ -_ .. _· _.'!.~764 __ 6:_82 _---_-'-_--___ · __ 3,09654 .. 48 1 
:_ ___ !_~y_l~ --- -- ------ ---.- -- --- . ----- .•. ---- --- ...... --- • ·- - . -
_ Investments in limited partnmhips (includes SJS.!t and $28.6 meas=d at fair value, respectively) __ ---------~1- _ _ _ __ 2~2._ 
L_ _ Other invested assets (includes Sl7.4 and $24.6 measured at fair value, respectivel)IL _ ____ _ _ _ _ ___ 44.0 35.6 i \ 

r 
Total assets 
'--·-·-------~--- ---- ·- - - --~---- -·- -- ------·- ---

Separate account as~~-- _ . ........... . . ... _______ ....... ....... ............ _ ......... _. 
$ 29,784.6 5 29,460.9 I ____ ....;..._...,; 

LIABfUTIES AA'D STOCKHOLDERS' EQmTY 

:-.~~~~b~~d~~~_d~ii~~~~~:~~-~-----~~~~-:~~---~~~~ ----~-~ -~: --~=~-~~~-- -~~~ .. :~~ _- _ :s_-~-~-~ -:. · · --!4!~~4:J~j~_-: -~- ~:~: .... p.o6s.fJ 
Future policy benefits 394.6 390.6 

. --- -- ---- ---- .- -- ·------------.65.4. ·--· ····--- - ·- - 'i62.i J 

·· ···· ---------~--- -·-------- ·· . .. -- -- ··· ----~- --J 

r···----------------
.... .!?~~y aD~ !_-0_11~ :'~Ill! ... -----. 

171.9 113.9 
---- .... --------- .. ·----~-- -- , 

- ------- -----··- -------~4_9_.~ -. ----- . -- 449.4_.1 

___ Other policybo~.:_t£~-------- ___________ __ .... _ 
L_~otes pay•ble ___________ .. 

Deferred income !.all liabilities, net 266.5 628.9 . ·---- -- ------~-=~..::-=-- 327.2 ~~==--=~---~~Q9~6] Other liJbilines ------------------- -- -~- ------~-- - -·------ ·--- ·- -. ----

i'!2tal_!i.~il~ti~ .. - ------------- -- --·-·- ------- -·--- - -- · ---- --·- . .. 
Commitments 111d cootingcncies {No_!f! _1_0) 

Preferred s1D<:k, $0.01 par value; !~000.~ sh~s ~uti_J~~e~_; ~~~ !._ss~~ ----- _ .... _ ... ___ ... 
O>mmon stock, $0.0 I par value; 7 50,000,000 shares authorized; I 24,751,819 issued and 

____ ___:_9.::..:22;..;.0;_ 807.7 

__ _ _!6,771.~-- - ·--- --~·!30.8 J 
.... --------- ------------ --1 

- - - ~ -- - ---- ----- ~-- -------· --- --.. -.~------- -. -- · --·----==---~ 

117,799,553 outstanding as of September 30, 2013; 119,087,667 issued and outstanding as of December 31, 
2012 ·~ 12 ·-- -- - ------ ....... ·-·- -- -------~ ... --~---··- ·---------- --·-- ·--···-· ..... 

: ... . ~~'!!t~~al-~i~.:in_~y~ta_! __ -------- --- -- --- -------- ------·----- .. ------ --- . - --···.-- - -- .- ... ___ 1,463.9 ------------- !~45~-~ i 
Treasury stock. at cost; 6,952,266 and 0 shares as of September 30, 2013 and December 31 , 2012, respectively (93.4) 

L~'j~~i~ ~~!: -~~ ~ ~ ~ _ -~- ~ _ ---==-=---==-===~~:=· ~=-=~~- -~--_ . ~ ~=:~-~--- :· - --~-- _ ---~=~~- 9_2_z._t -=~~~~-===-~-~--_-7ii~--~ 
Accumulated other co~~~:~'l~ i~c_o~.e~ !!•~ of ~es__ __ _ _ _ _ _ 719.0 1,371.2 

::r~~~ stoe~~~~~~qui~. ________ _ 3,012.8 3,630.1 : 

Totalliebiliti« and stockholder.;' equity $ 29,784.6 s 29,460.9 

Sec accompanying notes. 
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CON SO LID A TED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
(In millions, except per share data) 

(Unaudited) 

For the Thr .. Months Eoded 
Soptember 30, 

2013 2012 

For tbe Nine Months Ended 
Stpttmb~r 30, 

2013 2012 
- ··•·· . ....... ------ --~-~----------------- ------------ ----- ----- -----~ 

, _ _!t~v~u~: _______ - -----·-·· --------------- _______ _ 

Premiums __ ---------- _____ ··-----------------·-··----~------- 156.0 $ ___ 1-'-54_._1_$-'------47_0_.4_ $ 451.2 
_________________ 3_26_.4 ______ ~12.3 968.7 -~--- 95IQj Net investment income 

__ ---~~!i~y fees, contract charges, and other 48.3 47.1 146.7 142.2 

. ___ ~et ~e!ige~ i,r!vestment gains (~osses): ____________________ --------------------------------------- _ ... ___________ _ 

i--- Total oth':!'-than-~~l_!lpo~-i~~~-~1\~1-~~ses o~_s_~~~ties _i~6) Q~.Ol __ . !_~?~~)_ (30.~-
Less: portion recognized in other comprehensive income_(loss) _____ 0_._4 _______ 2_.7 ______ 1_.6 ______ 5_._5....:! 

J~-~~- .... _____ Jl~:~ (!5·9 ______ (25.2) 
1.6 28.8 26.0 ·- "6o:2i ------ --------

Net impainnent losses recognized in earnings 
r----~--· ----- -- -. -- -··- ···-- -· ------------ ·- --

L ________ _Q~~ net rca_~iz!.~.i~v~~~-~~~~g~i!l~ ~l_o~s~~L- ... 

(4.6) 15.5 10.6 35.0 
------~~ ---------

- -~~-L _ 529.0 _1!!9~::'- .. ________ 9so~j 

Net realized investment gains (losses) 

[_!~_~j~~~~~~~ ..... --~~-~-~---=~~-~--~-----~~ ~~-~--- -~-- -----~-~=~·_: 
Benefits and expenses_: _ 

i __ Policyholder benefits and claims 
---------- -------118.5 111.1 --3-sJ.z - --- ----- ···· 32o~8-i 

-----------·-···----- - - ------------ -------- - ---- -- .. - - ------ ....... ___ j 

Interest credited 235.3 235.4 696.3 695.2 

(.~=--Qth~de~i anc!.iJ>~~~g~~penscs ---~~--=~-- --~=-- ------- -- 9o.6 _ ____ _ 88.9___ _ _ _1~~3 ...:.==-= -~=~~.5_] 
. ~terest expense __ -- ----- ---- - - ·---- 8.3 8.2 24.7 24.6 
:_ ---~~~!~J.io!' ~f d_e~.!!_~policl'_!~<l'!i~!!{)nE_~s_t~. . . . ________ .......... _ 20.2 17.9 S().J . 49-:Il 
__ Total benefits and e~p:nses _____________________ . ___ .... _ .. _______ 472.9 _ .. ___ 461~5 _1,~~~-8 . _ _ 1,354.2 

~t:_from operations before income taxes --------- .... . _ ·- ... .. ... -~~-2 ________ _6!,5 ____ . _1_91:~ . :.- ·:~ :: . ___ 21~-n 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes: 

Current 
-~~------~ ·- ~~--~ -~ ·~~-~·~-~ 

-------------- __________ !!.:L_ ___ ~_(<!;~) _ _____ ~6-!i__ ______ ---~--·~2l 
___ ...:,.(3_.4-'-) 12.6 (11.3) 39.8 

____ 7_.,_ 12.3 35.3 s1.8 I 
Deferred 

f • ---. 

L Total provision for income taxes -- ~ ·-·----- --- .. --- --- -~ -· ------------

Net income $ 45.3 $ 55. 2 $ I 56.3 $ 174.4 
--------------------------~--------- ..;.._---~ 
:~et inco_!l'lepercommonsbarc:______________________________ ____________ _ __ __ _________ __________________ , _ _____ ! 

Basic $ 0.38 $ 0.40 S 1.21 $ 1.26 

.~ _-_-_iii~!=~ ~--=--- - -----· _____ - -- -----=-~-~~----: ~=--=~:-·:~:~-~-==:~-=.:--0.38 __ s -=-- 0.40 s __ ~-==--~=.!.:~ -=-r· _-_-:_:· (~6.~ 
Weighted-average number of conunon shares outstanding: 
r - - ------ -- ---- -------- - - - ·- ---- --- - - - --- -·· ····--- --
: Basic 
\. __ --- - --- ~-- -------- ------- -------- --~-- ~---- --- "• 

Diluted 

See accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 
(ln millions) 
(Unaudited) 

Net income S 

For the Tbree Month• Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

45.3 $ 55.2 
---···~~-· ~~------~-----~-- -- ·---- -------------~---~------

s 

For tbe Nint Monlbs Eoded 
S•ptcmkr 30, 

2013 lOll 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes and reclassification adjustments: 
I Change;in-~~li;d g.;i~~-(j~;~~~-) on available-for-sale securities (net oftax~--------- ---- ---- ----- -- - - - ---- -- - - -- - - -1 

~~!_(26.0)_,_ll_30.~(312_:!lt ~-~ ~233.9) ------------- (48-2) ____ _ 242.6 --____ (?27.9)__ --- --------~~~,5 ; 
Other-than-temporary impainneots on fixed maturities not related to credit 

losses (net of taxes of $(0.1), $(0.9), $(0.5) and $(L9}} 

I Impact of net unrealized investment (gains) losses on deferred policy 
i acquisition costs and deferred sales inducements (net of taxes of $1.2, 
L __ !<!~~>_._s~!-_4_~!!_d~(~Qm> _____________ _ 2.1 

{_;1._8) (1.1) (3.6} 
------ - l 

i 
(25.1) 89.8 (~_])j 

___ _ ':my~~~~[-~~E-~~~ hedges (net of taxes of $(9.3), $0.3, $(7.0) and ~0.9) __ 0.6 ---~(_17_.2~)------~~ (13.0) 1.8 

ptber ~'!lprehensive i_!lcome (loss)._~---·----~~--------------~- (63.6) 216.3 (652.2) Jn.o I 
271.5 Total comprehensive income (loss) S (18.3) ..;,s ____ _ s (495.9) $ SSL4 

See accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(In millions) 

Com moo 

Stock 

(Unaudited) 

Addilioo~l 

Paid-in 

Capital 

j3alances as of January_!,_20_q __________ ___!_ _______ I_.~ __ __! ___ __ _ l_.~?<t.~~- $ 

Treasury 
Sto<:k 

Balances as of September 30, 2012 $ 1.2 $ 1,458.5 ..;.S ____ _ 

~lances as of January_l,_~f!!l_ ___ _: ___ $ ____ 1..!__$ _____ _!,459.3 _$ ____ _ 

$ 

$ 

$ 1.2 $ 1,463.9 $ (93.4) -$ 

See accompanying notes. 
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R~lainod 

. Earnings 

Atc:umulated 

Other 
Compreben!.ive 

ToUII 
Stockbolden' 

Jorom• Equity 

s ,_,o.£n __ L _ _l,.!.!!2 __ : 

111.2 .;.s ___ ,.:....4.;...o4_J_ s 3,641.2 

798.4 $ 1,!71.2 _!_ __ 1,630.1 1 

922.1 s 7I9.o s J,o12.s I ------



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In millions) 

~-~h nows rrom operatinc•ctivities 

Net income 

(Unaudited) 

____ Net realized investment {gains~ lo_~_e_s_ ----·· ----------- ____ -------------~-

$ 

f or tbe Nlnt Months Ended 
September JG, 

2013 1012 

-- ... ----- -- -~-~-----_j 
I 56.3 S 174.4 

---·--·---------, 

(lU) (35.0) 
-------~----~~-------

Accretion and amortization of invested assets, net ~3.2 36.3 ! 
..__ ____________ -·· - ---------·--- - - ------ ... ---~~-~---- - ~ - -~ -~-- ------~- ~~------------------·--·---~~---~-~~----

Accrued interest on fixed marurities 
- ------ ------ --------------------------·· 

=~-=~Amortiu~ion __ an_d_d~ep,_..,_c_i_at_io_n ______ _ _ __ ~------ - - --- --- - --- --- __ _ _ 

. ---- _(~0~8~--- · - (14.2) 

__ _:lc:.l...:8_ • ~---~~ ::--__ :_~~:~ 
. _!'_efe~~~~-~.!'.'()~~n_(b_en_:!i!_) ____________________ _ 

IDteresl credited on deposit coolr3cts .. _ . ___ --·-·-·· _. _ ····- . 

(\1.3) 39.8 
. --- . ---- ·-· - ---------------- - - ------------- -----1 

·-------------·- - ....... --·----~'~!... ____ . - ~~S.:~J 
______ Mortalil)' and _ex~-~ :~:S-~-~-~~~~Inltive fees ______ _ 

;_ - ___ __9>ang~~il!: _______ ________ ..... 

(86.5) 
. - --- -·-----1 

i 
- - - -~- -- ------·--------- - ~ -. - - --- ~ - -- · - - J 

Accrued investment income -~---·- - ---~---~-- ------ -------·------ ... -~-----------_!17_~0)- . . . - ----- ____ (~.1) 
···---Deferr_!ll_ poli~y acquisition costs, n~-------·---------- ··-- · -- ·-- --- -- . _ ---- ---· _ 

Future policy benefits 
· --- ~--- --~ (~~:11 ___ . -~-----J~~J 

4.0 (0.7) 

___ . --·-_ .... ~~!9' and contra< I <lai.ms ------------==-~==--:-~~-=-:=~=-=~ ~-------~=--==_)i~:~-=--:~-==~=----(11.2)] 
19.5 (39.7) 

·-·--------------·--------
- _______ _!~- -- --·-- ___ _(30.1); 

Other, net u 2.6 -------~---------------------------------

•...• _!o~~~trneuts --------------·----·---·-··-- ------··· ... - ··· ---·-· __ _ 6So.J S71.5 i 
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

r-------
.<:. .. b O!'ws_~rom '!'vtsliD& octiviliu 

Purchases of: 

106.5 745.9 

________ ; 

c __ fixed~~~·sand~art·ta~equirY;•c~~;.-=--=--------- - -- -~~-:~:--~~~-=--=-~~~=-=--===~~~-~=--(J.Sii:l;-~~=--=~ (2,786~~ 
Other invested assets and investments in limited partnerships (47.31 (72.9) 

[::=~-lssu~~~l;"~c_l~-~- _______ ---~---------· _________ - ~ :.-.. - ~ - ~ - - - ~--~~~:~=-·:··_- __ ~---=--(m;==--=-~-~--- (586:1}] 

.. ______ Ma~_!i_e~ calls, paydowns, and other repa~e~ls . --------··-· -·- __ -----· ··--·----··-------·--------~~~8 ___ . __ ______ __1 .~45.4 
··---·----- ... ---·-··-········ . -····-····· ....... --·----····--------·-------··----- ---·- --.----- ---~- __ -..l : Sales of: 

t •. ----- -----· 
1,359.5 1,415.8 - -· ~' ~~--------~-~---------------- --------~--------------

·-- --· .... ----·--·------·---·--- ~-----------14.0_! 
188.3 148.8 

Other, net .... ·---· -·---. ~:-.~~::~~~~=-~----·- ·----------,:;-·-·· --------·--3.9 \ 
Net cash provided by (11Sed in) investing activities (1,113.~ (618.1) 

-· - - ·----· - -· ----~-- ·-··------~~~----·-----·-----~ 

D_•ll_C.~------------------ -- ······· ··-· ··--·· ·· ... - ···-·---
. - .. . . ... - ·- ·- ·------ ------·- -.,.--~ 
- - .. . ·---- - -- 1,7~6.0 ______ ·--- -- 1,205.3 _; 

Withdrawals - -- ---·-· ·- ··- - ~ -- - -- -- --- · - ·- -- -. ····--·· .. - - --·-- ··- ····----·-··---··-·-···-- ·--~-~~.!• .. 
~ - ~-Casbdivideodspaidoncommoostock ________ ·····-···-- ___ ·· ·- · _______ . ··--- . -·-···· ·- ·---·-- -- ... ----~--·- ·--- ... _(32.6. ______ ____ . 

(93.41 

·--·-Other, net _. (34.7) 0.6 : 

. ~~ ~_ll'~ p~vided by (used io) fmancing activities . _ ___ ___ __ _______ :........ _____ 2_9_'-~7 I _____ .:.;0.;.3•;;.·7~> 
. ----~ (9.71 __________ ..<~1D , __ !'!~~~~~-(decrease) in cash and casb equivalents .- ____ ·-·- --···- __ . ·-

130.8 242.3 
------..::,:..:u:..:.t:.... s 238.4 I 

Cash and cosh equiv~~~_!l ~·_!i~~g of period ·- . ______ . __ 

'cash and cash equivalents at end of period 
L_ - -~---. --.~--- -----

Suppltrneocal dlselosurn of cash flow infonnadon 
'·-- -·- ---·-- ---
.J'Io'!.~hlraJ1SaC~Ons during the period: _____ -·----·- .. . ·-··--· ... __ . 

Fixed maturities exchanges 132.0 88.3 

r -:::_~-:estmeo~_limi·t~d ~~i.~~.-~~~~i;,;t ob~;~~:-;;~~;~: :=- ~. 22.7 6.3 
-- --··--~·~' 

See accompanying notes. 

9 



CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All .amounts in millions, except per share data, unle$$ otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

1. Description of Business 

Symetra Financial Corporation is a Delaware cmporation th;~t, through its subsidiaries, offers products and services that serve the retirement, employee 
benefits and life insurance markets. These products and services are marketed through financial institutions, benefits consultants, and independent agents 
and advisors in all states and the District of Columbia. The Company's principal products include fixed and variable deferred annuities, single premium 
immediate annuities, medical stop-loss insurance, individual life insurance and instirutionallifc insurance including bank-<lwned life insurance (BOLl). The 
Company also services its block of structured settlement annuities. The accompanying interim condensed finmcial statements include, on a consolidated 
basis, the accounts of Symetra Financial Co!J)Oration and its subsidiaries, which are wholly-<lwned and collectively referred to as "Symetra" or "the 
Company." 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimates 

The interim condensed consolidated fiDancial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), 
including the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP 
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the amounts reported in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements and 
accompanying notes. These interim condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited and in management's opinion include all adjustments, 
consisting of normal recurring adjustments and accruals, necessary for a fair presentation. All significant intercompany transactions and balances bave been 
eliminated. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year financial infonnation for it to conform to the current period presentation. 

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and 
accompanying notes included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2012. Financial results for the three and nine 
months ended September 30. 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013. 

Adoption of New Atcouating Proaouncements 

ASU 20 I I-I I, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities and ASU 20 I 3-0 I, Scope Clarification of Disclosures about Offielling Assets and 
Liabilities 

In December 20 II, the F ASB issued ASU 20 ll-11, Balance Sheet (Topic 21 0) - Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. This ASU 
requires the Company to disclose information about financial assets and liabilities that are offset or have the potential to be offset, along with the related 
contractual arrangements, to enable users to understand the effect of such arrangements on its balance sheets. The ASU requires the Company to disclose 
information on both a gross and net basis about instruments and transactions within the scope of this. standard. 

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, Balance Sheet (Topic 210) -Scope Clarification of Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and 
Liabilities. Tills ASU limits the scope requirements of ASU 2011-11 to derivatives, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, and securities 
borrowing and lending transactions. The Company prospectively adopted ASU 2011-11 and 2013-01 on January 1, 2013 and included the disclosures in 
Note4. 

ASU 2013-01, Reporting of Anwunts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

In February 2013, the F ASB issued ASU 2013-02, Comprehensive income (Topic 220)- Reporting of Anwunts Reclassified Out of Accumulated 
Other Comprehensive Income. This ASU supersedes the presentation requirements in ASU 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income, and ASU 
2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Dale for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 1011-05. This ASU requires the Company to present, either on the face of the financial statements or in the 
notes to the consolidated fiDancial statements, the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) by the 
respective line item on the statements of income. This ASU does not change the requirement to present other comprehensive income by component in the 
consolidated financial statements. The Company prospectively adopted this standard on January I, 2013 and included the disclosures in Note 8. 
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3. Earnings Per Share 

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLJDA TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless othenvise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Basic earnings per share represents the amount of earnings for the period available to each share of common stock outstanding during the reporting 
period. Diluted earnings per share represents the amount of earnings for the period available to each shan: of common stock outstanding during the reporting 
period, adjusted for the potential issuance of common stock, if diluti ve. 

On June 20,2013, the Company issued 5.298 common shares to settle all of its outstanding warrants with wholly-owned subsidiaries of White 
Mountains Insurance Group, Ltd. and Berkshire Hathaway, Inc., both related parties. The number of shares issued in the cashless exercise was determined 
based on the fair value of !he warrants on the settlement date. These warrants were exercisable for 18.9 7 6 common shares, and were considered participating 
securities because the terms of the agreements entitled the holders to receive any dividends declared on the common stock concurrently with the holders of 
outstanding shares of common stock, on a one-to-one basis. As a result, for !he portion of the period the warrants were outstanding, they were included in 
weighted-average common shares outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share, using the two-class method. 

The Company has issued equity instruments to employees that are considered in the computation of earnings per share, including restricted stock, 
stock options and shares issued under the employee stock purchase plan. The restricted stock is considered a participating security because the holders are 
entitled to receive any dividends declared on the colllJIIOD stock concurrently with the holders of outstanding shares of common stock, on a one-to-one basis. 
Participating restricted stock is included in basic and diluted earnings per share based on the application of the two~ lass method. Estimated shares to be 
issued under the employee stock purchase plan are included in diluted earnings per share based on the application of the treasury stock method. Excluded 
from the computation of diluted earnings per share were 2.650 stock options for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, and 2 .650 stock 
options for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 because they were anti-dilutive. 

The foUowing table presents information relating to the Company's calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share: 

~-······-·- -------------- -·· 
Numerator: 

For tbe Three Montbs Ended 
Srptrmbrr 30, 

2013 . 2012 

for 1br !'l'inr Monlhs Ended 
September 30, 

2013 20tz 

----.1 
Net income $ 45.3 $ 55.2 $ 156.3 $ 174.4 

-Denominator: 
---~ 

_ _ -~:!_ll_h_!_e~~':\1~8!~~~~n shares o!l~~din_! ~-b_asic .... 
_______ ~dd; ~i!u.ti_v~ :!fc_~. ~! ~e~~!!l. c:_qu~~-i!l~~~e?ts 

_\_¥_~ighte~~~v_~~~:o~o~-~~~~~~tanding - diluted __ 

.~~in co_ me per c~~on sb~~--______ ·--- _________ _ 
Basic 

, _ ___ Qi!u_!.e~----. -·----- ·- .. ---· .... ·---- · . . . . --·-· ··-· 

117.802 138.091 129.574 137.986 

____ o._oo_2 ____ __:_o . .:...oo:..:.3 ____ ---=..o . ..:.oo:..:s_ o.o04 ; 
117.804 138.094 129.579 137.990 

$ 0.38 $ 0.40 s 1.21 $ I .26 
--~-~---------- -·-----------------------

$ 0.38 $ 0.40 s -·-i:2J·- ··s -----~~---~~26- ~ 
-------- ---- ---------------
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4. Investments 

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
{All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless othenvise stated) 

(Un~udited) 

The following tables summarize the Company's available-for-sale fixed maturities and marketable equity securities. The other-tlian-temporary 
impainnents (Om) in AOCI represent the amount of cumulative non-credit om losses recorded in AOCI for securities that also had a credit-related 

impairment. 

Fixed maturities: 

Cos1 or 
Amortized 

Cost 

Gro" 
Unrtollz<d 

Gains 

Gross 

Unrulized 
L<JISts Fair Value 

OITiin 
AOCI 

[~_-___ u.s. governme~tandagencies __ ----------~s _____ so8.9 _ ~:-~: =-~~ s:6----s~~--:==._<3jCf~-- ~--~~~i:-s-- ----
·-· __ State andpolitical_~ubdi_:.-is~~~-s _ _______ , ____ . .. ?4_1~- ... __ 24.~---·- (11.3) ·- -··-- · ·- .?~'!:~ 
~ -- Corporate securities _____ __ ---· _____ ...... ·- _1~138.~ .. -- __ !,!~~:!- _ _ ___ J!J.!.:~t _1_7,~~5:_7___ _ _. (1_4.:_4)J 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 2,671.4 146.8 (21.7) 2,796.5 (5.0) 

L~:--=~i~~~i~~~~~rtg~g~~~~~~~~-~~c~~ties ___ __________ __ ! .. ~0.5 _ _ 105.7 _ _(10.1}__ ____ __ !,?36.)~=-=~~=-· -~.:] 
r . - -~therdel:t_<Jbligati~----------- 500.7 ____ 44;..._.4;_ (2.1) - 543.0 
L_. Iota! fixed ~aturities 22,002.1 _____ 1,525.3 (220.9} _ __ 23,306.5 __ ____ _____ JI:!~)j 

Marketable equity securities, avai1able-fo~-sale 87.1 

[I_~tat --- -~----- __ ----·-- _________ ____________________ ___ ___ .;.s __ 2;.;2;.:.,o;.;8.;.9..;..2_ 

Cosl or 
Amortized 

Cos I 

~s of December 31! 2012 _ -- ·---------~------ - ------- ---- - ___ ------·------· 
Fixed maturities: 

___ _;0:.:.;.7_ (0.7) 87.1 

$ 1,526.0 s (221.6) s 23,393.6 
.. 

GrosJ Gross 
Unrealized Unnaliud 

GainJ u .... Fair Value 

s {19.4)1 

OTTiio 
AOCI 

- ----- - ·- -----·--·-- --~---- --- - ------- - -------·-·· 
~- - U.S. government and agencies --- ·- ______ . _ . -----~- --· 307.6 $ .. _"!:.~ _ -~-~- __ __(~)__!_ .. _ -~.!.) $ _ _ jQ})~ 

State and political subdivisions 737.9 ___ .l2.:~--- _________ _(~:~ ____ . 77 6. 5 (0.1 ) [·- ~~--~~~~~_sec~t~_i~---~~--~=:~-------~-==~-=-~~~ ~-~~=-~ ·.:5,2~0.~. _ _]_,2]2.§ ____ __ _____ (5_1.~)__ __ _1_?.2Q!.:L .. . _-_ - ·xi~:~)] 
Residentill mortgage-backed securities --·------· --~ 7 55.5 _ _ • -~~------(_1.~_) _ _ _ .. ]_._007.~-- ________ 1~22, 

[~_--·Commercial mong~ge-backed securities ------ ---- ~,538.2 _ _ -· - __ 170.4 ___ _ __ (0.9)_ _______ !,707.]_ ___ _____ __(!_:?)J 
Other debt obligations 453.8 60.9 (0.8) 513.9 

[---To~!_fixedr.~aturi~~~=~~-: -=-~~ _________ ----~!.Qn4___ 2,502.3 __ ___ (~~:D_ . _____ 2.?.,.~2~----- · ---~~:.!)J 
, - M~k~~E~~_!9,uitt~ec~~~s, available-for-sale ________ __ 52.0 (2.4) 49.6 

rTotal $ 21,125.4 $ 2,502.3 $ (59.1) $ 23,568.6 S {30.1)[ 
. ... . . - · -·" · • · . -· - ---- - - . ·-------- ----- ___ ;..._~ 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLlDA TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following tables summarize gross unrealized losses and fair values of the Company's available-for-sale investments. The tables are aggregated by 
investment category and present separately those securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than twelve months and for twelve 
months or more. 

r·-·------------------ ..... --- --- ... 

Fnir 1 

Value 

Less Tha o ll Mootlls 

Gross 
Uor~•Uztd 

Lossn: 
II of 

Securities 
Folr 

Value 

ll Months or More 

CroSI 
Unroallzod 

Losses 
II of 

Securities 

I ·~ptember 30, 21!~.... ...... .. . .... __ ... . . ____ _ .. J 

Fixed maturities: 

:.- ~~~~=~~-g~~~~i~t:__~~!ie;cie;_~-- ------ ____ ·-·-··· ·--- ~I~:~~~t)_ -$- (J:~L. 6 _$ ____ _______ L______ __ ~] 

.··--- State_~dpolitical sub~v~i~_r:s _________________ !21.5 -· ___ J!O·.?L .. _ __ 38 6.4 (0.4) 3 
- -·-··· '158~3--- ... ·-· (45Jl)_·_·-_··=----- 3_0] L_ __ CofP:?~~e sec~~es-------~---------- ______ 2,9~1!_ _______ (l26.~L- ··----· :zsz _ _ 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 479.0 (20.5) 71 22.4 (1.2) 20 

[ __ ---~~~~~~c.~~--'!l~!ii~~~~~~-~e_~ ~~~;-~~;~ -~--~--~~--- - -__ ::~~~i~3_:~--~ ____ <9-2.>:~:- -- -- · -14·· ---~OI~~i-~~-~~~-~-~--(o:~L~~---:_·_·.:_:_ 1~] 
Other debt obligations 69.7 (2.0) 12 2.4 (0.1) 4 

~- ~I()~Cfi_i~;~-~~~~---- ________ ...... __ ----~-~-~:. __ 3,~?9.:8 _ (1J~~L _____ ..}J!_ ___ _}~~:7 _____ ___ _ {4_7_.~).. ___ ·· ···- .. ~I_l 
Marketable equity securities, available-for-sale 47.4 (0. 7) 39 

r ----------· -----· 
:!.~1---------~--- ____ -- ----·--------- ___ s 4;027.2 s (174.0) s 4Jz s zo6.7 s (47.6) s 67 I 

Fair 
Value 

~ C!r.~e_~e~b~.!}~. ~~~~-- .... ____ . _ .. _ . _ ......... ____ ........ ________ _ 
Fixed maturities: 

LHs Thaa 12 Mon\11• 

Grou 
llnreali~od 

Lours 
#or 

Ste:urities 
Fair 

Value 

12 Months or More 

Cross 
Unr .. liud 

Lossos 
#or 

Suuritlrs 

.................... ---- ---- --·----------~ ~-J 

L_~u~s. i~~~-;~la;;d-;;g~n~i~-s-=-~~ ~----~-=-=-~ -=-~: ~-~~~s. 1 -$:-~ _ -j~2)_'~-~-~-=~~- -~-C -f _-___ ·. - · ___ -: f~ ·· .: .. ~~ ~- -------- ~--~ -.:_: .~J 
~~~~-lll_!_~~li!ic;~-~~b~i-~s~o_n_s_ .. __ .. _ .... .. __ .. _____ --~~:? .. _ .. -____ (~31__~ _ _ 1_1 _ __ ____ _25_:_6__ .... -··-· J~:6J 4 

: .. s~l'p()~-·~ se_c~ti~_ ... - -- --. . - . . . . ........... . - --- !~2~~----- ___ (~~>------~- -- -~!_6.0 ----- _ (4~:6) - ·------~ 3 {J 
_ .... ~~~i~~~~~~-f!l?~ll~~e::~.~:~~<!_se~~~i~s _______________ -----·-- 73.9 __ . _____ (o:~ ..... . __ ! s__ ___ 38.o ____ <!2L 24 
___ <;:o~~-~i~ _ _lllo_rtg~ge_:~a~ked _s~u!~tic:~. _ ____ __ 9. 9 6 -·- __ 30.5 ______ (t!:_9) _ .. _. __ : ~11-:J 

Other debt obligations 38.9 (0.6) 4 4.0 (0.2) 4 

Total fixed maturities _7_!~8_ ___ ....... (8_.1 L. ------~~- __ ~~4:! ....... ...... ____ (~8.6) tO!J 
. __ ~~~~~~-~~~-~~~~i~s,_~~~~b!O:~~o:-~a~c__ __ 20.1 (0.8) 2 29.5 {1.6) 2 

i!~ta_l_ ----.. - --- -· ... ·-. . ... ______ _,_, ___ _._. $ 733.9 $ (8.9) $ 102 $ 453.6 $ (50.2) $ 110 l 
Based on National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAlC) ratings as of September 30,2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company held 

below-investment-grade fiXed maturities with fair values of $1,218.0 and $1 ,279.2, respectively, and amortized costs of $1,193.8 and $1 ,241.3, 
respectively. These holdings amounted to 5.2% and 5.4% of the Company's investments in fixed maturities at fair value as of September 30, 2013 and 
December 31, 2012, respectively. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, euept per share data, unless othenvise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturities as of September 30,2013, by contractual years to maturity. Actual 
. maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalties. 

Amor11z<d 

Cost 
fu.ir 

Value 

~--~ ~o~~-;;~~~~[~~~- ~----~~- ~- ·-_-_:_ ~ ~~--~: ~ - : ~~ - -~ -- ~-~-~- _:_~ : __ -----~~~-~~-==-~ s ______ 6os.~_!______ 6Is.o ~ 
.. <:)ver one year through five years 4,391.3 4,733.6 

1 _ _ _ _()v~r five years ~~gh teE_ years_--------==:-~-=~:~~-- :~~~- :~-=-~~--~~=-=~~-___________ 8,31 1.~~--·~-· 8,666. 7 ~ 
Over ten years --------- --- ------- - - --·----- .... --- ----- _ ___ 4,118.9 4,456.2 
Residential mortg_!ge-backed securities ____ . --- - - · ___________________ .. ----·-- --- ----- ___ _ y7J -~-----______ _..!, 796.5 __ : 

__ Commercial mo!l!!a~e_-~~~ked_ ~~curi_!i,e!; .. . 

, __ Oth~r ass~~~k~~ec_!l!i_!i!s __ .. ____ .... .. 

Total fixed maturities 

The following table summarizes the Company's net investment income: 

____ fJ~<!. matu_!jtjes ..... ____ ·-· ..... __ __ ....... ___ _ 

Marketable equity securities, available-for-sale ______________ .. . . _ 

___ M~~e_t~~~e ~q~_tyy_ecuri!ies, tra~g______ __ _ _____ _ __ 

____ Mortg~ge loans------ ---------- --------- __ _ 
i. . P~I~~}'Io~n~ .. ______ '- _____ -· ____ ... ·····--·--· __ _ . __ .. _ _ __ __ 

1,440.5 1,536.1 _____ 46i_o ___ ___ -~-~ 

$ 22,002.1 s 23,306.5 ___ ..;....._ 

For th~ Tbree Mouths Ended 
Soptombor 30, 

For tho Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 20l3 2012 

s _____ 283.4 ____ $ __ ~?~.L---~~-~---~- ______ 84~:~. ) 
0.6 0.6 2.3 2.3 

- .i.} __ ~~~---=-= :1~~ -=--~:.--~~=-- 9.((=~~ -~ .. ~=-ij 1 
48.7 43.9 140.7 126.5 

..... .. ~~8 _____ - -- .. --- 1.0-~=~--=-=--~-~2:7.~~- - -- -~--=-~) .9 J 
. - .. _(~.2)_ --· ... (7.7) (9.7) (16.0) ____ 1_.s_ · ---- iT... - ·5.7 ________ 5:71 

Total investment income ,---- ------ ....... ·-- .. ····- ............ ·-........ . ...... ---- ... 334.1 _ _____ }1_2~- -- 991.8 972.9 . .. - ·- ----· .... ·--- ... ··- -- -l 
! __ lnv_~s~~llt ~x~~-- _______ ... ____ __ --~{7_.7..:..,) (7.5) (13.1) (20.9) , 

Net investment income s .326.4 $ 312.3 s 968.7 $ 952.0 ...._ __ _ 
The following t.able summarizes the Company's net realized investment gains (losses): 

Gross gains on sales 

~ _: ~: Gross losses on sales ____ ·---- ----~~=:= ~=:·:: -~-_ __ _ . 
___ ~~ i~pairment losses recognized in earnings ---·------ ___ .. 

... . Eth....!~~!)__ ___ ----- .. ----· · ·-- -·---------- -- ---- -- ··· 
Total fixed maturities 

-·--· - ------ -----· ------------------·------
. ~~!t~~b~-~9ll_i_t)l_se~!!e~,_ trading_(~)_---------_ ··---~---·· __ - ··- .... _ 

Other 

r 'i>e!~rr__e~pi~r. acq~!~~n-cosis~~~ferred sales inducem_~~~~~i~~~-~:. 
Net realized investment gains (losses) 

For lhe Three Moottu Eoded 
September 30, 

For tho Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

s 2.4 $ 7.4 s 8.0 $ 40.4 
-~ -- ~ - ~·~--~-~-~~----··--~-----·-·- ------ -

... J!-~L ________ ~~:~>- ______ j17.~) -~(14~~>.i 
.. 5~:2L. (13.3) {15.4) (25.2) ____ o;....s_ · '2.'3 _____ "(3.9) _____ --Tf1 

J~O.!) ____ .. (10.0} (28.7) 4.4 
12.0 -·-·2:5~0--------- 43.3 --·-- 33.6 ~ 

----- ------ -- ------~~~ ---~--~- · ----·-- ·-·- - • - · --- - •• 1 

<y.o~_ _ .. J~~l_ ________ (5.7) ____ .. _ (__3-~) 
1.1 0.6 1. 7 0.6 -----

$ (4.6) $ 15.5 s 10.6 $ 35.0 

(I) This includes net gains (losses) on calls and redemptions. and changes in lh• fair valu• oflhe Company's convertible sc<:urities held as of period end totaling $1.2 and $(0.4) for 
the three months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and S(O.I) and $(0.1) for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 101 z, respt ctively. 

(2) This includes net gains (losses) on changes in the fair volue of trading securities held"" of period end totaling su and $25.2 for the three months ended September 30, 2013 
and 2012, respectively, and 517.8 and $33.2 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 1012, respectively. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unlen otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Other-Than-Temporary Impairments 

The Company's review of investment securities for OTTI includes both quantitative and qualitative criteria. Quantitative criteria include the length of 
time and amount that each security is in an unrealized loss position (i.e., is underwater) and, for fixed maturities, whether expected futwe cash flows indicate 
that a credit loss exists. 

While aU securities are monitored for impairment, the Company's experience indicates that securities for which the cost or amortized cost exceeds fair 
value by less than 20% do not typic.ally represent a significant risk of impairment and, often, fair values recover over time as the factors that caused the 
declines improve. If the estimated fair value has declined and remained below cost or amortized cost by 20% or more for at least six moQths, the Company 
further analyzes the decrease in fair value to determine whether it is an other-than-temporary decline. To make this determination for each security, the 
Company considen, among other factors: 

Extent and duration of the decline in fair value below cost or amortized cost; 

The financial condition and near-tenn prospects of the issuer of the security, including any specific events that inay affect its operations, earnings 
potential or compliance with terms and covenants of the security; 

Changes in the fmancial condition of the security's underlying collateral; 
Any downgrades of the security by a rating agency; 
Nonpayment of scheduled interest, or the reduction or elimination of dividends; 
Other indications that a credit loss has occurred; and 
For fixed maturities, the Company's intent to sell or whether it is more likely than not the Company will be required to sell the fixed maturity prior to 
recovery of its amortized cost, considering any regulatory developments, prepayment or call notifications and the Company's liquidity needs. 

For fixed maturities, the Company concludes that an OTTI has occurred if a security is underwater and there is an intent to sell the security or if the 
present value of expected cash flows is less than the amortized cost of the security (i.e., a credit Joss exists). ln order to determine the amount of the credit loss, 
the Company calculates the recovery value by discounting its estimate of future cash flows from the security. The discount rate is the original effective yield 
for corporate securities or current effective yield for mortgage-backed and other structured securities. 

Determination of Credit-Related OTT I on Corporate Securities 

To determine the recovery value for a corporate security, the Company performs an analysis including, but not limited to, the following: 

Expected cash flows of the issuer; 
Fundamentals of the industry in which the issuer operates; 

Fundamentals of the issuer to determine what the Company would recover if the issuer were to file for bankruptcy; 
Expectations regarding defaults and recovery rates; 
Changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency; and 
Additional available market information. 

Determination of Credit-Related OTII on Structured Securities 

To detennine the recovery value for a structured security, including residential mortgage-, commercial mortgage- and other asset-backed securities, the 
Company perfonns an analysis including, but not limited to, the following: 

Expected cash flows from the security, including potential variability of prepayments; 
Creditworthiness; 
Delinquency ratios and loan-to-value ratios on the underlying collateral; 
Average cumulative collateral values, vintage year and level of subordination; and 
Susceptibility to prepayment and anti-selection due to changes in the interest rate environment. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amo•nts in miiUons, except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

1be following table presents the severity and duration of the gross unrealized losses on the Company's underwater available-for-sale fixed maturities, 
after the recognition ofOTn: 

Find maturjt~e~ . 

As of September 30, 1013 

Cross 
Unrtalizt(l 

Lones 

As of Derember 31, 2012 

Folr 
Valut 

Gron 
Uarullztd 

Lossts 

,....-·----~ . - ·--------··- -·-- _,._ ·-- - · ---·-- ······ ·· . -
L_ Total un~rw~ter~y 20% or more .. - ----· __ ·-··· · ____ .--- __ __ _ _ _ 95.5 ____ _ _ __ (40.2)_ _______ 6~---------- _(27.0)~ 

All other Wlderwater fixed maturities __ _ __ 4,091.0 (180.7) I ,068.3 (29.7) 

~lunderwater!ixedmaturities _ ---- --------·· _______ ,;s __ ....;.4•:.;,18;;.;6;.;,;.5;... S (220.9) S 1,137.9 S (56.7)! 

There were oo marketable equity securities recorded as available-for-sale that were underwater by 2<J-Io or more as of September 30, 2013 or 
December 31, 2012. 

The Company reviewed its available-for-sale investments with unrealized losses as of September 30, 2013 in accordance with its impairment policy and 
determined, after the recognition of OTT!, that the remaining declines in fair value were temporary. The Company did not intend to sell its underwater 
securities, and it was not more likely than not that the Company wiU be required to sell the securities before recovery of cost or amortized cost. For fued 
maturities, this conclusion is supported by the Company's spread analyses, cash flow modeling and expected continuation of contractually required principal 
and interest payments. 

Changes in the amount of credit-related OTTI recognized in net income where the portion related to other factors was recognized in other comprehensive: 
income {loss) (OCJ) were as follows: 

s 

Balance, end of period s 

Fer lhc Three Moalld Ended 
Sepltmbcr JO, 

For the Ninr Mottlls Endtd 
Septemb« 30, 

2013 2012 2013 lOU 

. _ -~.:~--··_s_ .. __ 3~~-.i.... ·-·- _}_6.2 _ ~ _s. . __ .1~. i 

24.7 $ 36.4 s 24.7 $ 36.4 -----
( 1) Represents circumstances where the Company detcnnined in the period lhat it intend<d to sell the secwity prior to =overy of its amortized cosl. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANClAL STATEMENTS 
(AJI amounts in millions, eltcept per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Deriviltive Financial Instruments 

Derivative Exposure 

Th~ following table sets forth the fair value of the Company's derivative instruments. Derivative contracts in an asset position are included in other 
invested assets, derivative contracts in a liability position are included in other liabilities, and embedded derivative liabilities are included in funds held under 
deposit contracts on the consolidated balance sheets. The Company does not offset recognized collateral amounts p !edged or received against the fair value 
amounts recognized for derivative contracts. 

~Q'!~I!!)Ii!'g ~!~!":~.~v-~ ______ _ __ .. 

Nolional 

AmouDI 

As of September 30, 1013 

Assers Uabmu .. 
Nolioual 
Amouot 

As or December 31, lOll 

As sols Liabilities 

•· 
____ Cash ~~~_h_ed~~s: __ _ .. -- -- -- - ·- --- -- --------- ·-·-
• . . . .. J~t!f_!s_!_~!e ~~aps_ _ _ _ __ _ _ ___ --~--- ___ ~7 .1_. _ j s 5.7 s $ 97.1 $ 9.8 .... L. -... ·-·- --------- ----- ----- -- -- - ~ --- - - - .. ·--·-· ·--

... J~'!!gn currency swaps-·---- - ___ 362.4 20.4 112.8 4.3 

.. !~~~.~~lifying deri~~!!~!.. ------------_ ... _ .. --· S 459.5 s 5.7 s 20.4 $ 209.9 $ 9.8 $ 4.3 I 
I 

Embedded derivatives 59.1 
~-- .. - - -- ....... _..., p ~ -~·~ - ·--

Other derivatives 14.8 0.7 13.4 0.8 
! ----·-·. --- ·-·-·--··. -·· ·-· ---- - - -·---·--·-· 

[ _ _!~l_alnon-q~~-fyi~g.~eriv~_!!~~~----- __ .. _ --- ·. 
Total derivatives 

833.2 26.0 60.4 352.3 6.3 14.8 I 
s 1,292.7 s 31.7 s 80.8 $ 562.2 $ 16.1 $ 19.1 ----

Collateral Arrangements and Offsetting of Fi11anda//nstruments 

The Company's derivative contracts are typically governed by an International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA"} Master Agreement, except 
for foreign currency forwards which do not require an ISDA. For each ISDA, the Company and the counterparty have also entered into a credit support annex 
("CSA") to reduce the risk of counterparty default in derivative transactions by requiring the posting of cash collateral or other financial assets. The CSA 
requires either· party to post collateral when net exposures from all derivative contracts between the parties exceed pre-determined contractual thresholds, which 
vary by counterparty. The an10unt of net exposure is the difference between the derivative contract's fair value and the fair value of the collateral held for sucb 
agreemenlS with each coWlterparty. Collateral amounts required to be posted or received are determined daily based on the net exposUie with each counterparty 
under a master netting agreement 

The Company recognizes cash collatcnll received in cash and cash equivalents and the obligation to tcturn cash collateral in other liabilities on the 
consolidated balance sheets. Non-cash collateral received is not recognized on the consolidated balance sheets. In the event of default, the counterparty 
relinquishes claim to the assets pledged as collateral, and the Company recognizes the collateral as its own asset recorded at fair value, or, in the case of cash 
collateral, derecognizes its obligation to return collateraL 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLlDA TED FINANClAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless othen,ise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following tables present the potential effecl of netting arrangements by counterparty on the Company's consolidated balance sheets: 

As of September 30, 2013 

Gross Amouot Not Offset U! the Balance Sheets 

Amount 
Pr05ented in llle fioaDtial Casb CoUoteral 

Net Amount &lance Sheets laSIJ'Um<ml1 (Received) Posted 
---------------~------ ~-- ------ ----- --~------------ --- ______ ;.._;.._;.._....;...._ ------ -----"---'---- -------: 

i 

Amount 

Preseoted In the 
Balance Sheets 

-~-•--•· r•••- •• •··'·· • ••• ------~------~------·---~--~ 

Gross Amount Not Offset in the Balance Sb .... tr 

Financial 
Instruments 

Cash Collattrol 
Reteived (Posted} Net Amount 

-- ···----- . -------- ------ -----'-----'-- ------; __ ! 

,-----~- ·---
I Other 

Total derivative liabilities (I) 

(I) Excludes 559.1 of embedded derivatives which have no counterparty. 

As of December 31,2012 

t~~~_ii..P~~tY~~-~- ~---:--_-~ -. ~--. -- .. 
Assets: 

r----- --
1 A 
[ ·-~··----- . 

B 
;------oili~~ ·- .. ·- ---·- . . - -- - -- -·-- . . --- ·--- ·-
1 ------ ,-T o·O F0oO •••••- ~ oOT T -·· ·-·--• ~ - 0 ~--•• 0 ··- 000 0 .-"Oo •-• •-

Total derivative assets 

s 

s 

$ 

··---------·- ---- ---· - ---------- ----------~----· ~-----~------· ··-·; 

____ ___!_~ -~ -- ---!_ -- ----------· ____ __!_ __ ---- _-!·~-' 
12.2 

5.7 

21.7 

Amount 
Presented io the 
B•lante Sheets 

5.6 

s 

(0.2) 12.0 
. --·-- -(1.3)- -- --· -- --- --4~4·: 

.;,.$ ___ ....;,;,<1,.;;,.5~) - s 20.2 

Gross Amount Not OJTset in the Balaoce Sheots 

F'l.flaodallnstruments 
Casb Collateral 

(Receind} Polled NetArnouot 

L ------· - s . J?~6)_ .. t --
---- _4-~ __ ·-·-- _____________________ (1_~6L___ z.5 

6.4 (5.3) -Jj f -:------$ 16.1 .;..s ______ s (12.5) _s ___ 3 __ 6_ 

The following table presents the amount of gain (loss) recognized in OCJ on derivatives that qualify as cash flow hedges: 

_!J;t~r«:st ~~e_s_~~P~-- __ . __ 
Foreign currency swaps 

r··· ---------------- -· ..... ------·· ~---- --~- • - -------- ---·-- ·-

iT~t-~J.. . ... . _ __ . . ___ __ _ 

s 

$ 
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For tbt Three Monthi Ended 
September 30, 

2013 lOll 

(27.2) 
1.4 

(26.s) __ s ____ I_.4_ 

s 

$ 

for the Nine Mootb1 Endod 
September 30, 

2013 

(2~~L_~ 
(15.7) 

2012 

-·----~~- j 

<•s.o> .;.s ____ 4.;.;.2~i 



CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in milllons, except per share data, unless othenvise stated} 

(Unaudited) 

See Note 8 for amounts reclassified out of AOCI into net income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012. The Company 
expects to reclassify net gains of $2.1 from AOCI into net income in the next 12 months, which includes both discontinued hedges and periodic senlements of 
active hedges. Actual amounts may vary from this estimate as a result of market conditions. 

As of September 30,2013, the maximum term over which the Company is hedging its exposure to the variability in future cash flows is approximately 
eleven years. The Company recorded no ineffectiveness for cash flow hedging relationships for the three and nine months ended September 30, 20 l 3 and 20 12. 

The following table shows the effect of non-qualifying derivatives on the consolidated income statements, which is recorded in net realized investment 

gains (losses): 

for the Throe MontbJ Eo~•~ 
~pltmber 30, 

For tbo Nioo MootbJ Eodod 
September 30, 

lOll lOll 2013 lOU 

:.~--~~tyu;;;;ri~~; __ _=~--~=~~-~-=-~=~-~----= .. ~~~~-~~--~·: ~L ____ ____g~!_ _ ____ ~4 __ .)_ _ _ .... . !:~.J _______ _ _!,?~ 
Foreign currency forwards (0.2) .. !:~ ... _. __ _ . (0.2} 

~- Em"i~edderiv~tiv~-~=~ =-~~=~-==~-~~==~~-=~~=~--=--~(6:9) - (0.8) ______ (~t_ _ _ (~-i)~ 
... _ _9.th~rd_eri_~a~~~ - _______ _____ _ _____ _ - ------- ·--- (0.4) (0.4) (0.4) 

·I~~L . _ .... . ·- _ ___ _ __ . ___ ----··---- ___ . ____ s (3.6) li s (1.1) s co.4) ~ 

S. Mortgaee Loans 

The Company originates and manages a portfolio of mortgage loans which are secured by first-mortgage liens on inCQme-producing commercial real 
estate, primarily in the retail, industrial and office building sectors. Loans are underwritten using standards based on loan-to-value (LTV) ratios and debt­
service coverage ratios {DSCR} as well as detailed market, property and borrower analyses. The Company's mortgage loan portfolio is considered a single 
portfolio segment and class of financing receivables, which is consistent with how the Company assesses and monitors the risk and performance of the 
portfolio. A large majority of these loans have personal guarantees, and all mortgaged properties are inspected annually. The Company's mortgage loan 
portfolio is generally diversified by geographic region, loan size and scheduled maturity. As of September 30, 2013, 29.1% of the Company's commercial 
mortgage loans were located in California, primarily in the Los Anieles area, 11 .5% were located in Texas and 9.3% were located in Washington. 

Allowance for Mortgage Loans 

The allowance for losses on mortgage loans provides for the risk of credit loss inherent in the lending process. The allowance includes a portfolio reserve 
for probable losses incurred but not specifically identified and, as needed, specific reserves for impaired loans. The allowance for losses on mortg.agc loans is 
evaluated at each reporting period and adjustments are recorded when appropriate. To assist in its evaluation of the allowance for loan losses, the Company 
utilizes the following credit quality indicators to categorize its loans as lower, medium or higher risk: 

Lower Risk Loans- Loans with an LTV ratio of less than 65%, and a DSCR of greater than 1.50. 
Mediurn Risk Loans- Loans that have an LTV ratio of less than 65% but a DSCR below I.SO,.or loans with an LTV ratio between 65% and 80%, 
and a DSCR of greater than 1.50. 
Higher Risk Loans- Loans with an LTV ratio greater than 80%, or loans which have an LTV ratio between 65% and 80%, and a DSCR of Jess 
than 1.50. 

Loans are specifically evaluated for impaim1cnt if the Company considers it probable that amounts due according to the terms of the loan agreement will 
not be collected, or the loan is modified in a troubled debt resiTUcturing. The Company establishes specific reserves for these loans when the fair value is less 
than its carrying value. · 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts In millions, except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following table sets forth the Company's mortgage loans by risk category: 

As or Septtmber 30, 2013 

Carryiog 
Value •;. of Total -... -· ----------···--- --·-- --- ------ _ ___;....;.;_;,;,_;;___;_ 

As of Dttember JJ, lOll 

Carryiog 
Value %of Total ,.. 

;_. .. _L?~C_':_ ~~-- •.. s . -~·~3:? .. . --- --- ~-'~!__!_ __ ~~--------.. ---.. ~-~-~%] 
Medium risk 787.4 23.3% 664.1 21.5% 

~----- . -----------. ·------ --- ------
[_ __ .... J#~~r.r:!s!_ -------------·- ..... 

-·- ----- ----s-o6.o- ----- -- -is.o•i.. _- ---- -- -5--73.9- ~--- ·- -·· -- -is-:5%1 
Credit quality indicator total r-----· ---·-- ----- ---- .. -. -- -- - ---- ..... -----·------·-- - -- --- ________ 2_~~!.- -- - ·- .... ~~~Y..- 3,096.4 100.0% 

6.0 4.8 . 1 ..... ~~~~-~pec!~c:al_l)'_~~~':'~t~~ ~O!.!'!IJl8i!!_ll~_tJl)___ _____ . . .. ··--· ----------- ---·------------··-··- -· -·-~·-·-···· ··-· - -~---- -~---·--·· '--- ... . ----~-- -· 
Other(2) 

r~·--~-------

;Total 
\. ____ ...___._...._ .... ·-~ s 3,376.8 

-------------- ------·--·-----------......;--
. ---- --------~(6_.1~) ..... - --- - .. -- ___ ...:,.(6_.8..:....) 

$ 3,094.4 ...... . ............ ..;...._....;.,:.;;.;..,;._ 

(I) As of September 30, 2013 and Doeember 31, 2012, reserve amounts of su and SO.O, respectively, wen. held for loans specifically evaluated for impairmenl 
(2) lneludes the allowance for loa11 losses and defe!J'Cd fees and costs. 

i __ ) 

In developing its portfolio reserve for incurred but not specifically identified losses, the Company evaluat~s loans by risk category and consideTS its past 
loan experience, commercial real estate market conditions, and third party data for expected losses on loans with similar LTV ratios and DSCRs. Each loan· s 
LTV ratio and DSCR is updated annually, primarily during the third quarter. rn developing its provision for specifically identified loans, a market valuation 
on the collateral is performed to determine if a reserve is necessary. 

The following table summarizes the activity in the Company's allowance for mortgage loan losses, which includes portfolio and specific reserves: 

~---- ---- .. - . ----- --··· ... - ... - ------------ .. 

,A))ow~c~ at ~~g~g-~~pe~~~----- ___ -~·--. __ $ 

Provision for specific loans 

For tbe Three Moocbs Eoded 
September 30, 

lOJJ 2012 

8.1 $ 9.0 s 

For cbe NIDe Moulbs Ended 
September 30, 

2013 

7.9 $ 

0.2 

2012 

7~_.i 
.1.9 

: _--:-Pro~isi~~ fo;·~~~s nE~_sp~£if.i~~l!Y )~~~~fi-~-~:~ .. --~~~~=~-- ··------------·-· ------ ------ox·------ _____ .Q:~. i 

(2.2) Charge-offs ( 1.2) 
iA_n~~_c:;_~~~nd ~fpe_zi~~ ------·----·- ------- $ 8.1 $ 7.9 $ 8.1 s 7.9: --------

Non-performing loans, defined generally as those in default, close to being in default or more than 90 days past due, are placed on non-accrual status. 
As of September 30,2013, no loans were considered non-performing. As of December 31,2012, one loan with an outstanding principal balance of $3.7 was 
considered non-performing and included in the assessment of the provision for specific loans. 

6. Fair Value of financial Instruments 

The Company determines the fair value of its fmancial instruments based on the fair value hierarchy, which favors tbe use of observable inputs over the 
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The Company has categorized its financial instruments into the three-level hierarchy, which gives the 
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level I) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). The level 
to which a fair value measurement falls is assigned based on the lowest-level input that is significant to the measurement. The fair value measurements for the 
Company's financial instruments are categorized as follows: 

Levell -Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical instruments. This category primarily consists of exchange-traded marketable 
equity securities and mutual fund investments. 

Level 2-Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active 
and model-Qerived valuations whose inputs are observable. This category includes those financial instruments that are valued using industry­
standard pricing methodologies or models. All significant inputs are observable or derived from observable information in the marketplace. Financial 
instruments in this category primarily include corporate flXed maturities and mortgage-backed securities. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Level 3- Fair value estimates whose significant inputs are unobservable. This includes financial instruments for which fair value is estimated 
based on industry-standard pricing methodologies and internally developed models utilizing significant inputs not based on or corroborated by 
readily available market information. In limited circumstances, this may also utilize estimates based on non-binding broker quotes. This category 
primarily consists of funds held under deposit contracts and mortgage loans. 

The following tables present the fair value of the Company's financial instruments classified by the valuation hierarchy described above. The financial 
instruments are sepiiillted between those measured at fair value on a recurring basis and those not carried at fair value, but for which disclosure of fair value is 
required. 

r -----------· -~-- ---------------- -- ---.. ~------ --· ~- ----
~~~ured at fair val~c_?_~_a r.~~~!~~g_ba:S_is; . 

Financial assets: 

Carrying 
Amount Fair Value 

As of September 30, 2013 

Levell Level2 Level3 

~---. ----------· ·-· ~· · ~--~--·· -----··-----~- ----~~-~,--. ·-------------- . ~- ---- --- ~------~--------, 

I l -·-- ~xed_l!l_atufi!i~,.av_a~a-~~e~f~-~a!_e_:_ •-•·- -·--··.,-••-•• ---A----~----------~------ •• •---·--------.-·-·-·-·--·-- ----· •••o _ ,,J 

U.S. government and agencies $ 510.7 S 510.7 $ $ 510.7 S 

:.~~-- S~ ":"~. ~olitical su_!>_d~sions ~ ·-- ____ -~ ~ ~ :~~·-·---~::=~_·-:__~~~-~- ___ ~--~·- 7S4:j __ ~~~-- - -~__:__~ 754:5 -~~~~------- . ~·=· -=-~ _ 7S~S-=----~ ~-~==-~-=] 
r- __ --~~ra~.~e.:uriti~s ..... . _____ . ___ --· _ 17,165.7 17,165.7 17,067.6 98.1 

·--·- ~~?~~·~~!~~-~"'!g~g::~_a:.~•.<!.!~~~~~~-s- _. ... __ --~~: · :-~~_ j;??-~:s:-- ~- · -)~7p6~~--·:.-- ------------ - -- : __ _-_~ __ j~i96~~.=~--~-~--:-.~~-~:XJ 
_ !2o_~~~a_l_!ll()riJ8J~~!_cked _sec~~i~~ _ _ _ __ __ ___ __ ___ _ _ __ _ ___ _ I ,536.1 ... _ ~ ,~3~·!_ 1_,5_~--8 31.3 

; ____ O_l!le_r ~ebt ~~!ga~i~'!! _ _ _ __ __ _ _ __ • _ _ __ . 543.0 543.0 470.l.-- . -- - -- 72.7] 
,--·- _T_o!:IJ.~~~~ti_e_s!~_vai_l_~b.!•:~~~:~.~ ___________ ___ ... _ . _ -- ----~~0_6_:.5__ .. ~~0_6:5_ __ _ ____ -~~!1!'4.:_2_ _ _2_02_.3_

1 I ___ ~~ke~_!!~~ ~qu_i_ty_s~~t!•!,_!~i!~ble-for-sal!_ ____________ . ___ -· - --- --~1:~--- - ____ . __ _!1]:1. __ . _}~:'!._ __________ 17.1_ __ _ ___ .-:::.J 

- ·---~~etabl~~qui'!.s~~~ lr.ldin~----------------- - - --- 509.4 ______ _ ~.:.4 s~~-- ---·-· -·---- -----~-~- \ 
r ... _!!l_vesll_!!ents J~_l!_lll~~-partnersl!!p~,priva_~_!_qu_i_ty_~'!~---- - .. -- ··-- ----···---- -~--- .. -·--· _3~ --------· ---- 3_5:~ i 

Other invested assets 37.4 37.4 2.5 6.5 28.4 

[_:_r;~_in~~~i~~~~ it!~~-~~~~---- --· --- ---- -~-·-~-_-_: _______ 23,976.3 _2~!?!~! ._ . ___ ---·· 541.6 ___ 23,~67.8 ~-- ---~~~-.: 
Separate acco1111t assets 922.0 922.0 922.0 

r ------------·-···------ -------··--·····-···-·-···--··--__;..;;.;;.~ __ ......:..;:.:..:..:~ ___ .;..;;,;;~ -----------: 
1"!o~~~~ts-~•!air~a_l~~. --·--- · -·--·-- -· - --·-- .. s __ 2.._4 .. ,8.._9 .. s ... 3_ s 24,898.3 s 1,463.6 s 23,167.8 s 266.91 
Financial liabilities: 
C~~Embedd;deriv~~;_~~-=~=~~~-~.~--~-~-~-==-~~-=~~~~-~~:-~-=~---59.1--~-------s;_l-----·-- -~-: ----- .... - -- --- -s9~tl 

Toralliebilitiesat fl'irvalue S 59.1 $ 59.1 S .;.s ______ s ___ 5_9_.l_ 

Carl')ing 
Amount F•ir Value Level l Levell Level 3 

,-~-------~--·-------------- · - -----·-···-·--....;.....;;.;..;;.;..;__ __ ....;_;;;;._..:;..:;;__ _....:;;;.;.;.;..;...__ __ ___;:.:..;..;::..:__ -----: 
'subj_tc:ll~~i! value ~~~!osurt req~~-------·---- _______ . _ ·----~--------- ____ . __ --· -· _/ 
Financial assets: ··------ ·-· -· ---· .. 
~-~·--· ~~~~~e,!~~ -· . . . .. J·--···· 3,376.8_. _ __! ___ _],525.3 _! ___ --- -- - - --- - ~ 
. ___ 111_~~~:'1~-~ !!_~~·~~e~_!ps~~='!_~i-~~v~~~-s- _ 

; .. Casb_~d?Sbe_<~ui.val.:_n~ 
Financil.ll liabilities: 
! --· .. -·------ .... ----- -· . 

. -~~~ ~~]d __ u:'~~~~_ep~~~ con~c~_{ll:_ __ _ 

De fern<! annuities r -- ---,D<:O-m-~nn-u-iti~;---.-- -- ·----- -------- --

__ ]:l_o~p_ayab~_e:..__ ______ ---·- -·--- --------------·----------··· 
_ ~p~~~-J::f!ici~nt ]'jot:s (CJ::N~~ --· ___ . 
Senior notes 

217.2 199.9 

121.1 

$ - 1_1!?.3~.7 

- - -~,~9_9.9 

149.9 

299.6 

121.1 

153.2 

322.0 

(I) The c&nying value of this balance excludes $6,041.1 of liabilities n:Joted to insur.mce contrncts and_ embedded derivatives. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CON SO LID A TED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless othenvise stated) 

(Unaudited} 

Carryi~~ 

Amount 
.. ·- ..... - . ··--·-------·----·---·---- --·--- ------- Fair Value 

As of December 31, lOll 

Levell Levell 

~!!~~re~.'!tf~ir ~~~!_o~a -·~~ring basis: -------------- ___ ----·-·----· ·--- __ --------------·---··-- .-.... _ 
Fi11ancial assets: 

Fixed maruritiu, availabk-for-salr: .. __ -·· _ __ ... ·--··· 

Level3 

1:1:~--~~~~·~~-~d agen~~---____________ $ __ __]..!._1_:? _ _!___ ____ 3_1_1._5_-'S-----.....c.$ ____ 1!._~-~-------, 
i ____ _ -~~!1-~~~<!_politj~al subdivi~~-------------------- 776.5 . 776.5 __ 776.5 _____ ---=-! 

Corporate securities 17,201.6 ____ 17,20L~ ___________ I7,162.7 ___ 3_8._9 
1 

Residcntialmortg.!ge-backed securities ------------3,007.8 ___ 3,007.8 3,007.8 _____ ---=, ,.-
(_, __ _ 

r·· ~---- _C~~cr_ci~lmortg5e.:backcd.sec~-t~~ .... . '2.~~-_7 --~,7~~·_7_ -~·68~:9 _____ 18.8 

Other debt obligations __ ---·-.. - ______ .. _______ .. --·--···--·-----5_13_._9_ 513.9 440.9 -73.0-~ l._ 

.. !_o_~ fixC<J ma~ties, ·~~~le-for:~~!:_ _______ . . _____ ·-. __ 23,519.0 --~~.5-~2-()_ ·---- - . . ~3.2_882.__ --- 130.7-
_____ t>f_~~~~!J_Ie eq~~IX s~~~tje_s,_ ·~-~l~blc:f~_r-s~l: _ ...... ____ _ 49.6 49.6 0.5 44.1 5.0 ; _ ______ .. -. ...... -·---·-·---·-----------------··--···-··-------· 

Marketableequitysecurities,tr.Kiing 552.7 552.7 -~~-.5--···-·-·· - . . __ -~ 
[ Investments in limilcd partnership~private equity funds -----------··· __l?~-- ____ -~8~. ·-·-·- ___ __ 28.6 ; 

Other iovestcd assets 24.6 24.6 3.8 13.0 7.8 

24,174.~-- . 24,174.5 556.8 23,445.4 172.3 ; 

807.7 807.7 807.7 "'"""~eparalc account assetS 

[!'otal assets al fair value 

Financial liabilities: 

.$ 24,982.2 .;.s_..;;2_4,.,98_2_.2 __ s __ I._J64_.s __ s __ 2_3._44_s_.4 __ ..;,s ___ l_n..;;J...:; 

Embedded derivatives 

Total liabilities at fair value 

14.1 14.1 
-------------------, 

.$ 

·--------- ------------ -------- ----------- - -------------- ---
'subject to fair value disclosure '!Quirc_~_cnts: __ ·--- --·-· 

Financiallllsets: 

14.1 

Carrying 
Amounl 

.$ 

14.1 

14.1 $ .;..._ __ _ $ 14.1 

Fair Value Len! I Levell Level J 

r ----- -- ·-----·-· ------.. -----.. ·-------·-·------·-·------· ..... -·--·- -· ·---------
:. __ ~ort~ge loans ·---·----·--· _!.__ _ _l,094i.-~. __ _3.37~.5. $ --- · =---~-- ...... __ -:: .. _J __ .1_~70.~ j 
.·--lnv~stme~~~~~<!._p_~e~h!~~!_taX ~~i~ ~~-~~~:_n~ _ -- · ___ -~------!'_<)2__ ______ 208.3 ____________ .. _ _ !08.3 ____ ___ ·--

L ~h~~-?S~~~ui'o'ale~lS_ __ ... _ .... _____________________________ _!~·.l!.. __ ---- . .!.3-~:!. .. _____ go.s . __ . ·-·- ____ ·-----------= _ 
Financial liabilities: 
f Funds held under deposit contractS -{i }~------
L.- .. --- ... ··- ·- .. ·· ..... ... .... ·-· ------.. ----·- - .. ··· - .. --.--.. ·-···------------·· ·-·---·-- · ·--- ·- ·-- - · · · ·-·· · - --- . -----. ----- ----__.) 

,-- Deferred MnUities ·-·------------ ----- ·---·-- __ -~ ___ 10,583..:5_ -- ~- __ !.'!·~~0~!_ ______ -- ----~ $ 10,610.9 

Income annuities ___ .. __ ____ _________ _ _ ·--·· ___ .. . . ~.5!5c9 _. _ -~386.3 ----------- ___ . ·-- --·--- ------- ~OJ_s~.~~ [ __ 
.. ____ N~es payable: ____ _ ·---·--------·------·-· .... ---·-·-- -··· 

149.9 - .. __ ~~p_i_~I_Efficient ~~~~ (~P'ts) --·­

Senior notes 
-----------~- ·- -------·-·· .. --.- -· 

299.5 

154.8 

324.5 

(I) Tbe carrying value of this balance excludes $5,899. I of liabilities related to insW11Jlce contr1tcts and embedded derivativts. 

Financial [nstruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

Fixed Maturities 

154.8 

324.5 

The vast majority of the Company's fixed maturities have been classified as Level2 measurements. To make this assessment, the Company determines 
whether the market for a security is active and if significant pricing inputs are observable. The Company predominantly utilizes third party independent 
pricing services to assist management in determining the fair value of its fixed maturity securities. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 
respectively, pricing services provided prices for 96.3% and 96.2% of the Company's fixed maturities. 

The Company analyzes the prices received from the pricing services to ensure they represent a reasonable estimate of fair value, including analytical 
reviews of prices between reporting periods. The Company also performs procedures to gain 
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(All amounts in millions, exc:ept per share data. unless othenvise stated) 

{Unaudited) 

assurance on the overall reas·onableness and consistent use of inputs, valuation methodologies and compliance with fair value accounting standards. This 
includes an annual review of pricing methodologies and inputs by asset class and performing periodic due diligence procedures, including quarterly deep-dive 
analyses, monthly price fluctuation analyses, and corroboration of prices by obtainin~: secondary pricing quotes for selected securities. Based upon its 
analyses, the Company has not adjusted prices obtained from the pricing services. 

The pricing services pro~ide prices where observable inputs are available, utilizing evaluated pricing models that vary by asset class. If sufficient 
objectively verifiable information about a security's valuation is not available, the pricing services will not provide a valuation for the security. In these 
situations, the security's fair value is determined using internal pricing models. 

fU of September 30,2013, the Company had $670.5 or 2.9%, of its fixed maturities invested in private placement securities. The use of significant 
observable inputs in determining the fair value of the Company's investments in private placement securities resulted in the classification of $65 2. 5, or 
97.3%, as Level 2 measurements as of September 30, 2013 . As of December 3 I, 20 I 2, the Company had $819.6, or 3.5%, of its fixed maturities invested in 
private placement securities, of which $787.3, or 96.1 %, were classified as Level 2 measurements. 

Corpor11te Securities 

As of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, the fair value of the Company's corporate securities classified as Level2 measurements was 
$17,067.6 and$ I 7 ,162. 7, respectively. The following table presents additional information about the composition of the Level2 corporate securities: 

~~-e~~~d~~~~-~g~ -~~~J!On.~te _ . . .. . . . . --···- . 

Weighted-average remaining years to contractual 
maturity 

As of September JO, 2013 

Amouot ~.orTotlll 

5.67% 

9.8 

As ofDe<.tmMr 31,21112 

#of~curilits Amouat % of Total # or Securities 

__ ... -··---5-.88% _ _____ ··· ·· ... ·-· . ·--

10.3 

The majority of corporate securities classified as Level 2 measurements are priced by independent pricing services utilizing evaluated pricing models . 
. Becaus·e many corporate securities do not tiade on a daily basis, evaluated pricing models apply available information throu&h processes such as benchmark 
curves, benchmarlting of like securities, sector groupings and matrix pricing to prepare valuations. ~ significant inputs for security evaluations include 
benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and other reference data, 
including market research publications. 

IU of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, $539.1, or 3.2%, and $675. 1, or 3.9%, respectively, ofLevel2 corporate securities were privately 
placed. These securities were valued using a matrix pricing approach. The significant inputs to the measurement are the base credit spread, treasury yield and 
expected future cash flows of the security, which are all observable inputs. The base spread is determined based on tiades of similar publicly-traded securities, 
and the expected future cash flows are based on the contractual terms of the security. The valuation approach also incorporates an illiquidity spread, 
determined based on premiums demanded by investors for privately placed securities. The illiquidity spread is an unobservable input, which ranges from o to 

25 basis points and is based on the credit quality of the security. The illiquidity spread does not significantly impact the resulting valuation. 

Residential Mortgage-backed Securities 

As of September 30, 2013 aod December 31, 2012, the fair value of the Company's residential mortgage-backed securities (RMBS) classified as Level 2 
measurements was $2,796.3 and $3,007.8, respectively. These securities were primarily fLXed-rate, with a weighted-average coupon rate of 4.45% aod 4.67% 
as of September 30, 2013 and December 3 I, 20 I 2, respectively. 
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(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless othenvise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Level 2 RMBS securities are priced by pricing services that utilize evaluated pricing models. Because many RMBS do not trade on a daily basis, 
evaluated pricing models apply available information through processes such as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings and 
matrix pricing to prepare evaluations. The significant observable inputs for securiry evaluations include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer 
quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and other reference data, including market research publications. In addition, 
the pricing services use models and processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The pricing services monitor market indicators, industry and 
economic events, and their models take into account market convention. 

Agency securities comprised 88.9% and 89.4% of the Company's Level 2 RMBS as of September 30, 201'3 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The 
following table presents additional information about the composition of the Level 2 non-agency RMBS securities: 

A5 or September 30, 2013 As of0tcember31, 2011 

Fair Value "!.or Total 

.Hig.he_:9t. r~_liJig~g!_n~y_r~_~l_lg:._ ....... ____ ---·--~----·- __ ... _____ ... ___ , .......... ___ , __ __ 
AAA S 40.8 13.2% 

: ___ ~_thro~gh BBB _ ·-·-· --···. _, _ ... ___ .. _ -· __ 
BB & below 

-· ------ -·- --- -- - .. ·--- --·· - ·--·- ' 

92.7 30.0 
175.7 56.8 

~~enc>:~S~-----~~---~·.- -- - -------------~---- -- ___ . . _s ____ 3_0_9_.z ______ I_oo_._oo_y.,_ 

Non-agency RMBS with super senior subordination S 188.5' 61.0% 

Fair Value % ofTotal 

$ 23.6 7.4% 

94.1 ')93~l .... - ----- ----··----
201.8 63.1 

$ 319.5 1oo.o% I 
$ 202.7 63.4% 

As of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, the Company's non-agency Level2 RMBS had a weighted-average credit enhancement of 8.8% and 
8.4%, respectively. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31,2012, $114.7 and $127.7, or 37.1% and 40.0%, respectively, of the Company's non-agency 
Level 2 RMBS had an origination or vintage year of 2004 and prior. The Wlderlying collateral in years prior to 2005 is considered higher quality as 
underwriting standards were more stringent. 

Commercial Mortgage-backed Securities 

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the fair value of the Company's commercial mortgage-backed securities (CMBS) classified as Level 
2 measurements was $1,504.8 and $1,688.9, respectively. The weighted-average coupon rate on these securities was 4.93% and 5.03% as of September 30, 
2013 and December 31,2012, respectively. 

Level 2 CMBS securities are priced by pricing services that utilize evaluated pricing models. Because many CMBS do not trade on a daily basis, 
evaluated pricing models apply available information through processes, such as benchmark curves, benchmarking oflike securities, sector groupings and 
matrix pricing to prepare evaluations. The significant observable inputs for securiry evaluations include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer 
quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers, new issues, monthly payment information and other reference data, including 
market research publications. 

The Company's Levell CMBS securities were primarily non-agency securities, wtricb comprised 81.3% and 78.4% of Level2 CMBS as of 
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The non-agency Level 2 CMBS had an estimated weighted-average credit enhancement of 31.0% 
and 29.9% as of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, respectively, and 97.2% and 96.6% were in the most senior tranche as of September 30, 2013 
and December 31,2012, respectively. 

The following table presents additional information about the composition of the underlying collateral of Level 2 non-agency CMBS securities: 

I --- ····- · ·- -··. ···-······--·---~~-~~---~-----~ .. -···-··~-·-··-

§~~i.fi&:_3~!._!~!_':1~_!!g_c~_afera1Jocation~ __ _____ --· . _ 
New York 

! .. - _<;_~li_f~!Uia 
Texas 

,S~g!I~.C~~~-~E.~e!~~g-~~llat~.~~~.~r~p_e~~!~: . . _ .. __ ..... . 
Office buildings ______ ·-----·---- -----·----.. ____ .. -·- · _ -· . 

c·~.·---~~~-s_h~p~~g cent~_!:~------------ ____ ,__ ------- ---· -.. - ... .. . 

24 

As ors~ptembcr 30,2013 

%or Total 

21.9% 

As ofD~rnber 31,1012 

%of Total 

.. J 

20.1% 
-~--~-----~---~--·- · ···-·----~- -·--· ---- -----· --

12.4 12.0 ·- -- ---··- -·----------- - --·· ----- -
7.6 7.5 

33.2% 31.9% 
-------------- ----- -- ---. . ·-·- ------------- -. 

30.9 32.4 



Marketable Equity Securities 

CO!'.'DENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions. except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Marketable equity securities are investments in common stock, including real estate investment trusts (REITs), certain nonredeemable preferred stocks 
and investments in mutual funds. The securities primarily consist of investments in publicly traded companies. When the fair values of the Company's 
marketable equity securities are based on quoted market prices in active marlcets for identical assets, they are classified as Level l measurements. The fair 
values of nonredeemable preferred stocks are valued by pricing services utilizing evalWlted pricing models and are classified as Level 2 measurements. These 
valuations are created based on benchmark curves using industry standard inputs and exchange prices of underlying securities and common stock of the 

same issuer. 

Investments in Limited Partnerships 

Investments in limited partnerships recorded at fair value are investments in private equity funds. The Company utilizes the fair value option for these 

investments, regardless of ownership percentage, to standardize the related accounting and reporting. The fair value is approximated based upon the 
Company's proportionate interest in the underlying partnership or fund's net asset values (NA V). The Company is generally unable to liquidate these 
investments during the term of the partnership or fund, which range from five to fifteen years. As such, the Company classifies these securities as level 3 
measurements. 

Separate Accounts 

Separate account assets are primarily invested in mutual funds with published NAYs, which arc classified as Level I measurements. 

Embedded Derivatives 

Embedded derivatives relate to the Company's fixed indexed annuity (FIA) product, which credits interest to the policyholder's account balance based on 
increases in equity or commodity indices. The fair value of the embedded derivative reflects the excess of the projected benefits (based on the indexed fund 
value) over the projected benefits (based on the guaranteed fund value). The excess benefits are projected using best estimates for surrenders, mortality and 
indexed fund interest, and discounted at a risk-free rate plus a spread for nonperformance risk. Because the estimates utilize significant unobservable inputs, 
the Company classifies the embedded derivative as a Level 3 measuremenl 

Other Finaotiallnstruments Subject to Fair Value Disclosure Requirements 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand bank deposits and short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at 
the time of purchase. Cash equivalents are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, and were $94.6 and $121.9 as of September 30,2013 and 
December 31,2012, respectively. 

The fair value of the Company's mortgage loans are measured by discounting the projected future cash flows using the current rate at which the loans 
would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same maturities. 

The fair value of the Company's investments in limited partnerships associated with lax credit investments are estimated based on the discounted cash 
flows over the remaining life of the tax credits, using the original internal rate of return for each investmenl 

The fair values of funds held under deposit contracts related to investment-type contracts are estimated based on the present value of the discounted cash 
flows. Cash flows were projected using best estimates for lapses, mortality and expenses, and discounted at a risk-free rate plus a nonperformance risk 
~~ . 

The fair values of the Company's notes payable are based on nonbinding quotes provided by third-parties. The fair value measurement assumes that 
liabilities were transferred to a marlcet participant of equal credit sl!mding and without consideration for any optional redemption features. 
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RoUforward of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level3) 

The following tables present additional information about financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis and for which the Company 
has utilized significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) to determine fair value for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013: 
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·--------...1 
59.1 
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~-- ---------·- ---·-------·---- ______ _!~.l.._ ___ ...!:.!_ _____ ·~-------

···-- --·-·~ 

i --~-~~v~-~~---··-· -- -· ~·-·-----·-----···--

J~"'_l_~cl) ....... --·- .. 
I 
~!!-! Llabillti .. ~-

Embo:kkd dc:riwtivc:s 

7.t "·· 
172.3 lll.l 

14.1 35.1 (0.1) 

•••• 35.7 (0.1) 

(t) Issues and settlements irre ll'iated 10 the Company's embedded derivative liabilities. 

_ ______f:!L- 7.2 ... J.t,4 I 

I .A ~-!.......!l!...- .;... ____ .,:<U;;;;:..I (1.91 

----·-----

St. I 

.. .!......-~ S9.1 

(2) Transfers into and/or out of Levd 3 are ll'poned a1 the value as of lhc beginning of the period in which the trarufer occurs. Gross transfers into uvtl 3 wert: 56..4 and su for 
the three and nine months ended September 30, 20!3, respectively. Gross trBnsfers out of Level 3 were 534.4 a.nd 55.5 for the tlutt and nine months ended September 30, 2013, 
respectively. 

(3) Other is comprised of cransaclions such as pay downs, calls, amortization and ~emptions. 
(4) Realized and unrealized gains and losses for investments in limited partnerships are included in nel investment income All other realized and unrealized gains lllld losses 

=ognized in net in«~ me are included in net realized investment gains (losses). 
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The following tables present additional information about financial instruments measured at fair value on a recUJTing basis and for which the Company 
has utilized significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) to determine fair value for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012: 
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(I) Issues end scnlcments are ~lated 10 !he Company's embedded derivative liabilities. 
(2) Trao.sfers into and/or oul of Level 3 arc reyoncd a\ the value as of the beginning of the period in which tbe tmnsfer oc:cun. Gross mmsfers into Levell were $3 3. 7 and S 50.9 

for the three and nine months ended September 30. 201 2. respectively. Gross transfers out of l...cvcl 3 we~ $3 6. 8 and S69. 7 for the three and nine months ~~ 
September 30, 2012, ~pective1y. Transfm; out included certain privately ploccd fixed m.uurities for which lhere was a change in volu•tion methodology during the fim quartet 
2012 10 a method !hat uses significant obsc:rvllble inputs. 

(3) Othu is comprised of tranSactions such as pay downs, calls, amortization and redemptions. 
(4) Realized and wuulized gains and losses for inve5UIICilts iD limited par!Derships.,.; includod in net investment ineome. All O!Mr realized 3lld Wll'Calittd gains and losses 

=ognittd in net income are included in net realized investment gains (losses). 
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7. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (DAC) and Deferred Sales Inducements (DSI) 

The following table: provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for DAC: 

for Ike Tbreo l\tonth1 Ended for 4bc Niue Mootlls Ended 
September 30, Septembu 30, 

2013 2012 201J 1012 

:u;;;;;~-;~ance at b;gioning~period ___________ -:~~ ~--~~- :·_ =-_- :_s ____ 373.1 __ $ __ }1§l__ $ __ 367.9 _ $ ____ __168."_ j 
Defenal ofacquisitioncosts 36.4 10.8 77.4 49.8 

i~~~= -~itj~~;~ts related to investment_(g~~t~~~~~-: ~-~==--====-~=--=-~--_ ___ 0.8 0.4 1.1 ___ OAJ 
Amonization -OAC (14.9) (I 5.3) (47.8) (46.5) 
Amortization -l~p;~(gf_~~~~!i()!l_~d experience unlocking - - - - -- ---~ ---- {2~6) - - -- -- ----(8:5)·---- (2~6)1 

Unamortiz~~ba~~~atendofperiod _____ ·-------- 390.~--- _ ------~-~·_5 _______ 390,1 369.5 
[_ Accumulated effect of net W!realized investment g~-------- _______ . (118.4) (223.4) ( 118.4) - - - -(22"3".4)] 
Balance at end of period S 271.7 $ 146.1 $ 271.7 $ 146.1 

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance for DSf, which is included in receivables and other assets on the 
consolidated balance _sh~tS: 

For tbe Three Montbs Ended 
September 30, 

for the Nine Months Ended 
Septembu 30, 

2013 2011. 201J 2012 

;i,i~~~~;;d~(;;;~~~~-b~~~i!!g_ofp~~~~--- _____ :-_=.: ----------------S 155.1 $ 150.5 S 153.4 $ __ _ _!___4J:Q_j 

Capitalizations 12.1 12.1 37.6 37.9 
f - - Adjusttnents related ~~~~si~~:~_t(g~i~i}~~ses ____________________ -~------- _ __g_ ____ 0.6 __ -= ~-=-~i_i~j 

Amortization- OSI_______ ___ . ---- --- -- (10.1) (9.4) (31.9) _______ !~·7) 
L Amortization- IJ!lp~c~~f~I!!Ption and experience unlocking_________ (3.4) (1.0) (5.7) {J.O)i 

Unamortized balance at end of period · 154.0 152.4 154.0 152.4 
~~A~c~~-;;(~'d-~ff~~!_of net Wllealized investment gains ----~ ~--=~-- --- -·- -·- ·-(84.1-) ----vn_4f ___ ---(s4.i) (132.4)! 
Balance at·end of period S 69.9 $ 20.0 $ 69.9 $ 20.0 
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8. Stockholders' Equity 

CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAI\lCIAL ST A TJ!:MENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following tables summarize the components of AOCI and the adjustments to OCI for amounts reclassified from AOCI into net income for the three 
and nine months ended September 30,2013: 

Nd Ullreallzed OTT! on lind Net gains 
gaios (losses) on maturititS Adjustment (lo,...) on 
anlloble-for- pot reb ted to for DAC ash Oow 
sole securities credit lo55es (2) aad DSI (l) bed~:•• 

Accumulated 
otbtt 

compnbeoslv~ 

iocome 

-~26:?·---~- _ _ ___ (l~L.! __ <!~3.7) __!__ ____ ~:~ ____ s _ _________ 7_!!:!...i 
Other comprehensive ineome (loss) before reclassifications. nel of caxes 

(I) (60.3) (O.J) 2.8 (17.1) ,----------------------------------------------- ----'---''-------------'----'-- --- (74.~)' 
~Redassifi':_Btionsrecordedin: --·-------------------------~ ---~--------- --~--------- ------~-·-~-------' 

Ner investment income: 

Interest rate swap~---------·----------- ---------------------------(0.6) ______ _ _ (0.6) ! 
Foreign currency swaps _ 

[ye~-~~~~;i-~~;;;,~!'.;_<~;l~~- - -____ -.-=: .. ~ __ -_---~----- --~-- _. . - -- - ~ 12.2 6.4 

o.s 
--~~-~i,::!i -_ -~ --------~ ~~-------==-.,--~ I 

0.5 

0.4 Total provision (benefit) for income laXes (4.3) ,----- ----------·-------''--''- _____ ....;_~ (2.2) (6.1} 

11.3 l 4.2 ~~tal r:c!_a__ssifi~ario~-~olll ~~<:;_I~ !_l~!_of_lli_X!s _ ______ ___________ 7..;.9_ ------- (0.7) (0.1) 

3.9 Other comprehensive income (loss) after rcclassificat:l-'----o-ru-'--'-----·----......;(~52_._4)~ _____ ....; __ 2.1 (17.2) (63.6) 

;!lalance as of~_ep_tember 30. 2013 $ 874.3 s (12.7) s (131.6) $ (11.0) $ 719.0 ! 

Net uoualiltd OITI on fored Net gaios Auumulated 
gain• (loss01} on maturities Adjustment (losseslon other 
D.vailnble-far- oot related to for DAC cash flow comprthtas-ivt 
salt SHUritio credit lon01 (l) and DSI (l) hedges Income 

·· - .. - . - --·-------~ ... ······ -- ·· -

)~al~cE<IS ~UIII!.uaJJ I_,_~O!~ _ .. __ s ·'·~~~-~- s s (1_9~6L_ __ ~-- ---~22~).---'-~ 2.0 s ____ 1,~?!.:.2J 
Other comprehensive income (Joss) before reclassificatioos, net of taXes 

_i'_l _________ -···--- .... ----------··-··---
'Reclassifications recorded in: 

.. (7S_UL ----- <~:1)_ -· ·· 90.9 (11.6) (676.2) ·· -- ---- ~ ·----~ -~-=:::·---_-=_] 
Net investment income: ·--------------- - - -- - --- :--~ 

,_ Interest rate swap!_ ____ _ ·--- ··-·-------------~ .. . ·--- ... . _ ____ .-:-7 ..•. _ ......... __ ----=----·--- ______ _ ____ (1_:7) _______________ J!]).J 

, _ ___!'~-~~gn-~~~a_p~ ·---·---- _ -------------- _ ·---------------------------~------- ~~L._. (0.4) 
; _ . ~~ ~·!iz~cl-~ves_~e.!ll_ ~~~) !~~~~s __ 

Total provision {benefit) for income taxes 

\Total rcdassifications from AOCI, net ofuxcs 

_28.5 _____________ E.:.!_____ ____ (!]) _______________ . J_!:O j 

_ __ ____:<,;.;10,;.;.0~) (4.2) 0.6 0.7 (12.9) 

________________ ,;.;18...;.5_ 8.0 (1.1) (1.4) Z4.0 : 

Other comprehensiv~ income (loss) after reclassifications (735.9) 6.9 89.8 (IJ.O) (652.2) ,---
~asofSeptemberJ0.20JJ ----·---··------------s ____ s7_4_.3_ S (12.7) S (131.6) S (lUI) S 719.0 i 

(I) Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications is net of laxes of 5(32.5)1 S(O.t), su, S(9.J) and S(40.J), respectively, for the~ months ended September 30. 2013, 
and net oflaXes of$(406-l), $(11.5), $49.0, S(6.J) and 5(364.0), respe<::tively, for the nin• months ended September 30.2013. 

(2) Redi!Ssificatioo adjustments of OTTI on flx<d maturities not related to credit losses are included in changes in unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale se<:urities within 
the consolidated stalcmcnts of c:omprehonsivt income (loss)_ 

{3) See Note 7 for the adjustment for the accumulat<d eff"'t of net unrealized investment gains separnlely presented for DAC and DSI. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following tables summarize the components of AOCJ and the adjustments to OCI for amounts reclassified from AOCI into net income for the three 

and nine months ended September 30, 20 12: 

~-·---------

Net unrealized 
COlDS (losses) OR 

av•ilable-for­
salt s:ecuritia 

01TI on rl.lled 
maturities no1 

related to 

crtdit losses (l) 

Adjustment 
for DAC 

Net gains 
(loss:es)oa 

Accumuloted 
other 

and cash now c.om.pnbeaJlvc 

DSI (3) bedgos lntomo ·-· ·- ·----- - --- ------· ----=------
..... ____ __! _____ !~414.~ __ J __ - .... s~o6.2> _ _J ___ . ____ 4.7 __ s __ __ -~' 1 ~~ ~- ; !_alance as of July l, 2012 

Other comprehensive income (loss) befo"' reclassifications, net of 

taxes (I) ____ . ------ ___________ 23Q.6 _ ---- _ --· Q:!L_ _______ (24.7) ·-

'R~I~-;ific;;j~~ ;,o~ded in: 

1.0 205.1 

Net investment income: 
1-

Interest rate swap.!_ _ _ __ .............. _ .. 

Net realized investment (gains) losses 

[ __ Total p_t:Ovisi~n_(ben~!!tl for income taXes 

Totol reclassifications from AOCI, net of taxes 

~er_~~~~h~IJSJ.v~~ome ~ss) after reclassifications 

83lance as of September 30, 20 I 2 $ 

9.3 

(3.3) 

6.0 

236.6 

1,65!.0 s 

Net unrulind 
gaios (lo:nn) on 

avail.oblt-ror-
sale securities 

9.3 
·- ~ -·. 

(3.3) 

6.0 

4.2 

(20.7) 

OTT! oo rued 
mat11rities net 

s 

.. -.- (0.6~- --
0.2 

(0.4) 

(25.1) 

(231.3) 

Adjustment 
rorDAC 

s 

0.1 

(0.4) 

0.6 

5.3 

Net gains 
(los~) on 

18.0 
·---- ---·---- ----1 

$ 

(6.3) I 
11.2 

216.3 

1,404.3 

Ac:cumulated 

olbcr 
related to and cash fl&w camprrhruive 

crtdit losses (Z) DSI (3) bedges iacome 

~~~~~~u~~~-~~I~~-==~~~-==~=-=~=_s _____ _!,236.6 __ !_ _ ____ ____ (3__?.2) s ____ _<!~~-6) __ ~ _ 3.s s __ !_,~I~~-
other compn:bensive income (loSS) before reclassiftcations. net Of taXeS 

(I) 

~ec]~ifi.~o~~o.!d~ il!: .... 

Net investment income: 

417.1 (3.6) (55.3) 2.8 361.0 

--------·----~-. 
' 

- - ---·- ----------------· . ---~- ----- ... - -
-- _(L5)_ ------· : ..... (!·~~: Interest r11te swaps 

26.2 ------------. --~- ·--··· 

___ o_.s_ (8.7> : 

Net reali%ed investment (gains) losses 
i ---·· -----·-·~--:----·-·---------:------- ------··-·--·--·--···-- -·-····~ ···-
~-- __!ota~pTOY!SlOII (benefit) for lOCO~~~----__ __ . ___ .. _____ ....;.,_ 

(4_1_!_. 30.9 (0.6) 
-- . 

1.4 (10.8) 0.2 

Total reclassifications from AOCI, net of taxes (2.7) ______ .. _____ ......:,_.:_ 20.1 (0.4) (1.0) 16.0 

;othe!_C~J1ll>~~!~iv_e_ inct:~e__Q_~ss) after reclassifications 414.4 16.5 (55.7) 1.8 377.0 

Balance as of September 30, 2012 $ 1,651.0 $ (20.7) $ (231.3) s 5.3 $ 1,404.3 ..;...___.....;.;,...;....;_ 

(I) Othet comprehensive inecme (loss) before reclassifiutions is net of taxes of Sl24.0, $(0.9), $(13.3), $0.4 and S 110.2, respectively, for the thn:e months ended September 30, 
2012, and net of taXes o( $224.5, $(1.9), $(29.8), $1.4 and $194.2, respectively. for the nine months ended September 30,2012. 

(2) Reclassilicatioo adjustments ofOTTI on fixed maturities not related to credit losses~ included in changes in unttalized gains and losses on available- for-sale securities within 
tbe consolidated s\3tements of comprehensive income (loss). 

(3) See Note 7 for the adjustment for the accumulated effect of net unrealized investment gains separately presented for DAC and DSI. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per share data, unless othenvise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in outstanding shares of common stock: 

~~~cc: as o~!an~_l_. ~0~~--­
, __ ~e~tri~!e_~ ~E~-is_sued, ne_t__ 

Employee s10ck purchase plan shares issu~---- ___ _ 

Common stock repurchased(!_) _ _ __ _ ________ __ ··-------- _ 

Common Sbares 

-----------·- - ----- --~----- -----------------------
(I) Rcp=enls shares of common stock rcpurt:hased pursuant to the Company's stock repurt:hase program that began in 2013, which""' held in treasury, as we11 as shares 

rcp=has.:d and subsequently retired to satisfy employee income taX withholding pursuant to the Company's Equity Plan. 
(l) Includes s.l98 shares of common stock issued from the senlcmcnt of warrants. Se<: Note 3 for further discussion. 

On February I, 2013, the Company's board of directors authorized the repurchase, at management's discretion, of up to 10.000 shares of the 
Company's outstanding common stock. The authorization was increased to 16.000 shares on May 21, 2013: The Company has repurchased 6.952 shares 
under the program as of September 30, 2013 This includes 6.090 shares purchased on May 17, 2013 from a related party in a privately negotiated transaction 
fora total of$8:.8. -

9. Stock-Based Compensation 

The following table SUIIIJl'iarizcs the Company's restricted stock activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013: 

10. Commitments and Contingendes 

Litigation 

Numboror 
Sbares 

Wti&htocS­

Average Fair 
Valoe 

Because of the nature of its business, the Company is subject to legal actions filed or threatened in the ordinary course of its business operations. The 
Company does not expect that any such litigation, pending or threatened, as of September 30, 2013, will have a material adverse effect on its consolidated 
financial condition, future operating results or liquidity. 

Other Commitments and Contingencies 

As of September 30, 2013, the Company had no material changes to its commitments or contingencies since December 3 I, 2012 _ 

II. Segment Information 

The Company offers a broad range of products and services that include retirement, group health and employee benefits products and life insurance_ 
These operation; are managed separately as three divisions, consisting offour business segments based on product groupings, and a fifth reportable segment 
consisting prirnmly of unallocated corporate items and surplus investment income. The five segments are Benefits, Deferred Annuities, Income Annuities, 
Individual Life and Other. 

The following tables present selected financial information by segment and reconcile segment pre-tax adjusted operating income (loss) to amounts 
repPrted in the C·lnsolidated statements of income. 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLlDA TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(AJI amounts in millions, except per share data, unless otherwise slated) 

(Unaudited) 

For tbc Tbru Moonbs Ended Septc.,.ber 30, 1013 

Deferred Income Individual 
Beaefits Aanuldn Annultln Life Other Total ----- -----------·----

:<?perati_~g reve~-----·---·-·-------·-- _ ·- ·--------------· -~------- ---------- _ _ ·· - ·--··· - __ 
Premiums S 147.4 S $ $ 8.6 S $ IS6.0 

:=-_Net~v~~;nt~~~~~---:··~-= ~-~-~~: ~ ---·--_-________ S~ _ _ ~~~.0 _ ___ _J~~4____ . _?li__ ___ -__ sj_~~-=--=--326.4] 

Policy fees, contract cha:ges, and olher 3.5 S.8 0.2 34.1 4. 7 43.3 
~~Nctrealiz~g~ns_(l~~!~)-FIA 0.9 -- - -- - - -- - - ----0,9j 
Total operating n:venues 156.1 151.7 98.6 115.3 9.9 531.6 
r · - ------ ---- ~ - ------------------· --- ------ ----- -· - -- - - --------- - -- ---- ----- -- - -

!!enefits !:!'~~p_enses:.._ ____ .. _ ...... _ ····--· ........ - __ ---··. .. • .. ·------·-·····--- -·-- -· •.. . .. ______ .... _ _ .... _ --·----·--- -- - __ ·-·-- ....... i 

P~cx_~~er_~~n_e~IS~~cl~~----·- · ---... ·- _ ··--·-------·-!!:!..._ _ _______ ... ~:~. . 19.1 118.5 
~r_e~c~c,j_it~. -·- ________ _________ 8_6~! ~-~=--=--=85.'7---~--~-·::·~~3.4 --~~~~:--(0..~)~ =-=~~ItJ-j 

Other undeTWriting and operating expenses 41.7 23.3 4.9 15.4 5.3 90.6 

[ lnterest expense -· -~---..1·!=-- 8.3j 
Antoni7.ationof0AC 17.7 0.9 1.6 20.2 

r····· -- ---·· · ·-···-----

i]'otal benefits and upenses ... ---· -·- -·--_ 140.9 127.8 91.5 99.5 

Segmentpre-taxadjustcd ~~~~gincome(loss) $ 15.2 $ 23.9 $ 7.1 $ 15.8 $ 

8J.erating_'!_v~n~e~- _ .... - _______________ $ ___ 1~! __ S _ _IS_~:? __ ~--- __ -~8.~ . ~ __ __!1~3 s 

13.2 472.9 ! 
(3.3} ... s __ ss_·'~ 

$ 531.6 : 9.9 

(2.5) 
.. . -- ____ __, 

(5.5) , . ...... Add: Net realized investment gains (losses), excluding~- . . _ (9.8) 9.8 (3.0) 

~~~~~!.•_venues ----· _ -·--·---- 156.1 ___ 141.9 ___ 108.4 ~~~~ ?:4 .... - -~~.:! ! 
Total benefits and expenses 140.9 127.8 91.5 99.5 13.2 472.9 
r - ---- ·· ----- ------ -··-

!!_lc~m~Jloss)_~m operations before ~-~me-~~------ _ ··---· --·- $ 15.2 $ 14.1 $ 16.9 S 12.8 S (5.8) . S 53.2 I 

Premiums 

, _ . _)\let investment income 

Total operating n:ven~s _____ ... - - ----·---····--

_!lencfits ~.!·~~~-••.:. .. -. _ .... -~-----· ... 

For the Three Mou.tbs Ended September 30, 2012 

lkodits 
D•f•rred 
ADauitie:s 

lncomr 

Anouitirs 
Individual 

Life Othtr Total 

I 
· ---- .. · - ·- ··---- - --- ·--- ·- ·- - - ____ ! 

$ $ __ ,44.......;;..9~.:...$_ 

5.5 135.6 100.9 

1.7 

152.3 141.8 102.6 

$ 9 .2 $ $ 154.1 
71:1 ____ . ... (O.s)·--- 3123--i 

------- - ~- --------- ~ 

32.7 5.7 47.1 
- -1 
1.1, 

113.0 4.9 514.6 

.. .. --~-· ------ -- · -- ----·-·· · -------- ----- - - - ------------------~-·-~--- ---· - -- ----- -_, 
r ·-__ Policyholder benefits and claims ____ 94_.2_ __ _ _ .. _ .. _. __ .- ___ _ 16 . ..:.·=2 ___ _ 

:_ __ _l!lter:.._es_t_cr_ed_il_ed___________ ______ -=----- _ 8_5_.~---- ·-- - ~!}.. _____ ~2..:2._. ___ _(~)__ 235.4 j 
I 11.1 

·-----~:2. ______ 1_9:~ 5.4 . __ ..!.~:~ 7.1 88.9 

~ · - · Inter~_s_l_~!'-~nse ---·-·····-- --· · ... . ..... · ·---------· _ -- ·----· -·---- ·- - - -·--- -·- - --· - __ - - ·---··· .. -. _ -:-_~~~-~~~ _ ~ -- ___ 8.2; 
_ .. _ --~~r Wlderwriting and operating expe~ ___ ..... _ 

r--~~zationofOAC ---.·----·-- -·- --·- -- --~-- ---....,...- ____ 1..:.3_.1_ 0.9 3.9 17.9 
~Totalbenefitsan_d~~e_s__ __ _ _____ __ - ··------- l35.6 117.8 94.0 99.2 14.9 461.5 : 

:;e~e_nt _pre-tax adjusted opc:mting income (loss) $ 16.7 ... s_.....;;.24.;.;.;.o;... s 8.6 s 13.8 s c•o.o) s 53.1 

:operating revenues __ -· _ ----~~-$ _ __ . 1_ 5L~ $ ... - _141!__t_ 102.6 $ 113.0 $ 4"9_ ___ L__l_l_~:§ J 
r· -~~!"_c:_~alized investment g~~!lr:sses~xclud~ng F~ __ ·---- __ __:2;.;...4;_ 7.5 (3.4) 7.9 14.4 
-To\31 revenues )52.3 ~---~---~:~ -- . ···-· .l!~:! . -·.· . .!Q?.:~-----~----·-· 529.0.: 
Total benefiiS and expenses __ ....;1:.;;3:.;;5.:..:.6;... 117.8 94.0 99.2 14.9 461.5 

'-~~~~{loss) fro~_()~tio~~f~re i~;-;-=_~;.- . .. - -~-~- -~- :~- . $ 16.7 $ 26.4 $ 16.1 $ 10.4 $ (2.l) $ 67 .S i 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, ncept per share data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, Z013 

Deferred lacame 
Btnt1iU Aauuitin Aaouitin 

,---------------------· ·----- ------------------------------------ ---- ----
Individual 

Life 

Qp_erating~..:_ _______________ ~-·--------------------~--~-----· ____ ___ ----· - __ ___ _ 

Premiums $ 444.0 $ $ $ 26.4 $ 

Otber Total 
I _ ____ ! 

s 470.4 
Ne1 investment income 15.5 424.4 

16.9 

299.0 

2.3 
_ --~ t.s ____ =~lj.}-~~- -- - j~~~] 

Policy fees, contract charges, and other 10.4 
L __ Net realized gains (losses)- FlA - _________ ______ _ -----
Total opcmting revenues 469.9 
r-----------------------~--·----- -- ·----~------------ -------~--- --- -~ -~------···-·--

~~~1$ a.nd_c;(l>~ni_cs: _ _ 

2.0 

443.3 301.3 

101.1 16.0 146.7 

339.0 34.3 

·----2.01 
1,587.8 
-~ 

Policyholder benefits and claims 299.1 0.4 53.7 353.2 r-· ------- ------~~-- ------- ·-- ----------. 
Interest credited -------------- --------- ____ ----~---____ 250.3 ----~_!.!_ ____ ___ 190.4_ _ __ _(~:3) _____ ___ 69~_!_; 

, .. ____ C?therun~~~~gand()~li~!l_CX~enses ---~----- ~- 125.8 64.6 15.7 47.9 20.3 274.3 

lll••~~!~!'lle~~ - - - -- · ____________ -----· ---------·- __ --~-~ :--~~~~~=~:---=-~=--- --------~~l4.~=:~~=~~=~}j 
Amortization of DAC 48.0 2.8 S.S 56.3 

,--------------------···----- --------------------- - .. -----
~T~!_a~benefi_~~~exp~IIS~ - - - --- · ·-· - - ------ __ ·-- -- 424.9 363.3 275.4 297.5 43.7 1,404.8 I 
Scgmcnl pre-la;( adjusted OJ>Crating income (loss) s $ (9.4) $ 183.0 

34.3 $ 1,587.8 ~ 
(0.1) 8.6 

34.2 t,596.4 I 
43.7 1,404.8 

(9.5) s 191.6 : 
;rota!~:~ts-~~~x_p~J1S-~- _________ _ . _____ _ 

!n~m_c_ ~o~ op!rati~ns_beforc ~n~o~e l~cs _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ $ $ $ 72.3 s 45.0 

As of September 30, 2013: 
t··-· ~-··-··- __ ,. ·- . 

L __ !'~~ as~_c~- - .. -· - - . s 160.5 $ 2,329.6 
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CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in millions, except per sbare data, unless otherwise stated) 

(Unaudited) 

Bent lit> 

For the Nlne Months En~ September 30. ZOll 

Deferred 
Anouiti .. 

lo.come 

Anouitles 
lodivldual 

Life Other Total 
I 

----~----- --~---- --------- --- · ____ j 

__ ~o!i_~Y _!:es._contrllct <:h~es: ll!ld other . _ .. _ . __ . . 8.4 15.3 4.9 

i_. _)~1~! rc~~"'!_g_ain~_(l~~·l.~-~~---. ·- ·-·-· ·- ................ . . 1.1 

Total oper.~ting revenues 447.9 421.6 314.4 339.4 23.2 1,546.5 
r ---------~-------------------·-~----------··--~---·· ·. -_ ·- ~~~-~-~-~-~~-=- ___ ! :!!=ne_~~ ~~~P~!s_:._ .. 

Policyholder benefits and claims 271.8 49.0 320.8 

~ Interestcredited ----------==~=~=-_=::_ __ 248.2 ____ ~5_,1_ 193.4 (L~r::·_~- --~?-~X; 
____ C?therund~~~J-~-o~_:a~~gexpenses ________________ _!_1!.0 59.7 17.0 48.9 20.9 264.5 

-~~s~~P~_e_ ______ __ .. .. . .. _ ... ..... _____ • _______ .. _ .. _ .. _ ... ....... . ____ ·-----_ _ -------~-=:~~~-- _ ~~~ ~~~-1-~I~~~ --=-=. 2~~~ 
Amortization of DAC 40.1 2.4 6. 6 49 .I 

[Total beoetits and expenses 
----------------.. ----------:-:-"7""" --------- ----- ----- ----~ 

274.5 297.9 44.0 1,354.2 ! 389.8 348.0 

58.1 _s:~~! ~~-~~«! operat_i~g_in~me_<!_o~------- _s ____ _ $ 73.6 

Epcrating reven~e_s _ _ _ $ 447.9 .$ 421.6 

4.1 

447.9 425.7 
__ ........ !>d_~.:_~~ ~~~~!riVes~c:nt_g~ns Qo_:s:sl:_:_~c.!_u~i~~-1'1~. ____ -----
i:ro_ta_!!~ell_u~~- ___ ____ ...... , .......... ____ --···-------·-· 

_!!ltnl beoclits and expenses __________________ --- _ ...... _. 389.8 348.0 

'~~o~e (loss) from ~pe_r.ni~ns ~fore_in_c_<:r12_•_!~es .. -~ . _ . $ 58.1 $ 77.7 

As of September 30, 2012: 

$ 39.9 $ 41.5 $ (20.8) $ 192.3 _ _____ ....;..........;.. 
s -~~~ --~ -- ·- 33~:~---- $ - ___ 23.2 _J ___ _!2~~-lJ 

7.9 (2.6) 24.5 33.9 ----
322.3 . 

274.5 

$ 47.8 $ 

336.8 47.7 
· -~ ·~-------- ---- -

297.9 44.0 

38.9 $ 3.7 

. ____ 1_.580.~ ~ 

1,354.2 

s 226.2 i 

[~ Total assets------ ----- - -· __ -~-~~==:---==~-S-==wff:=r·j2,_i_!~:~_:_ 't__-1,§_~~--~ $ ~~~}~_._!___!_. ~;fc!~6 ·_ S 29,~]_]_; 
12. Subsequent Events 

On November 5, 2013, the Company declared a dividend of $0.09 per common share, or approximately $10.6 in total, to shareholders of record on 
November 19, 2013. The dividend will be paid on or about December 6, 2013. 
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResulJs of Operations 

This diset4sion contains forward-looking statements that involve risk and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those 
discussed in or implied by any of the forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including but not limited to those listed under 
''Forward-Looking Statements." You should read thefolfowing discussion in conjunction with Item 1- "Condensed Financial Statements ~ included in 
this Form 10-Q. and our Aronual Report for the year ended December 31, 201 2,filed with the SEC on February 26. 2013 (" 2012 10-K"), as well as 
our current reports on Fof711 8-K and other publicly available infof711ation. Our [!Seal year ends on December 31 of each calendar year. 

Management considers certain non-GAAP financial measures, including adjusted operating income; adjusted operating income per common 
share; pre-tax adjusted operating income; adjusted book value; adjusted book value, as converted; adjusted book value per common share: adjusted 
book value per common share, as converted; average adjusted book value; and operating retu171 on average equity (ROAE) to be useful ta investors in 
evaluating our financial peifonnance and condition. These measures have been reconciled to their most comparable GAAP financial measures. For a 
definitiort andfwrther discussion of these non-GAAP measures, see Item 7- "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition- Use of 
non-GAAP Financial Measures" in our 2012 10-K. 

All dollar and share amounts, acept per share data, are in millions unless otherwise stated. 

Overview 

We are a finandal services company in the life insurance indusuy providing employee benefits, annuities and life insurance through a natiooal network 
of benefits consllltants, financial institutions and independent agents and advisers. Our operations date back to 1957 and many of our distribution 
relationships have been in place for decades. 

Our Operations 

We manage our business through three divisions composed of four business segments: 

Benefits Division 

Benefits. We offer medical stop-loss, limited benefit medical and group life and disability income (DI) insurance products and services to 
employers, Wlions, and public agencies. 

Retirement Division 

Deferred Annuities. We offer fixed deferred annuities, including fh:ed indexed annuities (FIA), and variable deferred annuities to consumers 
wbo want to accumulate tax-deferred assets for retirement 

income Annuities. We offer single premiwn immediate annuities (SP!As) to customers seeking a reliable source of n:tirement income or to protect 
ag11inst outliving their assets dwing retirement We also service our block of ~ctured settlement policies and offer funding services options to 
existing structured settlement clients. 

Individual Life Divisiorr 

Individual Life. We offer individual life insurance products such as term and universal life insurance. We also offer institutional products, 
ioduding bank-owned life insurance (BOLl) and variable corporate-owned life insurance (COLI). 

lD additior, we have a fifth segment, referred to as the Other segment, which includes our operations that are not directly related to the operating 
segments. This bcludes small, non-insurance businesses that are managed outside our divisions, such as our broker-dealer entity, as well as investment 
income on \lllallocated surplus, unallocated corporate expenses, interest expense on debt, earnings related to our limited partnership interests and inter-segment 
elimination entries. 

See Note II to the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the financial results of our segments. 

Cu"ent Outlook, Economic Factors and Trends 

Interest raleS are among the most important economic factors we consider in managing the Company and establishing fut~.R strategic direction. During 
July and Augustof2013, the benchmark ioterest rate (10-year U.S. Treasury yield) continued an upward trnjectory beiWJ in second quarter, until reversing 
course in late September. The improved interest rate environment 
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during most of the quarter, coupled with expanded distribution, helped drive sales growth of our fixed deferred annuities, including fixed indexed annuities. 
We expect strong sales of fixed deferred annuities to continue in the fourth quarter. 

We continue to experience downward pressure on our asset yields. Yields on new asset purchases in the third quarter, though generally improved from 
the first halfof2013, remain low relative 10 historical rates, and we continue to face difficulties finding an adequate supply of investments that meet our 
quality standards. Against this backdrop, we are investing new deposits from strong annuity sales and reinvesting cash flows from significant levels of 
investment prepayments, as well as scheduled cash flows from our investment portfolio. We received prepayment-related fee income of $44.9 during the nine 
months ended September 30, 2013, compared to $13.9 in the same period in 2012. The majority of this activity was related to our corporate bond 
prepayments, as bonds with a total amortized cost of $434.7 were called through September 30, 2013. We expect prepayments 10 continue during this low 
interest rate environment To help maintain our yields, we continue to pursue originations of commercial mortgage loans that we underwrite, and we have 
modestly increased our investments in foreign seeurities. For further discussion of our investment results and portfolio refer to· "Invesunents." 

The products we sell through our Benefits division are experiencing heightened competition, particularly price competition, which may constrain our 
ability 10 grow. Market participants, including major health insurers, appear to be increasing their focus on medical stop-loss. In the group life and Dl 

marketplace, we are seeing less movement of existing business between carriers. We believe this competitive environment is, at least in part, a result of 
health care reform as employers are focused on implementation of the provisions of the Affordable Care Act We are staying disciplined and are focused on 
underwriting and pricing our products and services in alignment with our established pricing targets. 

We continue to focus on the strategies outlined in Item I ·"Business- Our Strategies" in our 2012 10-K. Our 2013 focus includes profitabh: growth of 
our core businesses and executing on our strategic initiatives. We believe we have adequate levels of capital to suppon our priorities -organic growth, 
transactional growth and capital actions. Organic growth remains our top priority, and we are pleased with the increase in deferred annuity sales during the 
quarter. Capital actions include our stock repurchase program that began in February 2013; however, we did not repurchase common stock during third 
quarter 20 I 3 and only expect to be opportunistic buyers of our common stock in the fourth quarter. 

In addition to the matters described herein, we continue to be affected by the economic factors and trends described in Item 7 - "M~agement's 
Discussion and Analysis of financial Condition and Results of Operations- Overview" of our 2012 10-K. 

The success of our business and the successful execution of our strategies may be affected by the factors discussed in Item lA- "Risk Factors" in our 
2012 10-K and other factors as discussed berein. We continually monitor developments that affect our business. 

Critical Accounting PoUcies and Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with U.S. GAAP requires management to adopt accounting policies and make estimates and 
assumptions that affect amounts reported and disclosed in the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements. In applying the Company's 
accounting policies, management makes subjective and complex judgments that frequently require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain. Many 
of these policies, estimates and related judgments are common in the insurance arid financial services industries; others are specific to the Company's 
businesses and Optilltions. For all of these policies, we caution that future events rarely develop exactly as forecasted, and our best estimates may require 
adjustment. 

The following accounting policies are those we consider to be particularly critical to understanding our condensed fmancial statements because their 
application places the most significant demands on our ability to judge the effect of inherently uncertain matters on our financial results: 

The valuation of investments at fair value; 
The evaluation of other-than-temporary impairments (OlTI} of investments; 
The balance, recoverability and amonization of deferred policy acquisition costs {DAC) and deferred sales inducements {DSI); and 
The liabilities for future policy benefits and policy and contract claims. 

There bave been no material changes to the critical accounting estimates listed above, which are described in Item 7-"Management's Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations- Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and Note 2 of the notes to the audited consolidated 
financial statements included in our 2012 10-K. 
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New Accounting Standards 

For a discussion of recently adopted and not yet adopted accounting pronouncements, see Note 2 to the accompanying unaudited interim condensed 

consolidated financial statements. 

Sources of Revenues and Expeases 

Our primary sources of revenues from our insurance operations are premiums, net investment income and policy fees and contract charges. We also 
generate net realized investment gains (losses), primarily on sales or impairment of our investments, and changes in fair value on our equity trading portfolio 
and derivative financial ins!nlments. Our primary sources of expenses from our insurance operations are policyholder benefits and claims, interest credited to 
policyholder reserves and account balances, and general business and operating expenses, net of DAC deferrals. We allocate shared service operating expenses 
to each segment using multiple factors, including employee headcount and time study-results. 

Each of our four business segments maintains its own portfolio of invested assets, which are managed in accordance with specific guidelines. The net 
investment income and realized investment gains (losses) are reported in the segment in which they occur. We also allocate surplus net investmeni income to 
each segment using a risk-based capital formula. The unallocated portion of net investment income is reported in the Other segment. Investment expenses, 
which are recorded as a reduction of net investment income, are allocated to each segment based on its portfolio of invested assets. 

For a full description of each source of revenue and expense, see Item 7- "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations-Sources of Revenues and Expenses" in our 2012 10-K. 

Use or non-GAAP Fina11cial Measures 

Certain tables and related disclosures in this report include non-GAAP financial measures. We believe these measures provide. useful information to 
investors in evaluating our financial performance or condition. The non-GAAP financial measures discussed below arc not substitUtes for their most directly 
comparable GAAP measures. The adjustments made to derive these non-GAAP measures are important to UJiderstanding our overall results of operations and 
financial position and, if evaluated without proper context, these non-GAAP measures possess material limitations. Therefore, our management and board .of 
directors also separately review the items excluded from or added to the most directly comparable GAAP measures to arrive at these non-GAAP measures. In 
addition, management and our board of directors also analyze each of the comparable GAAP measures in connection with their review of our results of 
operations and financial position. 

For a full description of each non-GAAP measure, see Item 7 - "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations- Use ofnon-GAAP Financial Measures" in our 2012 10-K. 

Asoi As of 
September 30, 2013 December 31, 2011. 

C~~~-;~~!ch~ide;s-:-~q~i_~- -~- -- ~ ----~~~:-~--~~ ~-~~~ _- ----~----- ~-- _-_~:~------~-- -~---~~~-:-~=-s ___ ---c-_3,'"""o_u_._8 _ _ .!_ _ _ ___ - -~·~~~eLl 
Less: accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) 719.0 I ,371.2 

r-·--· ------- .. 
~A:djusted book value• ______ . _____ -.- _______ .. ... ___ _________ 2_,,,_2'-93:...·.::...8_ _ _____ 2,258J.J 

Add: Assumed pro~eds from exercise of warrants -----·------ __ .. ___ ____ ___ _ __ 218.1 

~Adj~~~-~~~ value, as converted* - · ___ _ .. _ _ _ . _ _ _ ... . . __ _ ...... _______ s ____ 2...;,~2_93_._8 __ s _____ 2.:.,,4_7_7...;..o_.: 

Bookvaluepercommonshare_Q) _____________________ ___ __ .... $ 25.58 $ 26.29 

!Adjusted book value ~_£o_mm.on share (~t__ ____________ . .. __________ ___ ···· - ______ $ 19.47 $ 18.97 : 

Adjusted book value per common share, as converted (3)• $ 19.47 $ 17.94 --------
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.Return on stockholders' equity, or ROE 
Net income (4) 
!Average stockholders' eq~tyj~) __________ _ 

_ Operating return on average equity, or ROAE• 

~~justed operating income~------------· 
Average adjusted book value (7)• 

• Represents a non-GAAP mc:\SW'e. 

$ 

For the Twelve Month• Ended 

SC'ptember 30, 
2013 

5.5% 
187.3 $ 

Dtcembull, 
2012 

6_.Jo;. i 
205.4 

(I) Book value per common shore is calculated as stockholders' equily divided by the sum of common shares outstanding and shares subject to warrants in the periods lhey were 
outstanding. These shares totaled 117.800 and 138.064 as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The warrants were net-share settled on June 20, 2013, 
resulting in the issuance ofS.298 shares of common stock. 

(2) Adjusted book value per common share is calculated as adjusted book value divided by common shares outstanding totaling 117.800 and 119.088 as of Seplcmber 30, 2013 and 
D<eemb<T 31, 2012, respectively. 

(3) Adjusted book value per common share, as converted, is calculated as adjusted book value. as converted divided by the sum of common shares outstanding and shares subject 

to warrants in the periods they wen: outstanding. These shares totaled 117.800 and 138.064 as of September 30, 2013 and D<ecmber31, 2012, respectively. The warrants were 
net-share senled on June 20, 2013, resulting in the issuance of 5.298 shares of common stock. As of September 30, 2013 this measure is equivalent to adjusted book value per 

share. 
(4) Net income for the most Tttect twelve monlhs is used in lhe calculotion of ROE. For the twelve monlhs ended September 30, 2013, this consisted of quarterly net income of 

$45.3, $45.0, $66.0 and S31.0. 
(5) Ending stockholder's equity balances for the most recent five quarters are used in the calculation of ROE. As of September 30, 201 3, stockholder's equity for the most recent 

five quaners wu $3,012.8, $3,040.1, $3,604.2, $3,630.1 and $3,641.2. As of December 31, 2012 , stockholder's equity for the most recent five quarters was $3,630.1, 

S3,64l.2, SJ,J78.4, $3,154.7, and $3,114.9. 
(6) Adjusted operating income for the most recent twelve months is used in the calculation of operating ROAE. For the twelve months ended September 30, 2013, Ibis consisted of 

quarterly adjusted oponting income of $48.9, $51.4, $50.4 and $32.9. Adjusted operating income consists of net income, less afkr.taJt net realized gains (losses), plus after­
tax net realized and unreal~ gains (losses) related to our FIA producl For the twe lve months ended September 30, 2013, the net quarterly ~nciling amounts to arrive at 

net income were $(3.6), $(6.4), $15.6 and $(1.9). For the twelve months ended ~mber 31 , 2012, adjusted operating income was $ 185.3, with a net reconciling amount of 

520.1 to anive at net income. 
(7) Emling adjusted book values for the most recent five quarters are used in the calculation of opemting ROAE. Adjusted book value consists of stockholders' equity, less AOCJ. 

As of September 30, 2013, adjusted book value for the most recent five quarters was $2,293.8, $2,257.5, $2,311.1, $2,258.9 and $2,236.9 AOCl. for lhe most recent 
five quarters was $719.0. $782.6, $1.293.1. $1.371.2 and Sl.404.3. As of December 31, 2012, adjusted book value of the most recent five quaners was $2,258.9, 
$2,236.9, $2,190.4, $2,154.6 and $2,087.6. AOCI, for the most recent five quarters was $1,371.2, $1,404.3, Sl , 188.0. Sl,OOO.l and Sl,027 .3. 
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Results of Operations 

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements and the related 

condensed notes. 

Total Company 

Set forth below is a sununary of our consolidated fanancial results. The variances noted in the total company and segment tables should be interpreted as 
increases or (decrease~), respectively. 

For I be Thr .. Mouths Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

QTD 
Vatianu(%) 

2013 vs. 2012 

For the Nine Moutbs Ended 
~ptember JO, 

2013 Zt)IZ 

YTD 
Varinuu(%) 

20l3 n . 2012 

L .. Reve!'ues_:_ ____ -· .. ··-· _ --·· __ _______ ·--·· . ------· ..... . - ··--. ____ ____ _.] 
Pmniurns 154.t 1.2% $ 470.4 $ 451.2 4.3% -··-- ________ ... __ .... _______ s ___ 1_56-'.o--'-s 

326.4 
--·------------·-------- --....... ___ .................. _ ....... .......... -. - 1 

312.3 4.5 968.7 · - 952.0 -. _______ l.!.___ _ _j 
r---------

Net investmmt income 

Policy fees. contract charges, and other 48.3 47.1 2.5 146.7 142.2 3.2 

I .. ~ -- -N~~ ~~~ i~~~~ent gains (losses) 
-~------------~ -----·-------· 

--~------------------~·~~---

(4.6) 15.5 . 
-----'---'-

___ ,o_.6 _____ J5_o_~-~~~=~ __c-~--~-L] 
526.1 529.0 (0.5) _1_.:_,5_9_6_.4 ____ 1 ,580.4 1.0 

~----~~~~~=----·--- --- -·-- --·-~=~~~~~--:=-J 
,....... Policyholder t>enefits ~-d clai~---·- _ _ 

i Interest credited 

Other underwriting and operating expenses r - ------~------- -
. . .. --~rest ~pens< ··- -·-·- -----· 

20.2 
---·---·--·---- -------------

17.9 12.8 56.3 49.1 14.7 ~--.. -~!'!~ti_~u_o_!"_~_eferred policy acquisition costs 

l !_o_~1~·~~ ~-~Jl<~~------· .. 472.9 461.5 2.5 1,404.8 1,354.2 ---- -. -~ iLJ 
[noomc from operatons before income taxes 53.2 67.5 (21.1) 191.6 226.2 (15.3) r ......... -· --- ........ ---·-· 

~~~--~~i!~o~.r~!~n:?.~!-~~~s- _ ... --------- - ----- 7.9 12.3 ______ s~ 35.3 51.8 --·- --~3_1_ .. ~)-- _) 
$ 45.3 s 55.2 $ 156.3 $ 174.4 (10.4)% Nc' income 

( ·- -·- ·-·· __ (~7~9~ 
~--~~-~-·~·--

' ,N~t i'!~o_m~ ~-~rr!"~~~J!L. __ _ ...... · -- __ _. .. -- ---· - · _ .. .. .... .... ... _____ ---·---- ·- .. ..... ________ ! 

Basic 0.38 _______ 0._40 ______________ <~:?~'11, _____ ---· 1.21 .... . _1_2~ ____ (40)%_. 

[~~u~~d·_~-- ~-~...::--=-:-=~: ______________ -~---~- :.~--==-~-0.38~~~-::~- _ ---~·~.Q __ _ .. J~:QL_ .. __ . .. ...... .. !~~----·-·-· ___ 1.26_ ........... . ... J~L _ 
Weighled-average <ommo.n shares outstanding: 
r ------ -~------ ---------------------------~-~-·-------- ------------- . ----- --------------------------·-
L __ B~s_i:___ __ , __ ·-·--·-·-- .... .. .... _. ___ .. __________ 1_1~---··· . .!~8.091 ___ ____ . .. .. J~!>!o __ - ·-.. ...!.~~-~---·-!_37:9~~ .. __ ·-· __ . l~E!.J 

1
_ Dilultld ·- ---·-·- _ -----·-·----- _112.8~'!, ____ __!~~~~----- ----~~Z2.. _______ 1_!-~~?~ __ ... ---~~9~-. ···- .. ____ (~:~)--, 
No...CAAP Finand•l Measures: i 

... -·--··--- - --- ···- ·---~--~---- -- -------- ------~---- ------- --------------- - --- -- - - ------- ~.-- · - - - - -·---- ---- ----·....1 
Adjustedoperatingincomc S 48.9 S 45.9 6.5 o/0 $ 150.7 $ 152.4 (1.1)% 

~,\:dj~;.:'!~ec!ll~i~~~~~~mmonsh;:--=~---------------------------~~~=~~----- - ------~-------------=~--:=:-::J 
Basic 0.42 0.33 27.3% 1.16 1.10 5.5% 

Diluted _ _ _ ___ 0.4_2 __ ·-··--- - ~2.~ --- .. _ ____ 2_7~ .. · - -

'Net income ______ . . .. _____ .... - .. -··--·--·----.-S-·-· 

------·----- ... ---- ------· -··· - -~- ~ --~----.-· ·-.--- -- -·. 
s 45.3 55.2 $_l.z:?)_ __ .! ___ -- 156.3 174 .4 .J!~·~L.J 

Less: Net realized investment gains (losses) (net of taxes 

--~$(1~). ~5.4, $3 7 and s_~ - --· -· · .. 
Add: Net realit.ed gains (losses)- FIA (net of taxes of 

(3.0) JO.J 6.9 22.8 (69.7) 
- I 

I 

1 - ... ~'!_,), S0.3,S0.7~U~d SO.Jt_ ____ ----·- 0.6 0.8 ·- ·---~'!.l- 1.3 0 .8 62.5 ' 
152.4 (I. I)% 48.9 s 45.9 ---- 6.5% Adjusted operating income $ s 150.7 $ 

• 
(I) 

----
Represt:nls percentage variances that arc not meaningful or are explained through lhc d iscussion of other variances . 

Basic net incom~ and adjusted operating income per comrn<m share include all participating securities using !.he tw<H:lass method. Diluted nel income and adjusted operating 
income per coJlllllon share include the dilutive impact of non-participating securities, based on the application of the treasury stock method. Sbares included in these calculations 
were weiYtted for the portion ofthc period they were outstanding. Antidilutive awards were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share. Historically, our 
outstandir.g ~ts were coDJidered participating securities and included in basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding. For the thne and nine months 
ended September 30, 2013, these measures reflect the net-share settlement of the warrants on June 20, 2013. resulting in the issuance of 5.298 comm011 shares. 
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The following table sets forth pre-tax adjusted operating income, by segment: 

For the nree J\tonths Endtd 
Soplombor 30, 

2013 2012 

QTD 
Variaott (01.) 

2013 vs. 2012 

For tbo Nine Months E•ded 
Septrmbrr 30, 

2013 2012 

YTO 
Variaoeo (%) 

2013 vs. 2011 

~g.ment pre-to adjusted Gpera_~~l; ~~~!._~~ ~-~~).:_. _______ ------------------ ------~--~---~----------~------- -··- - - _ __ ______ _ _________ j 
Benefits·--·-·------ $ !~2-~- ____ ~~·? _______ (9~~)% S 45.0 $ 58.1 (22.5)% 

Defened Annuities 23.9 ~~:0 _ _ ___ ______ J0.4) ___ so:(~ ------ru-::~=--=·- 8.7 .=l 
Income Annuities --~------ _____ ii~:~l ____ _____ 25.9 39.9 (35.1) 

1 __ lndividu•ll,:~ ____ _ _ _ ___ _ __ _ I_~·! ___ _ __ . 14.5 _ __ - ------ - ~~-S ~:~·-4j_5---~=--=-~ 
Other (10.0) (67.0) (9.4) (20.8) (54.8) 

:Pre-tax ad!_usted o~ting_incom_e {I) S 183.0 $ 192.3 ~~-~--=-=-('1_:8)% ] 53.1 10.5% s 
-----------

Add: Net realized investment gains (losses), excluding 
FIA 14.4 

67.5 
' --- --·-- · ··- -·---· ·----'---'- -----
~~~me from o~rations before in_c_o~~~-laJ(~~ ·.- ___ .. _ _ S 

• ----------
____ (~_3)% 

• Represents percentage variances that ""' not meaningful or are explained through lhe discussion of other variances. 
( 1) Represents a oon-GAAP measure. 

s 

Three Months Ended September 30, lOJJ Compared to tiJe Three Montl1s Ended September 10, 1011 

Summary of Results 

8.6 

191.6 $ 

33.9 

226.2 
_Q4~­
(15}~_1 

Net income decreased $9. 9, as a result ofpre·taX net realized investment losses in third quarter 2013, compared with gains for third quarter i012. This 
was partially offset by higher pre-tax adjusted operating income and a lower provision for income taxes. 

Net realized investment losses for third quarter 2013 were $4.6, compared to gains of$15.5 in third quarter 2012. The decline stemmed primarily from 
lower mark-to-market gains on our equity trading portfolio. For further discussion of our investment results and portfolio refer to- "Investments." 

The effective tax rate, which was I 4.8% for third quarter 2013 compared to 18.2% for the same period in 20 12, declined due to an increase in benefits 
from our taX credit investments. Quarterly, we adjust our provision to reflect our estimated annual effective tax rate. For the full year 2013, we expect our 
effective tax rate to be approximately I 8%. 

Further discussion of adjusted operating income drivers: 

Pre-tax adjusted operating income increased $:5.6 from third quarter 2012. In addition to the segment drivers discussed below. results include the net 
impact of prepayment-related investment income, which added $13.2 to income in third quarter 2013. This consisted of investment income totaling $18.6 
(primarily bond make-whole premiums from investments in our Deferred Annuities segment), partially offset by $5.4 of related DAC and DSI amortization. 
In third quarter 2012, we received $4.2 of prepayment-related income with no related amortization. Prepayment-related fees increase current period investment 
income; however, reinvestment of the proceeds and other cash flows generated by our portfolios at current market rates will result in lower investment income 
and overall yields in the future. If interest rates rise, investment prepayments may decrease and opportunities to reinvest cash flows at higher rates will 
improve. 

Additionally, we perfonn our annual unlocking during the third quarter, which includes a comprehensive review of actuarial assumptions used for 
estimates of future gross profits underlying the amortization of deferred acquisition costs, deferred sales inducement assets and certain reserves related to life 
insurance products. Among other factors, these actuarial assumptions include future investment yields, interest spreads, mortality, expenses and lapses. 
Changes to these future assumptions result in adjustments that increase or decrease assets and liabilities amortized based on estimated gross profits. Annual 
unlocking chMges totaled $2.3 in third quarter 2013, driven by changes in our future investment yield and lapse assumptions, compared with $3.9 of 
unlocking charges in third quarter 2012. 

Our Benefits segment's profitability decreased $1.5 for the three months ended September 30,2013, compared with the same period in 2012, due to a 
less favorable loss ratio. The loss ratio for third quarter 2013 was 67.3%, compared to 65.5% for third quarter 2012. 
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Our Deferred Annuities segmenl's profitability was essentially unchanged due to higher invesonent income from prepayment-related activity, which 
offset higher non-deferrable distribution costs related to our significant increase in sales, and the impact of annual unlocking. 

Our Income Annuities segment's profitability decreased S 1.5 driven by lower mortality gains. 

Our Individual Life segment's profitability increased $2.0, driven by higher prepayment-related income and a favorable impact from unlocking. This 
was partially offset by higher BOLl claims. 

Our Other segment's losses decreased $6.7 primarily due to higher net invesonent income, compared with net invesonent losses in third quarter 2012. 

Nine Months Ended September 30, 10JJ Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 10, 1012 

Summary of Results 

Net income decreased $18.1 primarily as a result of lower pre-tax adjusted operating income and lower net realized invesonent gains. These were 
partially offset by a $16.5 decrease in the provision for inwme taxes on lower pre-tax earnings and a lower effective tax rate. The effective tax rate declined to 
18.4% for the nine months ended September 30,2013 from 22.9% for the same period in 2012 due to an increase in benefits from our tax credit invesonents. 
We expect our full-year 2013 effective tax rate to be approximately 18%. 

Net realized invesonent gains for the nine months ended September 30,2013 decreased $24.4 compared to the nine months ended SeptemberJO, 2012. 
The decrease was driven by net losses on sales in our fixed maturity portfolio, which were $9.4 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared to 
net gains of $26.1 for the same period in 2012. This was partially offset by higher net equity gains and an improvement in impairments on our fixed 
marurities. For funher discussion of our invcsonent results and portfolio refer to- "lnvesonents." 

Further discussion of adjusted operating income drivers: 

~-tax adjusted operating income declined $9.3 from the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Segment results discussed below include prepayment­
reiated investment income of $30.7. which wnsisted of $44.9 of net invesonent income related to invesonent prepayments. partially offse.t by $14.2 of related 
DAC and DSI amortization. In the nine months ended September 30,2012, we received $13.9 of prepayment-related income with no related amortization. 

Our Benefits segment's profitability decreased $13.1 for the nine months ended September 30,2013, compaced with the same period in 2012. This was 
driven by a higher Joss ratio on our medical stop-loss business and higher operating expenses primarily related to the expansion of ow- group life and DI 
business. The loss ratio increased to 67.4% for the nine months ended September 30,2013, compared to 64.2% for the same period in 2012. 

Ow- Deferred Annuities segment's profitability increased $6.4 due to higher income from investment prepayments, which was partially offset by lower 
spreads on ow- traditional fll(cd deferred annuity business. 

Our Income Annuities segment's profitability decreased $14.0 driven by lower mortality gains and a lower interest margin. 

Our Individual Life segment's profitability remained flat, as favorable impacts of prepayment-related income and annual unlocking in 2013 were offset 
by higher claims on our BOLl block of business and smaller contributions from our decreasing block of term life business. 

Our Other segment's losses decreased $11.4 primarily due to higher net invesonent income. 

Segment Operating Results 

The results of operations and selected operating metrics for ow- three divisions composed of five segments (Benefits, Deferred Annuities, Income 
Annuities, Individual Life and Other) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 20 13 and 2012 are set forth in the following sections. 
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Benefits 

The following table sets forth the results of operations relating to our Benefits segment: 

For lbo ThrM l\tonlbs Eodod 

September 30. 

2013 2012 

QTD 
Variall<e(%) 

2013 vs. 2012 

For tb~ Nlne Mootb• Ended 
September 30. 

201l 2012 2013 Y!, 2012 

[_ Qp_e~~ni;~~E~~~---- -~~~~-~--~--~---=~--:~~-------~-~------- __________ -------~--------------· ______________ ] 
Premiums 147.4 $ 144.9 1.7% 

c_ Net investment income 5.2 

Policy fees, contrnct charges, and other 

Benefits and expenses: ------------------ ------------ ------- --------------·-·· --- -·--. 
L___ Policyholder benefits ond daims _2_9_9.) _______ 27L8 __________ !~-~- __ j 99.2 94.9 4.5 

---- - - -~- ------------
Oth.,- undeJWriting and operating expenses 41.7 40.7 2.5 125.8 118.0 6.6 

C}-~tal b~e6ts-~~;p~nse•=--=-=~---~- __ _ ---- ---42-4-.9- 389.8 -=-~~-~-~:-9ji "] ---- ----~ ----.,--

140.9 135.6 3.9 ---- --------- ---·--
Segment pre-tax adjusted operating income $ 15.2 $ 16.7 (9.0)% $ 45.0 $ 58.1 __ _..;..._ (22.5)% 

The following table sets forth selected historical operating metrics relating to our Benefits segment for the three and nine months ended: 

For the Three Months Ended 

September 30, 
For the Nine Jltontbs Ended 

September 30, 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

_!.oss_ratio ('l__ _________ ~----------------.----------- 67.3% --- ______ 65 5~ ----- ---~1.4'1~-- --- ---- - -64.1%
1 

Expenseratio(2) ~----------------------- -- · ------ 28.1 27.9 28.2 27.8 

Combinedratio(3) -------------------------------· 95.4 93.4 95.6 92.0 I 

-~•d_i:aJ_~oR:"I~_=;_--::_1?~rati~i~L __ --------------------------------·-----~~~--__ -_·!_- -- -----~-- --63_61_-_~J_-___ ~---_--__ -__ . _--~~s __ -_-s_--__ - ___ -_-_ 1 __ 643_3 ___ -.-76·_--_l 
T~tal sai~_(Sl_ __ _ ________________ ------------·---- __ $_ _ _____ }.~-~ _ _ _ _ _106:!_ _ 

(I) Loss mtio represents policyholder benefits and daims inCWTe<l divided by premiums earned. 
(2) Expense ratio j5 equal to olhcr underwriting and opcnulng £:xpcnses ofuw jnsunlnCt opcnnions divlded by pTCm.iwn:i eumc:d. 

(3) Combined ratio is equal to the sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio. 
(4) Meditsl stop-loss -loss ratio "'presents mcdital stop-1o•s policyholder benefits and claims incurred divided by medical stop-loss premiums earned. 
(S) Total soles represents onnualizcd fir.~t-year premiums net offir.1t year policy lapses. 

Three Months Ended September JO, 10JJ Compared to rhe Three Months Ended September JO, 1011 

Summary of Results 

Benefits' pre-talt adjusted operating income decreased $1.5, driven by a higher loss ratio. The Joss ratio increased to 67.3% for the three months ended 
September 30,2013, compared to 65.5% for the same period in 2012. Loss ratios can vary widely from period to period, and we expect the full-year 2013 loss 
ratio will be a couple percentage points above the high end of our target range of 63o/o-65%. We have taken pricing action that we anticipate will reduce the loss 
ratio to target levels in 2014, as we continue to manage our medical stop-loss business for profitabilily. 

In addition to the drivers discussed above, we consider the following information useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Revenue.s 

Premiums increased $2.5, the result of growth in our group life and Dlline of business. 

Benefits and Expenses 

Policyholder benefits and claims increased $4.3 driven by higher claims frequency in our medical stop-loss business and higher group life and Dl 
claims due to growth in the line of business. 

The $1.0 increase in other underwriting and operating expenses was, as expected, driven by expenses from the expansion of our group life and Dl 
business. 
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Sales 

Sales for lhird quarter totaled $19.0; compared to sales of $313 for lhe same period in 2012. Medical stop-loss sales declined $12.1, reflecting a 
competitive market and our focus on achieving adequate pricing on new and renewal medical stop-loss business. 

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 

Summary of Results 

Segment pre-tax adjusted operating income decreased $13.1, primarily the result of a higher loss ratio and increased operating expenses. The loss ratio 
increased to 67.4% forlhe nine monlhs ended September 30,2013, compared to 64.2% for lhe same period in 2012. 

In addition to the drivers discussed above, we consider lhe following infonnation useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Revenues 

Premiums increased $20.7 driven by growth of our group life and 01 business and strong post-January medical stop-loss sales in 2012. 

Benefits and Expenses 

Policyholder benefits and claims increased $27.3 driven by growth in our medical stop loss business and higher claims ITequency. Also contributing to 
the increase were higher group life and OJ claims due to the growth in this line of business and higher limited benefit medical claims. 

The $7.8 increase in other underwriting and operating expenses was driven by expenses to suppon lhe expansion of our group life and Dl business. 

Sales 

Sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 totaled $106.8, compared to sales of $133.6 forthe same period in 2012. Medical stop-loss sales 
declined $32.2, reflecting a competitive market. This was panially offset by an $11.4 increase in group life and 01 sales as we focused on this market. 

Deferred Annuities 

The following table sets forth the resu Its of operations relating to our Deferred Annuities segment: 

For tbe Tbrn Months En dod 
September 30, 

2013 201% 

QTD 
Voriancc (%) 

lOlJ ~s.lOU 

For the Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

2013 1012 

YTD 
Variance ('Yo) 

2013 vs. 2012 

,, . .., _____ ---- ------- i 
Net investment income $ 145.0 $ 135.6 6.9% $ 424.4 $ 405.2 4.7% 

··-- -- ------------------ -- -~ ---- ------- --------- -------
: -.~ .. PoE•>:_f~~!,_C.~~~~~g~~_,_~_d ~tit~. 5_.8 .•..•• _ · ·- 5.1 13.7 16.9 

·-·-- . ····-· . ···- ... --.. ·- . -.... ... , 
15.3 10.5 . --- --- -----

-~~~~~~.~~S!.o~~~l-:f~ 0.9 1.1 ...•.. <1~.:.2L... 2.0 ____ 1_.1:- -·· ·· · ---· · 
.!~~1 op•~-ri~g-~e~nues ______ . .. __ .. --· __ 151.7 14l·L-.••. ·- - __ ~ .... ··-- ·-- __ ._:'·43.~. .. 421.6 .. -······ · ... . 5_.1_ J 

81.8 

.B~•.fi!$_!-:"d_ exy_~~.·~ ... ···-·· .. .. ·- .. ····--- ___ -- -------- ·-- ·--. _ ··-··---· _ __ _ ---- · --·------· _. ·--·· . .. ____ _ _ __ ., __ -·-·-··· .... --- - ----- - -- . -- 'l 

•... J~li~yll-~l.d~rbe_ne!i~.~dc.!_~l!:ls --~ ----------~~--- ______ -----·~ ----~-~-~-·-------- _ --- · - --· - · 
Jnrcnsr credited 

:·-.. '?E!~-.~-~~!;;g~ a~_?P~~~~ ~~~n~~~. 
... ~o~~~n.~f.~_:f~p~~9'~C9..11£si_t~~~sts 

: . . !?~ ~n!!its a.~c!..·!-~~_!!~ .. 
Segment pre-In adjusted operating i~come 

86.6 85.2 16 250.3 248.2 0.8 

. -- --.- ~3 ... ~ - J9.~. . . . 1?.5_ - . ·· ·-. ~·~ ... . ~~~-.~. ~2:1::· --·. ··~.-.. -~:2 . .J 
17.7 13.1 35.1 48.0 40.1. 19.7 

---12;.;.7;.;..s_ 117.8 -·---- :·~·~~II=·~~ 363.3 348.o · :.·-·:-·.· :~·:~:4_.] 
$ 23.9 $ 24.0 (0.4)% S 80.0 $ 73.6 8.7o/o ..;..,_ __ _ 

• Represents percentage variances that are nor meaningful or are explained through the discussion of other variances . 
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The following table sets forth selected historical operating metrics relating to our Deferred Annuities segment as of, or for the three and nine months 
ended: 

for the ThrH Mootbs Ended 
September JO, 

for the Nine Months Endod 
September 30, 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

_Fixed account values, excluding FIA -General account s 10,790.0 s 10,722.9 ---~---------~ ' 
,F~~~~o"!!!t_;-a__!_ues,_!I~-~G~_e~! account _____ _ 
!~llriable account values- Separate account 

Interest spread (I) 

1,_3~L~ 
792.3 

2.05% 

264.3 

734.3 

1.83% 2.08% 1.88% 
~------ ----------------

~~~~· ~m_ec!_yi~l~-- ----- --------·--------·-· - --------~~- ___ 4.~ - - ------~5------------~'~7_: 
_!lase credited yield 2.88 3.04 2.87 3.03 

Base interest spread(~_)--------------------- 1.72% ------ 1.78% 1.78% 1.84~~ 

Total sales(3) $ 747.1 $ 166.5 $ 1,510.6 $ 845.8 

(I) lnterestsprud excludes FIA and is the difference between the net investment yield and the credited rate to policyholder,;. The net investment yield is the approximate yield on 
invested assets. The credited mte is the appro><imate Tiltt credited on policyholder fi><ed account values. Interest credited is subject to contractual terms, including minimum 
gu~rnnu,es. 

(2) Base interest spread excludes FIA and is the interest spread adjusted to exclude items that can vary significantly from period to period due to a number of facton; and, 
therefore, may conlribute to results that are not indicative of the underlying trends. This is primarily the impact of asset prepayments, such as bond make-whole premiums net of 
related deferred sales inducement amortization, and the MBS prepayment speed adjustment 

(3) Total sales represent deposits for new policies net of first year policy lapses and/or surrenders. 

Three Montlls Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 1012 

Summary of Results 

Segment pre-tax adjusted operating income decreased $0.1, essentially unchanged from third quarter 2012. Prepayment-related income was $7.4, net of 
related amortization, in the third quarter of20l3, compared to $2.6 in the third quarter of2012. This was offset by increased distribution expenses driven by 
significantly higher sales, as well as the impact of annual unlocking. Annual unlocking adjustments decreased pre-tax adjusted operating income by $3.5 in 
the third quarter 20 13 compared to $1.2 in the third quarter 20 12. 

In addition to the drivers discussed above, we consider the following information useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Revenues 

Net investment income increased $9.4, driven by $12.6 of prepayment-related income received in the !bird quarter of 20 I 3, compared to $2.6 received 
in the third quarter of2012. Investment income also benefited from an increase in average invested assets due to higher account values, primarily related to 
growth in our FIA business. This was offset by lower portfolio yields, which was the result of lower yields on recent fixed maturity purchases and commercial 
mortgage loan originations, and prepayments ofbigher yielding assets. 

Benefits and E.r:penses 

Interest credited increased $I .4 when compared to third quarter of 2012 as a result of higher interest from growth in our FIA account value and increased 
DSI amortization. Increased DSI amortization was driven by annual unlocking and amortization due to third quarter 20 I 3 prepayment-related investment 
income. These were partially offset by lower interest credited on trnditional deferred annuities, reflecting disciplined pricing on new business and management 
of renewal crediting rates on existing business in !he low interest rate environment. 

Unlocking related to prepayment-related investment income and annual unlocking also drove the increase in DAC amortization. 

Other underwriting and operating expenses increased $3.8, primarily related to non-deferrable distribution expenses from higher sales. 

Sales 

Deferred Annuities' sales increased significantly, to $747.1 for the three months ended September 30,2013 compared to $166.5 for the same period in 
2012. This was primarily the result of higher sales of our FIA product, which increased to $448.2 
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in lhe third quarter of2013 compared to $43.2 in lhe lhird quarter of2012. Expanded bank distribution and more favorable interest rates drove the FIA sales 
growth. More favorable interest rates also spurred higher sales of traditional fiXed deferred annuities, which increased by $175.9. Sales are key to our efforts 
to grow our business and an important component of net cash flows. Although sales do not significantly affect current period pre-tax adjusted income, they are 
an important indicator of future profitability. 

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Nine Months Ended Septenrber 30, 2012 

Summary of Results 

Segment pre-tax adjusted operating income increased $6.4, primarily driven by higher investment income from prepayment-related activity. Prepayment­
related income was S 18.1, net of related amortization, for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared to $4.8 in the same period of 20 12. This was 
partially offset by lower base spreads on our traditional fiXed deferred annuity business and higher non~eferrable distribution expenses related to increased 
FlA sales. 

In addition to the drivers discussed above, we consider the following information useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Re11enues 

Net investment income increased $19 .2, driven by $31.9 of prepayment-related income received year-to-<late in 2013, compared to $4.8 received in the 
same period in 2012, 1111d an increase in invested assets due to higher FIA account value. 1bis was partially offset by lower portfolio yields as a result of lower 
yields on futed maturity purchases and commercial mortgage loan originations, and prepayments of higher yielding assets. 

Benefits and Expenses 

The $2.1 increase in interest credited. was driven by higher interest from growth in our FIA account value and DSI amortization related to the unlocking 
impact from higher prepayment-related investment income. These were partially offset by lower interest credited on traditional futed annuities, reflecting 
disciplined pricing on new business and management of renewal crediting rates on existing business. 

Unlocking from prepayment-related investment income and the impact of annual unlocking also drove the increase in DAC amortization. 

Other underwriting and operating expenses increased $4.9, primarily related to increased non~eferrable distribution expenses associated wilh higher FIA 
sales and increased employee-related expenses. 

Sales 

Deferred Annuities' sales increased 78.6% to $1,510.6 for the nine monthsended September 30,2013 compared to $845.8 for the same period in 2012. 
This was primarily the result of higher sales of our FIA product, which totaled $906.7 in 2013 C()mpared to $176.8 in the same period in 2012. Expanded 
bank distribution of our FIA product has helped to diversify our deferred annuity sales with more key partners. 
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Income Annuities 

The following table sets forth the results of operations relating to our Income Annuities segment: 

For rb< lbr~ Monrl'IS End«! 
September 30, 

. 2013 2012 

QTD 
Vari•noe (%) 

2013 YS. 2012 

For rh< Nine Montbs Ended 
Septtmbtr JO, 

2013 2012 

YTD 
Varlanu (%) 

2013 vs.lOll 

' 
----------··------ · -- -·--·-·--·--- ------J 

Ncr invcstmenl income S 98.4 $ 100.9 (2.5)% $ 299.0 $ 309.5 (3.4)% 

[. __ .!'~~i~Lr~s~~!!~~-h~-~~~~-~~~;~--~-=-~-~-- ·- --o.z·-- · ·-·--··1.7 _____ ~:-~~(8~j)~ -~-- -- - ---2~3--:~------4_9-::-=~~=<~?.:!LJ 
Total opc111ting revenues 98.6 102.6 (3.9) 301.3 314.4 (4.2) 

[-_~ene_fus_8fld_!XP~~~:_ ~ -=~-=-~~~=~~~-=~- _______________ .. ________ --~~~=~~---~:~ ~~--~:~-~~~- -- - -----, 
lnt=stc!"dited 85.7 87.7 (2.3) 256.9 255.1 0.7 

:. ·---Other underwriting ando~rating~pense;--------4:9-=-~~ 5.4 _-:=~~~-~-~---=(~~~L~~: -~~~-- ~fs:?-=-=~~: -=~-_ i}~~~-~: -~ ~~~-~: ~<I~i._~-j 
Amorrization of deferred policy ocquisitionco~lS 0.9 0.9 __ _ ____ __ ____ _____ 2.8 2.4 16.7 

l_!_otal benefil$ and exp~-----------· 91.5 94.0 (~)_) 275.4 274.5 -~:~:---~ _o,~-~~) 
Segment prNax adjusted opera1ing income $ 7.1 $ 8.6 (17.4)% S 25.9 $ 39.9 (35.1 )% 

The following table sets forth selected historical operating metrics relating to our Income Annuities segment as of, or for the three and nine months ended: 

~~C!"es(!l_ ___________________________________ _ s 

For tbt Three llfontbs Endtd 
September 30, 

2013 lOll 

. - _?,~~~,? $ .. 6,576, 7 ___ 

For tho Nine Montbs Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

J 
,Interest spread (2) _____ ------------- ______________ .. 0.61% 0.56% 0.62% 0.61% 

·.~aseeocmed~eld ___________________________________ .. _ 6.02 6.04 -- ---- ----- -----------·· 
-- ---, 

----~,_(!3 ___ ___ __ __ __ 6_:1~_: 

Base credited yield 
r - --· ~ ~ ---~ --------

___ __:5...:....4...:..9_ 5.52 -----=5~.5:...:.1_ 5.56 

!_ase intmst s~J~l ___ .. _____ o;.;·.;.sJ.;.';.;.v. o.52% 0.52% 0.54Y~ 

,~!l~~i~!ll~ (!o~·~·l~~) $ Ll $ 2.0 $ •••••••· -- ·--···•-TO---~----------..- -•·--~----~~--~- ------------ 0-- - ~ ••••• 
38.9 49.5 

6.6 $ 

125.1 

lH 

~~?:6~ ] 

(l) Reserves represent the present value of fu!Ul" inoome annuity benefiiS and assumed expenses, disco11nted by the assumed in1eres1 nne. This metric represents the amount of 

our in-fon:e book of business. 
(2) Interest spread is the difference be1Ween the nel investmeol yield and tbe credited rate to policyholders. The net investment yield is the approximate yield on invested asseiS, 

excluding equities, in the general account anributed 10 tbe segment The credited rate is lhe approx.imate rnle credited on policyholder reserves. 
(3) Base interest spread is the interest spread adjusted to exclude items that can vary signifiQOtly from period to period due ro a number of facl()rs and, therefore, rnay contribute 

to yields that are not indicative of the. underlying trends. This is primarily the impact or asset prepaymeniS, such as bond make-whole premiums and the MBS prepayment speed 

adjusanent. 
(4) Mortalily gains (losses) reprcsc:nt the difference between actual and expected reserves released on our life contingent annuities. 

(S) Total sales represent deposiiS for new policies net of first year policy lapses and/or sum:nders. 

Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 1012 

Summary of Results 

Segment pre-tax ad jus led operating income decreased $1 . 5 primarily due to lower mortality gains. Mortality gains were $1.1 for the three months ended 

September 30,2013, compared to gains of $2.0 for the same period in 2012. 

In addition to the drivers discussed above, we consider the following infonnation useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Revenues 

Net investment inrome decreased $2. 5, primarily due to tower average invested assets, related to lower reserves, and lower investment yields. 
Additionally, over the past year, we have modestly increased allocations to equity securities in this segment, which reduces investment income. We believe that 
prudent levels of investments in equity securities support asset and liability matching strategies for long-duration insurance products and provide enhanced 

long-tenn after-tax total returns. 
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Policy fees, oootract charges, and olher decreased $ I . 5, as third quarter 2012 results include revenue from sales of third-party structured settlements. 
The s.les agreement with the third party was terminated effective January I, 2013. 

Benf!jits and Expenses 

Interest credited decreased $2.0 driven by lower crediting rates on lower reserves and a higher impact from fimding services activities, which was 
partially offset by a decrease in mortality gains. Mortality gains decrease interest credited in lhe period incurred, and can fluctuate significantly from quarter to 

quarter. 

Sales 

Sales decreased $10.6 largely due to lhe discontinuanc:e of structured settlement sales in late 2012. Single-premium immediate annuities sales were down 
slightly, as sales ::onrinue to be challenged by pricing oompetition in lhe low interest rate environment 

Nine Months Ended September 10, 201 J Compared to the Nine Months Ended September JO, 2011 

Summary of.r?.esults 

SegJnent p:e-tax adjusted operating income decreased $14.0 primarily due to lower mortality gains. Mortality gains were $6.6 for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2013, oompared to gains of $13.8 for the same period in 2012. In addition, lower reserves resulted in a decline in our interest margin. 

In additior. to the drivers discussed above, we oonsider the following infonnation useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Rrvenues 

Net icvesbnent income decreased $1 0.5, primarily due to lower yields and lower average invested assets. The decline in yields was driven by lower 
yields on recent rixed maturity purchases and conunercial mortgage Joan originations, and prepayments of higher yielding assets. 

Policy fees, oontract charges, and other decreased $2.6, driven by lower fee revenue from sales of third-party structured settlements. The sales 
agreement with the third party was terminated effective January I, 2013. 

Benefits and Expenses 

Interest crtdited increased $1.8 driven by lower mortality gains, which were partially offset by lower crediting rates on lower reserves. 

Other underwriting and operating expenses decreased $ J. 3 driven by lower expenses due to the discontinuation of structured settlement sales. 

Sales 

Sales decnased $75.5 primarily due to lower structured settlement annuity sales, as we discontinued sales in December 2012. 

47 



Indhidual Life 

The following table sets forth the results of operations relating to our Individual Life segment: 

[9;~-rll~~g-~~l!~~i:_~ -~ :: _---

Premiums 

For tbe Three Mouths Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

QTD 
Varioace ('l'o) 

1013 VS- l0J2 

For tbe Nlae Months Ended 
September 30, 

lOIJ 2012 

YTD 
V•rl•nce (%) 

2013 vs. lOll 

Net investment income 
--· ------ ------ ---------~-- .. 

__ _____ S. ... ,., ____ 8._6 ---~ - - __ _ 9.2 ____ -- - -- (6.~~- $ 26.4 $ 27.9 (5.4)% 

____ !_?·§ __ - - _______ 71_.1 __ - --- -- . - _l_!_____ _2!(5~~=~-~ -~-~!.(~--- - --- ·---- __ (~~-] 
Policy fees, contract charges, and other 34.1 32.7 4.3 101.1 97.0 4.2 

[i_~i~i~~~ti_l!g~~n~es ________ =---=~~-~=---_ . 115.3 _-_-_ -.. _-__ -_-l_l-3~.o-.. ~==~~--i!>_=·---_--___ -3-J~-:P-__________ ~3_9:~ ____ .... ~o:-1) ·- ] 

-- - ----- -- ---------- - - ~---------~--------- .. 
19.1 _____ .!§~----- ---- _1!.:2 ___ ·-- . - -_ _?3.7 ------ ----~~-0 - - -- - -- - 9:6 i 

Interest credited 63.4 ·- ----~-2:9 ... - 0.8 - --- - - -- __!?.0.~ ---~---~__1_9!.:~ .. ~~~--.. JI-6~ 
[~ -~ . -~lh;r ;;;,d~ri~g-~d-~perarin~!~P~~;;=~-~=-=--- _) ~:~- --~ ~:- ___ ]_6.~- - __ ____________ (~-?!. --------~---- 4~:9 __ _ . . .. .. . . . (~,~) _; 

·--~i?_r1izlltio_~~!d•!e:redpo~i_CI!C<t_uisi~oncosts ___ .....;,.1..;;.6_ 3.9 (59.0) 5.5 6.6 (16. 7) 

[~o_ta)_b~eE_~-~expenses _ ---------· ___ .;;.9.;;.9 . .;;.5_ ----9-9-.2- _· ·:_~- -~ ~j·~--- 297.5 297.9 .. .. -= ____ (O.l)_~J 
Segment pre-tax adjusted operating income $ 15.8 $ 13.8 14.5% $ 41.5 $ 41.5 

The following table sets forth selected historical operating metrics relating to our Individual Life segment as of, or for the three and nine months ended: 

Fe>r the Three Months Ended 
September 30, 

For tht Nine Months Endtd 
September 30, 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

'Individual icsurance: 
. .. . --- ___ , ____ ._, ... - . ... --......,....--- ----- ----- -------,1 

(1) lndividual claims represents incurred claims. net of reinsuronee, on our tetm and universal life policies. 
(2) UL acoount value and BOLl account value represent our liabi lilies to our policybolders. 
(3) UL interest sp~d excludes SPL and is the difference between the net investment yield 11nd the credited rate to policyholders. The net investment yield is the approximate yield 

on invested assets in the general account amibuted to UL policies. The credited rate is the approximal<' rate credited on UL policyholder account values. Interest credited is 
subject to cot>~al tenns, including minimum gua.-.n\ees. 

(4) UL base interest spread e~cludes SPL and is UL interest spread adjusted to exclude items that can vary significantly from period to period due to a number of factors and, 
therefore, may contribute to results that arc not indicative of underlying trcnds. This is primarily the impact of asset prepayments, ·such as bond make-whole premiums nel of 
related bonus interest amonizarion, the MBS prepayment speed adjustment and reserve adjustments. 

(5) lndividWllsales represents IIIIllualiz.ed first year premiums for recurring premium products .ad 10% of new single premium deposits, net of ftrst year policy lapses and/or 
Surtmdelli. 

(6) BOLl ROA is a measure of the gross margin on our BOLl book of business. This metric is calculated as the difference between ow BOU revenue earnings nile 3Jtd ow BOLl 
policy benefits mte. The ~evenue earnings rate is calculated as revenues divided by average invested assets. The policy benefits rate is calculated as total policy benefits divided 
by avctllgc at.eounl value. The policy benefils used in this metric do n<>1 include expenses. 

j 

(7) BOLl base ROA is BOLl ROA adjusted to exclude items that c.n vary significantly from period to period due to a number of factors and, therefore, may contribute to yields 
that ""' not indicative of the underlying tnnds. This is primarily the impact of asset prep•yments. such as bond rnake-whole premiums, the MBS prepayment speed adjustmenL 
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(8) Repmena l 0% of depositS. 
(9) Represents depositS for ocw policies. 

Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 Compt~red to the Three Montlts Ended September 30, 1012 

Swnmary of Results 

Segment pre-tax adjusted operating income increased $2.0 primarily driven by higher prepayment-related investment income and a favorable impact 
from annual unlocking. These were partially offset by a lower base BOLl ROA driven by an increase in BOLl claims and lower reinvestment rates. 

In addition to the drivers discussed above, we consider the following infonnation useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Revenues 

Net investment income increased S 1.5 driven by higher prepayment-related investment income, wbich totaled $3.6 in tbe thi.rd quarter 2013 compared 
to $0.7 in third quarter 2012, and an increase in average invested assets, mainly due to growth in BOLl account value. This was partially offset by lower 
yields on asset purchases over the past twelve months. 

Policy fees, contra<:t charges, and other increased $I .4 due to higher COl and administrative fees on our BOLl b~ness. 

Benefits tJ11d Expenses 

Benefit-related expenses (policyboldcr benefits and claims, and interest cred.ited) iocreased $3.4, primarily due to higher BOLl claims and growth in 
account value, partially offset by lower crediting rates on our BOLl business. 

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs decreased $2.3 primarily due to a $0.3 favorable impact of annual unlocking in the third quarter of 20 I 3, 
compared to an unfavorable impact of $2.4 in the third quarter of 2012. 

Sales 

Sales of individual life products were $3.9 for tbe three months coded September 30,2013, compared to S 1.6 for the same period in 2012, due to 
increased distribution of our Symetra Classic Universal Life (Classic UL) product through an expanded brokerage general agency (BGA) distribution 
network. · 

Nine Months Ended s,ptembu 10, 2011 Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30, Z0/2 

Summary of Results 

Scement pre-tax adjusted opcnating income remained flat. as higher prepayment-related income and favorable impact of annual unl~g were offset by 
a lower BOLl base ROA and lower earnings contributions from our decreasing block of term life business. The decline in the BOLl base ROA was driven by 
an increase in BOLl claims. 

1o addition to tbe drivers discussed above, we consider tbe following information useful in understanding our results. 

Operating Revenues 

Ptemiums decreased S 1.5, which was driven by a reduction in premiums from a smaller block of our term life business. 

Net investment iocome decreased $3.0 due primarily to lower yields on asset purchases over the past twelve lllQIIthS. This was partially offset by an 
increase in averaae iovested assets, mainly due to growth in BOLl account value, and an increase in prepayment-related income. Prepayment-related income 
totaled $6.3 year-to-date in 2013 compared to $2.8 io the same period of2012. 

Policy fees, contract charges, and other increased $4.1 primarily due to hi!lher COl and administrative fees on our BOLl business. 

Benefits and upenses 

Benefit-related expenses increased $1 .7, driven by higher BOLl claims and growth in account value. This was partially offset by lower claims on our 
UL business and lower crediting rates on our BOLl busioess. 
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Sales 

Sales of individual life products increased to $9.2 for the nine months ended September 30,2013, compared to $7.8 for the same period in 2012, due to 
higher sales of our Classic UL product. This was partially offset by lower sales of SPL policies. 

Other 

The following table sets forth the results of operations relating to our Other segment: 

lntcn:st expense r· - ·--·-·· - ··-·--
L _Totllbe~fi_ts_~-~~~ ___ · ·-···---
Segment pre-taX adjusted openting loss 

For the Three Months Eodtd 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

QTD 
Varinnce (%) 

2013 vs. 2012 

• Represents ~entage variances that are not meaningful or ore explained through the discussion of other variances . 

For tbe Nine Mooths Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

Three Months Ended September 30, 1013 Compared to the Three Montlls Ended September 30, 1012 

Summary of Results 

YTD 
Varian<e (%) 

2013 vs. 2012 

Our Other segment reported pre·tax adjusted operating losses of $3.3 for the three months ended September 30,2013 compared with losses of $10.0 for 
the same period in Z012. This improvement in results was due to higher net investment income, mainly related to tax credit and alternative investments and 
prepayment related income. Amortization of tax credit investments, which is recorded as a reduction to net investment income, decreased compared to 20 I 2. In 
the third quarter of 2012, we had higher amortization of our tax credit investments based on lhe acceleration of tax deductions of certain partnerships. T a.x 
credit investments reduce investment income, but provide tax benefits that help decrease our effective tax rate. See "Investments · Investments in Lim!ted 
Partnerships -Tax Credit Investments" for further information. 

Operating expenses decreased $1.8, as t!Urd quarter 2012 included expenses re lated to exploration of acquisition opportunities. Additionally, expenses 
related to our broker-dealer were lower in third quarter 2013 compared to third quarter 2012. 

Nine Montlts Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Nine Montlts Ended September 30, 1012 

Summary of Results 

Our Other segmem reported pre-tax adjusted operating losses of $9.4 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared with losses of $20.8 for 
the same period in 2012. This improvement in results was due to higher net investment income, primarily from higher average invested assets, as well as 
returns on our investments in private equity funds. 

Investments 

Our investm~t portfolio is structured with the objective of supporting the expected cash flows of our liabilities and producing stable returns over the 
long term. The composition of our portfolio reflects our asset management philosophy of protecting principal and receiving appropriate reward for risk. Our 
investtneot portfolio mix as of September 30, 2013 consisted in large part of high quality ftxed maturities and commercial mortgage loans we originated, as well 
as a srT]aller allocation of high yield fixed maturities, markemble equity securities, investments in limited partnerships (primarily tax credit investments and 
private equity funds) and other investments. Our equity and equity· like investments include conunon stock, REITs and convertible securities. These 
investments mainly support investment strategies, including asset and liability matching strategies, 
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for certain long-dllf3.tion insurance products in our Income Annuities segment. We believe that prudent levels of equity and equity-like investments offer 
enhanced Jong-tcml, after-tax total rcrurns. 

The following table presents the composition of our investment portfolio 

As of September 30, 201) As or December 31, l~ll 

Amount %ofTotal Amount 0/o of Total 

!!'YPt~_£!111_~~!!1~~---···-· ·--- ·-- --··-·-···---· _____ .. _ - · 
Fixed maturi~es. available-for-sale: 

c- _Public ---= -~--~~~~- -~~= -=--~~~---·.:~~~~=-~~:=:~ =-=~--- ~-=-i 
Private 

Other invested assets 

tTotal 

22.636.0 

670.5 2.4 

(I) Primarily includes non-redeemable prefemd stock, and as of September 30, 2013, cenain investments in common stock. 
(2) Includes invesuncnts in common stock, RE!Ts and mutual funds. 
(3) lnvesttnents in private equity funds are earned at fair value, and our taX credit investments are carried at amortized cost. 

819.6 3.0 

1oo.o% I 

Invested assets increased $84.7 during the first nine months of2013 primarily due to growth from sales of deferred ~uities, partially offset by a 
decline in the net unrealized gain position of our available-for-sale fixed maturities. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we had net unrealized 
gains ofSI.3 billion and $2.4 billion, respectively, on our fixed maturity portfolio. This decline in unrealized gains was driven by an increase in benchmark 
10-year U.S. TreasUIY rates from 1.78% as of December 31,2012 to 2.64% as of September 3o, 2013. 
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Investment Returns 

Net Investment Income 

Return on invested assets is an important element of our financial results. The following table sets forth tbe income yield and net invesunent income, 
excluding realized investment gains (losses), for each major investment category: 

,----------- ---- ------- · ---0 
Lfypes oflovestmrnts 

Fixed maturities. available-(or-~le 

For the Thrtt M~nths Ended 
September 30, 2013 

Yield (I} Amount 

5.24% $ 283.4 

For the Tbri!i! Mo~tbs Ended 
September 30, 2012 

Yield (I ) Amount 

5.23% $ 276.9 
.. -- ----------· ·----- · -- --------------- ----- ---~ 

: __ ~atketable equity securities. avaita~':ior-salc:______ _ ________________ 4_.3_7 ___________ o_.6 _________ 4:_:_.4.c:2:___ _________ _ 

------'-M~atl<=--etable eq~~~-~~~i~~ trading _____ 2.84 3.3 2.73 3.3 

-~i~E_:=----=~ .:~----~ 48.7 ==~~----- 6~Q.i=-=-~=~-- - -43:9-J 
Policy loans 5.63 0.8 5.60 1.0 

· L~~~en~-~ t~ite~.P~~rships: ________ _ 
----------------- --- - - ---------------- ·- - ----------------1 

--------- - -- --- ------ - ----------- -- _____ ___ __ j 
Private equity funds 12.99 0.8 (1.58) (0.1 ) 

[ ___ -____ :_-- Tax credit investments (2) 

Other income producing assets (3) 
-·~- ____ --==~==~-=---;=~=~-~-~-~· ___ _JS.O) ---~ ~~=--• _:=:·:~~=~=-~- ("i~~jj 

[Gross illv~;"iin_~_in~~~:_lle_!ore i~v~~~t-~~~~~e~ --: ~=~~=: 
Investment expenses 

:'!'let iDvestrncnr income 

• Jlepresents yield that is not meaningful. 

2.14 

5.11 
(0.12) 

4.99% 

1.5 

334.1 

{7.7) 

$ 326.4 

2.79 1.8 

5.07 --~ 
(0.12) (7.5) 

4.95% $ 312J I 

(I) Yields arcdetennined based on monthly avemges calculated using begiMing and end-of-period balances. Yields for fixed maturities are based on amortized tost Yi~lds forequiry 
secUrities. including investrneots in limited partnerships. are based on cost. Yields for all other asset types arc based on carrying values. 

(2) The negative impact from !he lax credit invesrments is offset by U.S. federal income laJC benefits. The total impact to net income was $6.4 and S4.3 for the three months ended 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(3) Other income producing asse~ includes other invested assets, short-term investmen~ and cash and cash equivalents. 

Three Months Ended September 30. 2013 Compared to the Three Momhs Ended September 30. 2012 

For tbe three months ended September 30, 2013, net investment income mcreased 4.5% compared to the same period in 2012, driven by an increase in 
prepayment income and an increase in average invested assets_ We continue to experience prepayment activity and related prepayment income as a result of the 
low interest rate environment, which has mainly affected our fixed maturities. Prepayment-related activities generated income of $18.6, or 28 basis points 
(bps) of yield, in the three monlhs ended September 30, 2013, compared to $4.2, or 6bps of yield, in the same period in 2012. These prepayment-related 
activities, the majority of which affected our fixed maturities, were on securities witb an amortized cost of$152.8 and $26.3 for lhe three months ended 
September 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. Prepayment-related income includes make-whole premiums and consent fees on early calls or tenders of fixed 
maturities, prepayment speed adjustments on structured securities, and prepayment fees on our commercial mortgage loans. Prepayment activity usually 
stems from higher-yielding investments, resulting in cash inflows which are then typically reinvested into lower-yielding new assets, placing downward 
pressure on our future investment income and interest spreads. 

Allbaugh prepayment-related income increased overall yields in tbe periods received, tbis increase was partially offset by lower investment yield as a 
result of the prolonged low interest rate environment In an attempt to mitigate the effects of the low interest rate environment, we continued to focus on our 
underwriting of commercial mortgage loans, which generally provide higher yields than fixed maturities. In addition, we strategically increased our investment 
'in high-quality foreign corporate securities with a focus on investment grade securities which is discussed further in "-Exposure to European Fixed Maturity 
Securities." 
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The following table sets forth the income yield and net investment income, excluding realized investment gains (losses), for each major invesbnent 
category: 

Fixed m~rurities, available-for-sale 

Marketab)_c~~ity s~~-~~~,_a_~~~a_ble-for-sale __ --,----- _____ _ 

_ _ Marl<.euble c<:jUity securities, trading 

___ M~~g~g.:..e "'loo::ac.:n"'s,-'n:.::.et'-----

--------·--·--

For tbe Nine I\fonths Ended 
September 30, 2013 

For tho Nino Montb< End..! 
September 30, 2012 

Yield (I) Amount Yield (I) Amount 

.. -- ________ _ :~-----~----~--------~------______ j 
5.25% $ 840.5 5.31 % $ 

-- ~---• ---- · -- ~- • - • •• •••• --~-----~-• • •-- • - • · · -- • • ---·-~- ••· • v .•• 

5.70 2.3 5.77 
. . ------ . -- ... --· -- -- -~- -- ---·-----· ·-- . ----------------- ---. ---

2.78 9.6 2.78 8.9 

-·-:=-=-5.79 =~-=· --__ 140.7 --- -~~---~:~-~ 6.14 =~-=~~- ~-- ji~i.1 
5.66 2.7 5.61 2.9 

. --------~------ ------------------------------------------------ ____________ : 

Otber income producing assets (3) 
r~--

l ---~ross inveslmeol iocome before: investment exp_e_ns:..•.:.s __ _ 

Investment ~xp~es 
r--------

* Represents yield that is not meaningfuL 

28.11 5.0 2.91 0.5 

• J !i-_7! ________ ~---- ------- ___ j!~ 
2.65 5.1 2.62 5.7 ------___________ s, 13 __ _ -~~) .8 __ - ________ _?:!_8_- - -- ···-·-" _ __2?2.9_1 
(0.12)_ (23.1) (0. II) (20.9) 

s.o1 % s 952.o I ____ .... 5.01% $ ------968.7 

(I) Yields= detennioed based on monthly avelllges calculoled using beginning and end-cf-pcriod balacccs. Yields for fixed moruritics an: based on amortized coR Yields for equity 
securities, including investments in limited partnerships, are based on cosL Yields for all other asset types are based on canying values. 

(2) The negative impact from the tax credit investments is offset by U.S. federal income lax benefits. The total impact to net income was $18.1 and $13.0 for the nine montbs ended 
September 30. 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(3) Other income producing assets includes other invested assets, short·tcnn investments and cash and cash equivalents. 

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012 

For the nine months ended September 30,2013, net invesbnent income increa~ed 1.8% compared to the same period in 2012, driven by an increase in 
prepayment income and an increase in average invested assets, partially offset by a decrease in yield. Prepayment-related activity generated income of$44.9, or 
24bps of yield, in the nine months ended September 30, 2013, compared to $13.9, or 7bps of yield, in the same period in 2012. These prepayment-related 
activities, the majority of which affected our flxed maturities, were on securities with an amortized cost of$434. 7 and $129.7 for the nine months ended 
September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Excluding the impacts from prepayments, yields on our entire investment portfolio decreased to 4.77% for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 
from 5.00% for the same period in 2012. This reduction reflects the prolonged low interest rate environmenlln an attempt to mitigate the effects of the low 
interest rate environment, we continued to focus on our underwTiting of commercial mortgage loans, which generally provide higher yields than fiXed 
maturities. We also modestly increased our investments in foreign securities, as we believe this asset class has quality investment opportunities that offer 
attrnctive yields. 

We focus on originating loans at a consistent spread to comparable U.S. Treasuries. For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we originated loans 
at a spread over U.S. Treasuries of approximately 270bps, compared with an approximate 345bps spread over U.S. Treasuries for the year ended 
December 31, 2012. Spreads to U.S. Treasuries are down during the current year compared to 2012, primarily due to a tightening of spreads among the 
lenders that are competing for loans that meet our underwriting standards. Additionally, U.S. Treaswy rates have been low throughout 2012 and 2013, which 
has led to a decline in our overall mortgage loan portfolio yields. 
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Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses) 

The following table seiS fonh the detail of our net realized investment gains (losses) before taXes: 

For the Three l\1ontb1 Ended 
September 30, 

2013 1012 

For the Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

2013 2012 

;(};~~;;-;d-g;~~~ ~ffixcd .;;~~rl!!_~~ --· .. ___ __ 1_.'!_ __ s_ 1.4 s ___ ~--J_______ _ _ . _4~-± l 

!mP~inn~nts: 
________ !_~) _______ ... -~----·-----p7~~) -----·--· _i~~-~Jl 

__________________ .. - _____________ .. ___ -------·----------- ...... ____________ ] 
Gross realized losses on sales of fixed maturities 

Total credit-related (4.0) 
- -----------~---------- ------'--"'---

(2.2) 

(8.0) (5.1) (10.2) 

----'<5-.l--'-> cto.3> ·-- --- os.o> I Intent ro sell 

Total impairments __ j~·3> _ ____ ---- __ (13.3) __ _ __ __ __,(_15_.4...:..)__ (25.2) 

..... ____ --·------'~- ___________ 2s.Q__________ 43.3 -~-_E.:.6J ~gains (losses) on tradings~urities __ _ 

Other net investment gains (losses) ( l ): :-··· ~ ~- ~-- --- --~--- -- --------- ----------- ------·---~ -- ~- ~- -- .. 
Net realized gains (losses)· FIA _ -·--___________ -·-·---·- ·-- _ _________ . ~:9_ ---·- 1.1 2.0 

. . ----, 
. ...l.·.U . --~----- ~ --

6.2 5.3 26.3 12.1 _ _:Oth:..:::.:er~gro=ss:..!ga=ins=-_ .. --·---- __ .... -·----:,--·---------· 
[ Other gross losses (12.5) (3.6) 

--~~-{-36-.2-)~-- --------------ii2.7>: 
Net realized investment gains {losses) $ (4.6) $ 15.5 $ 10.& s 35.0 ,------------ - - ------ -- - ·--- -- · - --- . ..... 

(I) This primarily consists of changes in fair value of derivatives inslnlmcnts including embedded derivatives, changes in fair value of convertible bonds, gains (lo<Ses) on calls and 
redemptions, impairments of we credit investments and the impacl of net realized investment gains (losses) on DAC and OS!. 

Tlrree Months Ended September 30, :ZO 13 Compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 2012 

In the third quarter 2013, our portfolio produced net realized losses of $4.6, as compared to gains of$ IS. 5 for the same period in 2012. The net 
investment losses stemmed from lower marked-to-market gains on equities and net losses on sales of fixed maturities during the third quarter of 2013 

compared to net gains on sales of fixed maturities during the third quarteT of 2012, partially offset by lower impairments. for the three months ended 
September 30, 2013, our equity portfolio produced net realized gains of$12.0, compared to gains of $25.0 for the same period in 2012, which is discussed 
funher in"- Return on Equity Investments." 

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 Compared to the Nine Months Ended September 30. 2012 

i 

For the nine months ended September 30, 2013, our portfolio produced net realized gains of $1 0.6, as compared to gains of$35.0 for the same period in 
2012. The decline in net realized gains was driven by net losses on sales offrxed maturities during the first nine months of2013 compared to net gains on 
sales of fixed maturities during the first nine months of 2012. During 2012 we realized net gains related to the sttategic sale of RMBS. This was partially 
offset by improved results on our equity investments and lower impainnents. For the nine months ended September 30,2013, our equity portfolio produced 
net realized gains ofS43.3, compared to gains of$33.6 for the same period in 2012, which is discussed further in"- Return on Equity Investments." 

Impairments 

We monitor our investments for indicators of impainnent. When evaluating a security for possible impairment, we consider several factors, which are 
described in more detail in Note 4 to the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements. Impairments for the three months ended 
September 30,2013 and 2012 were $6.2 and $13.3, respectively, primarily due to a decrease in credit-related impairments. 

for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, impairments were $15.4 and $25.2, respectively. The improvement in impairments was 
driven by both a $4.7 decrease in write-downs of securities we intend to sell, and a $5 .I decrease in credit-related impairments. For those issuers for which we 

recorded a credit-related impairment during 2013, we had remaining holdings with an amortized cost o£$40.5 and a fair value of$40.2 as of SeptembeT 30, 
2013. We believe the amortized cost of these securities is recoverable, based on our estimated recovery values. 

54 



Fixed Maturity Securities 

Fixed matuities represented approximately 84% and 85% o f invested assets as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. The 
majority of our fixed maturities are invested in highly marketable or publicly traded securities. We invest in privately placed fixed maturities to enhance the 
overall value oflhe portfolio and obtain higher yields than can ordinarily be obtained with comparable public market securities. AJ of September 30, 20 13 and 
December 31, 2(,12, privately placed fixed maturi ties represented 2.9% and 3.5%, respc:crivcly, of our total fiXed maturity portfolio at fair value. 

Fixed Maturity Securities Credit Quality 

The Securities Valuation Office (SYO) of the National Association of insurance Conunissioners (NAIC) evaluates the investments of insurers for 
regulatory reponing purposes and assigns fixed maturities to one of the six categories called "NAIC Designations." NAIC designations of" l'" or "2" include 
fixed maturities ::onsidered investment grade, which generally include securities rated BBB- or higher by Standard & Poor's (S&P). NAJC designations of"3" 
through "6" are referred to as below investment grade, which generally include securities rated BB+ or lower by S&P. In recent years, the SVO adopted a 
modeling approach to determine the NAIC designation for non-agency RMBS and CMBS securities. As a result, the NAJC designation for such securities 
may not correspond to the S&P designations described. 

The following table presents our fued maturities by NAJC designation and S&P equivalent credit ratings, as well as the percentage of total fiXed 
maturities, based upon fair value that each designation comprises: 

r- --- .. .. -· -· - -· - ·-·---· 
~AIC.:_~.!!_quivalrn_!: . -· . -· . ___ . 

Amortiztd 
C~t 

As of ~pt~mber JO, 2013 

fair Value 
%of Total 
Fo.ir Vlllue 

Amortixtd 

C""t 

As of Dectmbtr 31 , 2012 

fair Valut 

58.3% $ . -~ AAA, AA, ~ --·- - -----"-·" $ __ 1....:.2,7_38.9 S -·. 1~ !~~4.~ ____ -~-- 12,193.2 S 13,748.9 

%of Total 
Fair Value 

I 

58.5% 

_2~BBB_. _ ____ "_ ------~- ___ " ____ 8-',0~6~9_.4_. ___ ~8-'.~49~4_.1 _____ 36_.5_ -----'7._63_8_.9 ____ 8-'.4_9_0_.9_ ------' 

Tow invemnent grade ___ _ "--· _ _ __ _ .20,80~----~~~-----·-~- 19,832.1 22,239.8 94.6 

36. 1 

... ] BB _____ ·-·-- -· ·------· ------- ·--- .6!.3·~ .. _ -··-·-§nL. _ ___ ._ . .1-!_ .. ____ -~·6 -·----~:2..._ .. ~==~~_"] 
4 B 481.4 491.7 2.1 475.5 488.4 2.1 

~·:~j ccc A lo~rer -~~~-.=--~ --·· . : :·.~ ~-· ---~~.s~: =~ .=:: :~·~·~7. 9 .~=:~~: : ~=-··o:!--:-==== 88.~·.=-=----8l;.Q_ ... -·==--· .!>i""] 
61n or near d~fault 0.6 1.1 33.2 24.1 0.1 

---·- -- · --

'-··--~wbelowinv!sttnent~<!_e. _ 1,193.8 1,2 18.0 5.2 1,241.3 1,279.2 5.4 

Total $ 22,oo2.1 _s __ 2 ... 3,;..3o_6_.5_ 100.0% $ 21,073.4 _!: __ 2_3 •. s .. I_9._o _____ t_oo_o_o;._. 

Below investment grade securities comprised 5.2% and 5.4% of our fiXed maturities portfolio as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 
respccrivc:ly. We hc:1d NA1C 5 and 6 designated securities with gross unrealized losses of $14.9 a.s of September 30, 2013 . Our analysis of these securities, 
including management's estimates of future casb flows, where: appropriate, supports the recover-ability of amortized cost. 

Certain of our fixed maturities are supported by guarantees from mono line bond insw-ers, the majority of which are municipal bonds. As of 
September 30, 2)13, fixed maturities with monoline guarantees had an amortized cost of $427.3 and a fair value of $454.7, with gross unrealized losses of 
$0.9, compared to an amortized cost of $494.7 and a fair value of $531.0, with gross unrealized losses of $ 1.9 a.s of December 31,2012. The credit ratings 
of our fixed maturities set forth in the table above reflect, where applicable, the guarantees provided by mono line bond insurers. As of September 30, 2013 , 
$437.7, or 96.3%, of the fair value of fixed maturities supported by guarantees from monoline bond insurers had investment grade credit ratings both with the 
rnonoline ins11l11Dce and on a standalone basis. 
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Fixed Maturity Securities and Unrealized Gains and Losses by Security Sector 

The following table sers forth the fair value of our fixed maturities by sector, as well as the associated gross unrealized gains and losses and.the 
percentage of total fixed maturities that each sector comprises as of the dates indicated: 

I - -- -- -· · ····-- -- --- -- -·--·---- --···· 

Cosl or 

Amortlud 
CoS! 

Gross 

Unrealized 
Gains 

As of Septembrr 30, 2()13 

Cron 
Unrealized 

lAsses Fair Value 

%of 
TDtal Fair 

Value 
OTTI 

inAOCI 

~~C_IIr:!_ty Sect~------- __ _ -------------------------
Corpor.~te securities: 

l. _ C~o~~er_<!i~r_e_~i-~~---------·· $ 2,069.5 S 107.8 $ (19.6) S 2,157.7 9.3% !_--~-=J 
Consumer staples _____ 224~_5:_9 ___________ !_96_8 __ J~~:4)_ ~~~0_.3 ____ _ _ _ _ ! I :5_ __ _ _ _ _ __ _ . ~ 

Energy -----·· ______ 1,144.~- __ . ________ ~~-~- __________ ___(_~.:.~-- 1,231.7 _________ _ 2:_~- -- ·--- ___ __ -= j 
--~u:an~~- ------.----- ___________ 1,801.7 -·-----~~----- (32.2) 1,883.2 8.0 

___ ':'~~!l!~ar~ ____________________________ !,_552~~ -------114.4 _____ _!20.7] ____ 1,646.2 ____ - -~~-====~~(~c6J 
Industrials 2,990.4 254.7 (21.5) 3,223.6 13.8 (0.9} 

~~-~~-In!~~~o~;~~~~~---=-==~==----------- 3!6.0 -----=-_ 30.4 ~--~~- (3.3) 343.1 --~--=-==--:-__ .J 
Materials 1,320.5 90.0 (17.8) 1,392.7 6.0 {11.1) 

[ __ !~eco~uoicationservi~-------:__ 719.7 --~.:i_ __ ___ _ (4.S) 759.6 3.2 -~ 
Utilities 1,728.3 153.7 (24.4) 1,857.6 8.0 

__ Total corporate securities . ·------ ___ __ .!_ 6,138.8 --···· _ __ !J_~.!_! ______ ~---- _(~_7.!_:2> _____ ___ !],~ 65.2_ __ _ ------~~--- __ -----~14.->!)j 
U.S. government and agencies 508.9 5.6 (3.8) 510.7 2.2 

[~ s~~-;~;~~~c~;~;~-;;;;~_- · = ~ ~--~--- -=~-=~~~---=-~--741 .~-====---24:0- -~:~~~=---<!!~ __ --~~-~~~~~-~-~~:-==-_~}:-i=-···--··- ---~~-~-) 
Residential mongage-backed securities: 

----- --------- - ----

Agency ----------'·---------~-J72.2 ·--- __ -->-_!~~:? ______ _____ _Q0.9) ___ 2,487.2 ------·····10.7 _ _ ________ -:-_; 
Noo-agency: 

;-----~ ---~;-·--=~-~-~-:---~-=-=-- -- ____ --=~:·-~-= i~~J=- ~- --_ ~ ·:_ ~ - 7.;~----~~--:= ·-~-_Jo.s>- --::_-~-=- 234:9·---=--==-~:o-=~=---==:-~!lJ 
Alt-A 71.1 3.3 74.4 0.3 {0.3) 

[~:f~!~i;~~-~~!~m~~i~~~;c~~~~~ti•~ =~-~ ------- __ ___ 2.~7~4___ ----~6-L _________ <~~)L 217~6-? __ . __ 1 ~:~-- _j5:Q>J 
Commerc:ial morlgage-b;u;ked securities _I,~~-___ -- ---~0~-~ _____ __Q_O.I} I ,536.1 __ . _________ ~-~--

[_Other debt obligations---------- - --------- 500.7 44.4 {2.1) 543.0 2.4 ·..:::..:: 1 
Total $ 22,002.1 $ 1,525.3 $ {220.9) $ 23,306.5 100.0% S {19.4) 
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As of December 31, 2012 

c~st or CrGS1 Gross 
Amortized Unreolizcd Unruliud 

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value 

%of 
Total Fair 

Value 
OITI 

inAOCI 
.. ·--··· ·--------- ----- --------- ----- -----: 

1 

-~~~l'!.t~:_~_?_e~ ... - ··--------·--·----------· - ____ _ 
'-----~~~~~~r~~o!'~---- ___________ , __ , ______ _J ______ 1,9~~! .. ~ _ 199.2 ·$ 8.9% $ 

. -----~onsucner s~aples ____ .. ___ . ___ -· .. , _____________ 2~~_?_.1 ____ .. --~3]:~ .... _ .... _(! ?l. . .. -~J..~:! ___ - -- ·· ___ ! ~-~ ....... 
l_ __ Energy ___ ~--- --- _ __ ---~4_1_·~---------- __ I~J} . . .. .. _______ (():~--- ____ J~~.:.L ..... __ _ --- ~.1 ___ ..• •... :~:.·: ~ · ___ _"] 

_ _ _____________ .. _ .. _lc12.~.:..4. 168.2 (24.3) 1,873.3 8.0 (0.7) 

__________ __ ___ __ _1_._3~2,g___ _ _ __ ~ ~X~C7---~~--~~~= <0::41. -~ _ ~. ~i ~53)"~--------~~-- ---~ ji=~-~ ~--=-. ..:-~~_:_7i.J 
Financials 

r-·-. --- ··------- --
r Health care 
Lr-. •••-· -· ---••••• -~ --••·•••, • 

Industrials 2,910.3 ·-- _____ , _______ _ 
[ _____ lnfo~!!~ntecil!_l~l~gy __ . _ _ _ - - ----- - ___ 3~~-

Materi•ls 1,343.1 144.5 ___ Q:42_ ____ ------~~-80.2 _____________ -~:!. ________ ___ _ (1~.51 .. 
[~~~~·:~u~~ti~~-;~:;--:-=-=~=-~--~-=:~:--~~-~-=~-~iio~~- · · ____ ~4:.~.. . ..Jo_.~> ........ ---~!!_4_._s _____ . 3.4 __ ..<~:8)_ . 

Utilities 1,673.9 259.2 (11.2) 1,921.9 8.2 (0.9) 

[f~~c-~rpE~r;_~~~ti~~-- --- ----- __ __________ J.?.~_8_o_.~--- __ ____ !.9!~-L ___ _ (~I~L.- ____ JT!~Q~i-- _ _ ......... ?.~ ~ ___ _ <L~·~>.i 
U.S. government and agencies 307.6 4.8 (0.9) 311.5 1.3 (0.1) 

j ~~~~~~ ~~~]~~i__~b_d~~~;_~_s ----=--~ ··_ -~-~~~~-=~-==J_I!.9 ~-~~~~ 39.5 -=-=-_(Q~~~_:_~--=--- 776).:==-~.-~J!~~:-=:--~~-- . j)o~}J 
Residential mongage-backed securities: 

~--~-~- -~&~~>:. .. ____ -----------~===-~-- 2!449£~~ --=~~: ~32.i=~~-- - :~oc~~. =~ ~ 2.~~-l.=--=~-- ~lj]~--:~: ~~~:~~J 
·-· NoD-ag~:._ __________ _ 

!.__ ______ ".!:i:"'e --·-· ........ - ...... . -- -- 22.7-~ --- . .... .... _!~~ _(0._9]_. ___ ----- 237~7- - - · · i.:~~----~---:-~<'~~)l 
-- ~~~~- ---- ------ - -- - --· __________ 7.;,.8._7 ______ 3_.5 _____ ..,:('-0.-'4):... 81.8 0.4 (2.6) 

t __ T:~_tal_r~si~~~~i~l ~~~g!g~_!>acke~_!~_w\~~~-- .. ------ _____ ---~·?~S._S_ --~~~-- __ _ __ (l.~l- ___ ___ }_~QQ2:~ _ ....... __ !2-L.. .... . .. <~O:~>J 
Commercial mortgage-backed securities 

['9j,!!_~~bt ob!i~l!2~---_ - ------ __ _ 

--- _____ ___!!~~~L ___ 170.4 - ---- ~~~1 _____ 1,707.7 7.3 (1.3) -- -- ·- --·- ----~-·-- -- ------- -l 
453.8 60.9 (0.8) 513.9 2.2 -

Total $ 21,073.4 $ 2,502.3 $ (56.7) $ 23,519.0 100.0% $ (30.1) 

Our fixed mahlrities holdings are diversified by industry and issuer, and the portfolio does not have significant exposure to any single issuer. As of 
September 30, 2013 and December 3\, 2012, the fair value of our ten largest issuers of corporate securities holdings was $1 ,359.7 and S I ,555 .0, or 7.9% 
and 9.0% of total corporate securities, respectively. The fair value of our largest cKposure to a single issuer of corporate securities was $153.5, or 0.9% of total 
corporate securities, as of September 30, 20 13. A II of the securities related to this issuer have an NAIC rating of 2. As of December 31 , 2012, the fair value of 
our largest eKposure to a single issuer of corporate securities was $240.6, or 1.4% of total corporate securities, all of which had an NAIC rating of I. 

As of September 30, 2013, there was $220.9 of gross unrealized losses in our portfolio, compared to $56.7 as of December 31, 2012. Gross unrealized 
gains decreased more significantly by $977.0 to $1 ,525 .3 from $2,502.3 as of December 31, 2012. The decrease in gross unrealized gains and increase in 
gross unrealized losses was primarily due to rising interest rates since December 31, 2012. The benclunark 1 0-year U.S. Treasury rate increased from 1.78% 
as of December 31, 2012 to 2.64% as of September 30, 2013. If interest rates continue to increase, we would expect continued reductions in our unrealized 
gains. 

As of September 30, 2013, our investments in U.S. government and agency securities increased $199.2 , to $510.7 from $311 .5 as of December 31, 
2012. The increase is due to higher holdings of U.S. treasury securities, which were purchased as part of our cash management strategy to reduce uninvested 
cash to obtain higher yields until suitable investments are found. An increase in sales of our fixed indexed annuity product during the third quarter resulted in 
an increase in cash flows. 
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Exposure to European Fixed Maturity Securities 

The following table surrunarizes our exposure to European fixed maturity holdings and is separated between sovereign debt, financial industry and other 
corporate debt exposures. The country designation is based on the issuer's country of incorporation. The majority of these holdings are denominated in U.S. 

dollars. As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we held $430.1 and $156.1, respectively, of fixed maturities denominated in a foreign currency 
and reported in U.S. doUars based on period-end exchange rates. Beginning in the fourth quarter of2012, as part of our strategy to improve portfolio yields, 
we are investing in high-quality foreign corporate securities with a focus on invesnnent grade securities. We utilize foreign currency swaps and forwards to 
hedge our exposure to foreign currency. 

As or September 30, 2013 

Sovereign Fioaocial Oth•r Total Fair %or AmDrtized 

Debt Industry Corporate Value Exposure Co•t r··-----··--------· ·---···- __________ ..;_;..,_ ____ ._...,..;....: ___ ..;_;.....:.,;,....,;,.... ____ .;.;;_ __ --=..;.;.;..;.;;__ --=----, 
~opeanCo~n_!!ie§: ________ ----------------------------------- _________ _____ ___ _ ________ j 

UnitedK.ingdom S S 84.8 $ 664.3 $ 749.1 37.8% $ 713.5 

Netherlands _________ _ _______ 614.2 ____ ____i!Q_~~--3j_.o -:~-~=-~~-JJ"f~--J 
France 18.1 204.4 222.5 11.2 217.5 

Luxembourg _________ -~=~~---____ __=:-_____________ ~---_ ___ -____ _!~_l_i__ --~==~ 191.4 ~~==-- 9.6 --== ~=: 184.-CJ 
Switzerland 94.6 94.6 4 .8 88.2 

----- ------·-------
Sweden 61.2 61.2 3.1 55.3 I 

--- ··--------------~---~- ----------- --·- ------·'"-'" -~ -_..1 

Denmar:lc 16.2 16.2 0.8 16.9 
~--~---------------- ------- ------~---~-~-----~----------- ------ . 
... ____ l~J_r_ ________ --- -- · __ . _______ _________ --~-~----·- - ---=------------10~--- ----~-~-- -·- _____ _Q:S ___ ____ __ .. -~:~.J 

Gennany _______ 8.3 8.3 -~~------··_!_}___ 

'~---~orway __ -------· -------------=·------·- -----=- _ --· ---·-- -~--~- __ ------------~3_ _____________ ~·!______ __ __ ..... ~:!.l 
Austria 3.9 3.9 0.2 3.9 

[_--~pain ------------------------==~~---~~~~~~~~: ---~~-~:~~ ~~~~~i.- -~~~--~~~ ~~i~ ~~ :.·-=~~ -_~§"{~~-=-~=~-: __ 2.8 j 
Belgium 1.7 1.7 0.1 1.7 

:. ---~~------------------------·---------~~~-=-::=-:~:~-----"IT--_~~-~- -----1-.1- -------· ---o~----- -~~-~~l_)iJ 
Ponugal 0.7 0.7 0.7 

,------ ----
~.!.':'Peao Countri~ _. __ _ 

Netherlands 

France 

_____ !-~~n:bourg_ ---------------·----- _________ _ 
Switzerland 

i- Sw~den l .. --"-......:.._:__ ----------------·· ------
Germany 

l __ Denmark ______ _____ _ 

_ _ _!taly __ _ __ - -- -- - ___ _ ------------ ----· 
0.7 

Austria 4.2 4.2 0.2 3.9 
-----------------··- -------- ----·--------------------~---~ ---~--

L._ -_Sp~- -··---------·---------· __ ,_- -- -· ----. 2.7 ______ 2~ --------------~3_ _________ __ _!!j 
Ireland 1.1 1.1 0.1 1.0 

·-- .- -~~~IJ __________________ _ 0.7 
·- --·-- . ----- --- ------- ---- ------o.-7 ----- ------ -- -------D.Rl 

s 191.1 $ I ,457.6 $ 1,649.4 ----- 100.0% $ 1,494.5 __ ....;... __ Total 0.7 $ 

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the fair value of our exposure to European fixed maturities was 8.5% and 7.0% of our total fixed 
maturities portfolio, respectively. Our gross unrealized losses on these securities increased to $21.8 as of September 30, 2013, compared to $4.1 as of 
December 31 , 2012. The fair value of our ten largest European security 
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holdings by issuer was $983.2, or 4.2% of the fixed maturities portfolio as of September 30,2013, and $920.7, or 3.9% as of December 31 , 2012. The fair 
value of our largest single European issuer exposure was $151. I, or 0.6%, and $125.0, or 0.5%, of the portfolio as of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 

2012, respectively. 

Fixed Maturity Securities by Contractual Maturity Date 

As of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, 18.6% and 20.0%, respectively, of the fair value of our fixed maturity portfolio was held in 
mortgage-backed securities. As of September 30,2013 and December 31, 2012, 19.1% and 21.2%, respectively, was held in securities due after ten years, 
which we consider to be longer duration assets. As of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, 37.0% and 61.0%, respectively, of the gross unrealized 
losses on our investment portfolio related to these longer duration assets, which flucltlate more significantly with changes in interest rates and credit spreads. 

Refer to Note 4 to the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for a table summarizing the amortized cost and fair 
value of fixed maturities by contractual years to maturity as of September 30, 2013. 

Mortgage-Sac/red Securities 

As of September 30, 2013, our fiXed maturity securities portfolio included $4.3 billion of residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities at fair 
value. The residential and commercial real estate marke.ts were significantly impacted by the financial crisis and recession, but have since shown signs of 
improvement. Non-agency mortgage-backed securities issued in the 2006 through 2008 vintage years were generally the most affected by the financial crisis, 
due to weaker underwriting standards and an issuance date closest to the market peak. 

Our mortgage-backed securities are primarily agency securities, which account for 64.0"/o of the portfolio. Additionally, 27.5% of our mortgage-backed 
securities are AAA-rated non-agency securities in the most senior tranche of the structure type. 

All of our RMBS and CMBS have prepayment options. Prepayments that vary from our estimates in amount or timing cause fluctuations in our yields 
due to an acceleration or deceleration of unamortized premium or discount associated with the securities in our portfolio. These adjustments, which relate 
primarily to RMBS, are recorded in net investment income in our results of operations and create volatility between periods. 

Residential Mortgage-Back£d Securities (RMBS) 

We classify our investments in RMBS as agency, prime, Alt-A, and subprime. Agency RMBS are guaranteed or otherwise supported by the Federal 
National Mortgage Association. the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, or the Government National Mortgage Association. Prime RMBS have 

underlying loans to customers with good quality credit profiles. Subprime RMBS have underlying loans to customers with a greater risk of default. Alt-A 
RMBS have overall credit quality between prime and subprime, based on a review of their underlying mortgage loans and factors such as credit scores and 

financial ratios. The Company had no exposure to subprime loans as of September 30, 2013 or December 31, 2012. 

The following table sets forth the fair value of the Company's investment in agency, prime, and Alt-A RMBS and the percentage of total invested assets 

they represent: 

As of September 30, Z013 As of December 31, 2012 

•t. of Total %of Total 
Fair Value t.vesteol Assets Fair Value Juv~od Assets 

... -----·---- -~--·· _ __;_...;,:..__;_.:..:..__ ------- ------ ------~ 
___ -- ·- -----___ s _ ____ 2_,~8_7-~- .... ·- ... _ .. -~~ ... - .~ .. ·-·---}~~1 __________________ 2:_&o/~ ; 

____ yon-age:!'~-------·-- .. ------· 
Piimc 234.9 0.8 237.7 0.9 ---------·--· -------------------- ________ __..,_ ____ _________ - - -------- --- ·-- ----- --- --------- ---~------ - - - - -------- - -· -- -----~ --- --~- -- -

Alt·A _____ 7_4_.4_ 0.3 81.8 0.3 

L~~ubt~tallloo-ag~!=Y __ _ _ ------- - -----·--- J()9.3 1.1 319.5 1.2 

Total $ 2,796.5 10.1% $ 3,007.8 
------~--- -------~--

11.0"/t 

59 



The following table sets forth the total fair value, and amortized cost of our non-agency RMBS by year of origination (vintage) and credit quality, based 
on the highest rating by Moody's, S&P, or Fitch. There were two securities with a total amortized cost and fair value of $11.4 and $11.2, respectively, that 
were rated below investment grade by either Moody's, S&P or Fitch, while at least one other agency rated them investment grade. 

As of September 30, 2013 

Hl&:hut Radag Ag•n~)' Rating 

AAA AA A BBB 
BBand 
Below Total 

Total as of 
December 31,2012 

y~n~ce: _______ _____ .. _______ --·-·--·-·· ........... _ ...... . _ _ __ -·-- ------------------ .. -----------------_j 
201) $ 22.9 s $ $ s s 22.9 $ 

L:-.-~--~~~2iii~=---===~~--~~~-~ ~-.:_·-~:·~--:~·::_:=_~--------~--~5-_.9-_-:=_-__ -_-_--_--_--_-_--_-_--_-=__·_---_--_=--~~-~-------- 15.9 -------::.! 
2007 13.9 13.9 16.6 

~=..l~-----~~=-~ -~~~~--~---~~~~~=-~==-=~==----------- :-~~--:~--~--- ~=-~--~-~:~~~!~~----~:~~§T=.:~~-~-=------7_~:~! 
2005 1.4 73.1 74.5 91.0 

:~~~-ii~~~~~~r ____ ·--~~=----=:==~=--~-:~. · --- ------ -,~,----- -- 23.6 38.2 -- ------26~2-----zi-:5 ___ 11-..2 ___ __ ---- 124~31 
Total amortized cost $ 40.5 $ 25.0 S 38.2 $ 26.2 $ 169.3 $ 299.2 $ 306.5 
~------- ~-·-· - ________ ,. _____ ···-------- ---- - . .. ----
i__ NttWIRalizedgains(l_~~l. .. .... -------- _ . __ ... ___ 0.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 6.7 10.1 13.0 j 
Total fair value $ 40.7 $ 26.1 S 39.2 S 27.3 S 176.0 S 309.3 s 319.5 ----

As of September 30, 2013, our Alt-A portfolio was collateralized with 93.0% fixed rate mortgages and 7.0% hybrid adjustable rate mortgages (ARMs) 
with no exposure to option ARMs. Generally, fixed rate mortgages have had better credit perfonnance than ARMs, with lower delinquencies and defaults on the 
underlying collateral. 

As of September 30,2013, our Alt-A, prime and total non-agency RMBS had an estimated weighted-average credit enhancement of 12.8%, 7.6% and 
8.8%, respectively. Credit enbancement refers to· the weighted-average percentage of the outstanding capital strucnu-e that is subordinate in the priority of cash 
flows and absorbs losses first. We believe that our credit enhancement will help mitigate losses on these securities. 

As of September 30,2013 and December 31,2012, 60.9% and 63.4%, respectively, of the fair value of our non-agency RMBS bad super senior 
subordination. The super senior class has priority over all principal and interest cash flows and will not experience any Joss of principal until lower levels are 
written down to zero. Therefore, the majority of our RMBS investments have less exposure to defaults and delinquencies in the underlying collateral than if we 
held the more subordinated classes. 
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The following table provides additional information on our RMBS prepayment exposure, by type and vintage: 

~~~~~c;==--=---=-~- -
CMO: 

Amortlud 

Co< I 

Unrr.~li%td 

Gain</ 
(Lones) 

As of SepttmMr 30, 1013 

rair 

Value 
Grou 

Dis.couut 
Gro:n 

Premium 

A•·nage 

Mortgagr 
Loab Rare 

Prepayment Speed 
Adjustmenr 

Three Months 
Ended 

Septembrr 30, 
2013 

Nine Modlhs 
Ended 

Septtmbor 30, 
2013 

-------··- ---- ____ _____________ _j 

c~~~o!J--_~~=----=~= $ __ - -Jio' -$~----~-o-~i:-$ ___ 38.7 ____ ~---- - ---~-'-'--- ~~~--=--~=-=~-~~----~3:9%-_j __ ~ --~-- =---~-~~=-- ~-: 
201l 117.1 (6.0) lll.l 3.4 (2.4) 3.6 

[=--2ou ~----~- --~-- ___ 2.:.6 _____ 2~ _____ _J-~--~~---~--jl~j--=~3~? ~---~----:-..=~~~(oX~~-~----- -~- ~- =(~~~ 
2010 429.2 29.0 458.2 12.6 (7.6) 4.5 0.1 (0.]) 

~--=- 20~ --=--=-~--- 222.2 17.1 239.3 -1.8----~-(i9)~= 4.9 -=·==-- --0:!~-~_:_:~ ~~-_y~~l 
2008 1.0 0.1 1.1 5.0 ----------- ------ -· --- ---------------------

[_ __ 20_0_1_ ___ ~------- 1.5 0.3 ---- -- . !J! ____ ___ --~- - ------ ---- __ 6._4 __ _ 
_., 

-- ----------- --- - ·- ····~-·-· · -·~ ·- __ , 
2006 2.3 0.1 2.4 6.6 

,--~--- ----- ---- ------------- ------- ------~-------------------

L 2oos _ . ____ 28.8 __ _ ____ ~_o_ 32.8 0.3 6.3 ~- J 
, ___ 20!J" and prior 393.5 49.2 442.7 11.0 (3.4) 6.2 ____ (:....0_.3;..) (0.1) 

lT~ta! ~_e_I9CMO ---- $ 1,512.4 s 97.1 $ 1,609.5 L --- 42.4 -~-----(1!'!)- ----~~- - ~ __ ___(0.2>__$ ____ -· .. J~.6)j 
Pa5sthrougb: ,-------- - --- - -----,- -- ------------- ----- - - ----- --- ---------~ ----~--------------

L __ ~o_l_l ___________ s ___ l~!c!__ __ s_· ___ Q]LJ __ t28.1 _ _!_ _____ 1.:..~--~----Jl_!>_ ______ 33~ --~ -----~=-- ·L - ! 
20lZ 74.3 (4.7) 69.6 (2.9) 3.4 

l~~~2-o. ~---~ ____ -.~-~~-= -i~~-- ______ · o_-1--- 14.2 ~-~ -~ -~---~~ ~~:~------~-I~L"-= ~~ ~-4_1=-=-=~ ___ -=--~ - ~ -:-:==J 
--- 2010_______ ___ ____ 140.5 3.6 144.1 ·-- · - __ 0~ !__ -------~~-- - - -~:2 __________ --------------~--~ 
____ .3_9~---- _ __ _____ __ 416 7 _____ _ ___ 1_51__~----- 432Jl_ __ __ - ·----- -- __ _ _ __ _(I_~) ____ - ------~:~------ · __ --~~ ______ __ ----= j 

2oos________ _ _____ 20.1 1.6 21.9 ______________ --~o_:~l __ ___ 6.~ _______ -__ -__ -_-_·_--- --- --------.---~ ------ ---__ -_____ __ -__ ___ -____ --__ __ -__ -___ ' __ 
[ __ ~~~----- ________ 15.5 1.2 --~---------__Q:!_ ____________ _(0~4) _____ 6.~ __ _ __ - 1 

2006 4.8 0.5 5.3 6.5 

[= j~os-~=-=:---=---==-~j_2 ----=-- o.6-_ ______ _ -_ - -~ _?:;_~=~~-=-~~~~-----· 5.2 -------~==-=-=~ ~- -- ---- --~~--: _1 

2004 and prior 36.6 3.4 40.0 0.5 (0.3) 5 _ 8 

[T;;~ Ag~~~'!~_sthr~~gh 859.8 17.9 877.7 2.5 (29.4) 5.1 0.1 0.1 I 
Total Agency RMBS $ 2,372.2 $ 115.0 $ 2,487.2 $ 44.9 $ (47.8) 4.9% $ (0.1) $ (0.5) 

-------- __ -__ -__ -__ -_-__ -__ -j 
,...---- ---------
Noo-Ag~>:_: _____ _ 

2013 -------- __zz_.9 __ s'---------'s __ z_z_.9_ s o.1 s __ _ ___ _ _ ______ 4.3% $ 0.1 

2008-2012 15.9 0.2 16.1 1.0 4.3 
· · -- . ----- - --- - - - - - - -- - - --- ---·------------ - - --- - -- ----

2001 13.9 1.4 15.3 3.9 5.8 -----zo-o6 _________ 608 - ___ 1_0 __ _ ----638 ____ 74 ___ (o_3_> ___ --:-s_-7 ______ ------- · - -- -- --- -- ----, 

---- -----~-- - -- --- --------------------- ___ ; _________ ~- . -- -- -------~--- . ---- -=--- ----- -- ______ ::-_) 
2005 

.: 2004 and prior 
~ -------- - -- - -
Total Non-Agency RMBS 
r-·--·--
~T~tai~S ---- $ 

74.5 1.8 76.3 3.2 5.6 

111.2 

299.2 

2,671.4 $ 

3.7 

10.1 

125.1 

----------- -- -- - -- -- -------~ ------------- - - ---, 
__ 1_14_.9_ 2.4 (0.1) 5 .8 0.1 - 1 

309.3 18.6 (0.4) 5. 5 0.2 0.1 

s 2,796.5 s 63.5 s (48.2> s.o% s 0.1 s (0.4> 1 

As of September 30, 2013, our RMBS bad gross unamortized premiums and discounts of $48.2 and $63. 5, respectively. Changes in prepayment 
speeds, which are based on prepayment activity of the underlying mortgages, may create volatility in our net investment income because they accelerate or 
decelerate our amortization of the unamortized premiums and discounts. The impact to net investment income is dependent on whether the securities are at a 
discount or premium and whether the prepayment speeds increase or decrease. 
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There are various U.S. government initia1ives through the Making Home Affordable program that may result in higher than expected prepayments on 
our RMBS portfolio, such as the Home Affordable Refinance Program that was extended to 2015. We continually monitor !he underlying collateral in our 
RMBS 10 manage our prepayment exposure. 

Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities (CMBS) 

The following table sets forth the fair value of our investment in CMBS and the percentage of total invested assets they represent : 

As of September 30,2013 

%of Total 
Fair Value Invested AJse ts 

As of December 31,2012 

Fair Value 
%of Total 

lo••osted AJsets 

1.1% $ 377.3 [' ~..\~ .. ~~;~~~=-~~ -- --~:.:: --~~: .. _~ . __________ , __ ...c$ ______ 28_7_.4_________ 1,4% J 
4.5 1,330,4 Non-Agency 1,248.7 4.8 

5.6o/. $ 1,707.7 ~tat ------=--=-=:~-:-=-~~--------·-s ____ l.;..,s_J_6._t_ -------- ____ ..;.... ________ 6_.2_%___; 

The following table sets forth the total fair value, and amortized cost of our non-agency CMBS by credit quality and vintage. There were 13 securities 
having a fair value of $325.5 and an amortized cost of $290.4 that were rated AAA by either S&P, Moody's or Fitch, that were given a lower rating by at 
least one olher agency. None of these securities were rated below investment grade by any of the three agencies. 

As of September 30,2013 

Highest Rating Ageoey Rating 

AAA AA A BBB 
BB and 

Below Total 
Total a5 or 

December 31,2012 

! 'viot.oge~----==· ~~-:-~-=--~~=-=-=:~~-~----------- ......... . ----------·-------~-~-~~---~------~~--~ 

2013 $ 111.0 $ $ $ $ $ 111.0 $ 
·-------------------~--------- ~---- -------

132.8 
- - . -· -- --- - -- ----·--- ------- - -- - -- -- - _ -- :~--~ -:·----- --~~~- ~:--;~:~-~-- ~---i3i.ii'. --~~-~~~~--~ i33.u [' 2012 

2011 118.5 118.5 118.7 

l ..... ~-~10--- .. .. . .............. _ ------ ....... ----·-----
2009 

1.0 
-------- -------~--------------------------- - - ... " 1 

.. . .... ..... ---- ---.. -- ..... . .. ........ .. ~:~......... ...JoU 

[-·::~~~8 .. =-·=:~~=~:~:· .. =::~ ---~~-~~~---~~--=~--~~---3~7·:~~ ·.-: .. ·-.;io ----·-· ··----:::~:-.·. :· .· .. : ... ·---- ----- .... __ --~- -ss.1· -· .. ....... ·.:.6-s.sj 
2007 350.3 350.3 387.6 

!._ .. ~o_o~-- .. ~-~----~:-:--.-_=-:=:-_-::-·.-.=-·~--~~-~--=-~-~~~~Q. ~--- ... ::-: ~--== .. -- --=-~~=-=--=-~-=~=]i.s_'_-_:==.:_~16~8 ·:_·:.=-::.~_ i!Qi.: 
2005 200.0 200.0 219.3 ----------------------- ----------- -- ----- ------------ -------- ~----- - --------------·------------~-----------, 

'_ 20~_a_ll<f_P~?_r _ _ ... --- .. . _ .. --·--- ..... __ 25.0 0.4 0.5 25.9 82.9 

_T~ta.Jamo~cost_ _ __ _ -- - - - - --------· $ 1,133.3 $ 19.4 $ 0.5 $ $ 11.8 $ 1,165.0 $ 1,182.3 

~---~•_t_unrealizedgajns(loss~)._ _____ ---- ___ _ __ 80.7 3.0 83.7 148.1 

Total fair value $ 1,214.0 $ 22.4 $ 0.5 $ $ 11.8 $ 1,248.7 $ 1,330.4 

As of September 30, 2013, OW' CMBS portfolio was highly concentrated in the most senior tranches, with 98.0% of our AAA-rated securities in the 
most senior tranche, based on amortized cost. The senior class has priority over the mezzanine and junior classes to all principal and interest cash flows and 
will not experience any loss of principal until both the entire mezzanine and junior tranches are written down to zero. 
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The foUowing tables set forth the amortized cost of our AAA non-agency CMBS by type and vintage: 

r~----- --------~- --· -·- --

~!~~~e-=-~-

Super 
Seolor 

2013 $ 85.4 $ 

~:__2012 - -~ - ·-------· 
2011 

2010 
2009 
2008 

120.7 

36.7 

3%.4 

Sup~r Stnlor 

Mezzaolne 

AJ of September JO, 2013 

Other 
SeD lor 

$ $ 25.6 

10.1 

Otb<r Structures 

$ 

Ocbn 
Sullordi.aate 

- -----· ---- -- . -- - -----~ - __ _,_ -- -- -------------------
118.5 

1.0 

3.9 

Other 

Tot10.IAAA 

S«uritits ar 

Amort:izo4 

Cost 

-----~-_____J 
$ s 111.0 

2.0 132.8 ! 

118.5 
--- -~ ----·-· .- ·--·--· - --. ----.. 

-- -·- -- -- . - . _I_~O_i 

------ - =--==~6.7-l 
____ 350.3 

-· -. ---- ... --·.: ___ ~~-~- ::~---= =-:.-~~--. -- ------ -~58.~] 
~-~~-------~ 

158.0 
124.7 20.8 54.5 200.0 

2004 and ~--o-r----~~-:-==·=----==========-_-_-_-_-_-_---------=---- ____ 2_5._0 ______ ·_ ----- ---~- -- -- ----i5:0"""1 
Total S 871.9 $ 20.8 $ $ 238.6 $ $ 2.0 $ 1,133.3 

As of Dttembn 31, 20Jl 

$ 841.7 $ 23.6 $ .;._ __ _ $ 272.2 $ 6.6 $ 2.0 ..;.,_ __ _ 1,146.1 

The weighted-average credit enhancement of our CMBS, adjusted to remove defeased loans, was 31.6% as of September 30, 2013. We believe this 
additional credit eobancement is significant, especiaUy in the event of a deep real estate downturn during which losses would be expected to increase 
substantially. 
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The following table provides additional information on our CMBS prepaymeot exposure by type and vintage: 

(-~-----~-~ , . . 
:A~!I!_ty: _ _ _ __ 

CMO: 

Amortized 

Cost 

Unrealized 

G:ains/ 
(Lo .... , 

As or September 30, 2013 

F•lr 
Value 

Grau 
Dlseount 

Gross 
Prtmium 

Avtrnge 
Mortgage 
Loan Rate 

Pnpayment Spefl! 

Adj~slroeot 

Three Months 
Ended 

September 30, 
2013 

Nine MoothJ 
Ended 

September 30, 
20l3 

---- -- ··-····---------__j 

~~ __ 2oJJ__=~=-- -- ---- --$- -------~-4~~-~--- __ _:o~~~=------~?-j==:!-__ -___ -__ ~= -~--I~~~JQ---8>-__ ·----=-= 4.&Y:-~=s-=.-_- -:- ---- -_T ____ - ~.J 

10.0 0.9 10.9 ------------- ·- ---~·1)_ --.- __ 5_.~---·---------
L.-~---------- _____ !_ld_ ________ Y:~------ 11.7 __ ________ -:::-: __ ----~----------=----=] 

2010 

2008 10.8 0.1 10.9 _______ _jO:~- __________ 6;5 __ . ... __ ·-- {0.1) (0.11 

[__]_oo_7 ___ _1~ _______ o.6 _____ rr:L -:-::. ________ (u)__ _______ 5~s _______________ <QJJ. _______ jQii} 
2006 15.1 15.1 (0.8) 6.0 (0.1) (0.1) 

[ __ _l~Ol_ ------ 154 ___ 15.4 ____ -=--=-~-:~~---(~}) =--=== __ 5 T-~--~==---~~-- _-_ (Q~1) ~--= ~ :_=j~=~J 
r--~2~004:.....can~d ~pn.:.,:·o~r _______ ___:6:..:.3_:.8;_ 5.4 69.2 (1.4) 7.0 _ _ (0.2) 

L_Total Agency __ Cc_M_O_;____ $ 207.7 $ 8.2 $ -~.?L. _ L ________ ___ -~ __ __(?c~--- __ ----.-~J.~----_! _________ j0.4)_ L ___ (~ 
Passtbrougb: 

~- -- ~005~~J3 ---==-~=-- s $ $ $ $ 
--------- --

2004 and prior 67.8 3.7 71.5 0.2 (1.8) 

f.-.I~~~~~en;~~~~~ ____ _ 67.8 3.7 71.5 0.2 (1.8) 75 - ! 

~~al CMBS Agency $ 275.5 $ 11.9 $ 287.4 s 0.2 $ (6.8) 6.4% $ (0.4> _s __ ..;.<o_.,.;..,> 

~O_!I:_~eocy_: __ _ -------------~---·-··-------~----------~-------------·-' 
2013 s 111.0 $ (3.1) $ 107.9 $ $ (3.0) 4.4% $ s 

---~--~-- ··- ---- -------------- --------~------------·-
- _ ---~E - _ __ _g2~ ____ (~_> ______ _13_~] ________ . ___________ _ ... _ ~~~) __ ___ ----~~ ____ ------------------------=-i 
. _____ 2_~1____ 118.5 4.5 -~-_133.o ______ . ____ . __ --~o·~L. _. _ ___ 5_:5 ··-- ___ _ ______ __ _ 

-. _2_9_\!) ____ ------- _______ _!Jl_ _________ ~·-- ---_1_,~ -~- -- ... -- ~-0_-~ - -- ------- --=--- --- ---- ~-- -- ~ j 
2009 

:· --------------~-----------------------~------ -- ---
2008 55.7 5.0 60.7 

··-·--·------· ---~--- -~-----·- - ------··· - - 1.1 (0.!) __ -·-- ------~_!__ ---- --- - ·- . ------- ·----=J 
2007 350.3 ---------------- . --. 

. 2006 169.8 

2005 

: ____ 2004 and prior ____ _ 

Tow CMBS Non-Ageo~y 
r·-~--------- ----- . 
,TotalCMBS $ 

Return on Equity lnvesrments 

200.0 ----------------
25.9 

1,165.0 

1,440.5 

16.1 216.1 4.0 5.4 (0.1) 
·--~-- ------~--~--------- --- ------ - . --·- ... ·- - ----

___ 1_.5 ___ _;_27_.4_ (1.1) 7.4 ---=-1 
83.7 1,248. 7 20.3 (8.2) 5. 5 0.1 0.1 

$ 95.6 $ 1,536.1 $ 20.5 s (15.0) 5.7% $ (0.3 1 s (0.61 I __ ...-,...,;.; 
Our equity and equity-like investments consist primarily of publicly traded common stock. We believe that these investments are suitable for funding 

certain long duration liabilities in our Income Annuities segment and, on a limited basis, in our surplus portfolio. The majority of these securities are recorded 
at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in net realized investment gains (losses). Most common stock securities were included in trading marketable 
equity securities on our consolidated balance sheets. During the third quarter 2013, new purchases of certain common stock securities were included in our 
available-for-sale marketable equity securities, which are recorded at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded in other comprehensive income. 

We also invest in real estate-related investments to enhance the funding of the long duration liabilities in our Income Arumities segment These 
investments primarily consist of investments in RE!Ts, which are included in trading marketable equity securities on our consolidated balance sheets. 
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The following table compares our total gross return on our common stock and real estate-related investments to the relevant benchmarks. The gross 
return includes both the impact of changes in fair value included in net realized gains or losses and dividend income included in net investment income. 

,Common _s:o~~ ___________________ _ 

S&P 500 Total Return Index 

For tht Three Months En dod 
September 30, 

1013 lOll 

5.7% 

5.2 

For the Nine Months Ended 
September 30, 

1013 1011 

9.8% 16.8 % 
6.3 19.8 

8.4"1~ 

16.4 
-----~ 

---- --- _________ ______] 

RElTs (4.4)% 0.3% (2.0)% 9.4% 
r-- -------.- ---- -------·-··- -· - ··--- ---------------

FTS"_)'IA~IT All Equities R£1TS lndex ___________ ----------~-------------~~-- _____ ~ __ 10.0 i 

Mortgage Loans 

0\lr mongage loan department originates commercial mongages and manages our existing commercial mongage Joan portfolio. We specialize in 
originating loans of$1.0 to $5.0, which are secured by first-mortgage liens on income-producing commercial real estate. All loans are underwritten consistently 
to our standards based on loan-to-value (LTV) ratios and debt service coverage ratios (DSCR). LTV ratios and DSCRs are based on income and detailed 
market, prope-rty and borrower analyses using our long-term experience in commercial mongage lending. A large majority of our loans have personal guarantees 
and all loans are inspected and evaluated annually. We diversify our mortgage loans by geographic region, loan size and scheduled maturity. 

The following table presents selected information about the composition of our mortgage loan portfolio: 

As o( S~ptember 30, 2013 As of December 31, 2012 

~~~~rag~-~~~~e--~-~ --------··- --- ------------~---=~=-=-~~ s __ ---·-·- ---- ... ___ 2_:~--- s - ------- -· __ 2_:~ --
Largest loan balance 16.0 12.9 
r---·-- --- - --------------- . - - --·-------------- -~~ -----------~--·~---·- ------···- - ------· . - "\ 

~eight~~ge LTV ratio ------------------~--- ______ ------~ -----------~----- ~5~~~----·-- -· ____ _J_5.8o/ • . J 

Weighted average DSCR 1.81 l. 78 

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31,2012, 71.9% and 70.5%, respectively, of our mongage loans had an outstanding balance under $5.0. 

We continue to increase our invcstmcots in mortgage loans, as this strategy has resulted in increased net investment yields when compared to fixed 
maturity investments. We believe a disciplined increase in commercial mortgage.loan investments will help maintain the overall quality of our investment 
portfolio and obtain appropriate yields to match our policyholder liabilities. We originated $146.8 and $473.6 of mortgage loans during the three and nine 
months ended September 30, 2013, and expect to continue strong originations for the remainder of 2013. 

The following table presents selected information about our mortgage Joan originations: 

For the Nine Months t:aded For the Yur Eoded D..:ember 31, 
September 30, 2013 2012 

,Weighted -~~~~~~-~jy_;tio ~f lo~~ri~~~-~~-~:~~------ ___ :·_ ~~~- --~ ~ ====~=---·· 53.?7.!_ -______ ---·· _ _ ___ __ . _ ~4;~-~-J 
~~imiiJillTV ratio ofloans originated --~------ - ------ _ ____ _ . ---·---- -- _ 69.3 74.5 
;~eighcedavmg~OSCRofloansoriginated ------------------- __ _ ____ _____ - __ ____ ___ _!:E_~-=----=-===~=-- -1.89 J 
Minimum DSCR ofloans originated 0.97 1.04 

(weig_l!!:_ed_;_~~~g~pread over U.S. Treasuries o(loans originated--------~~-~~~-~- ~-~- =-~-=-=:· ·. _-_~l.:?~- _ - ~· ~~-=-===-=-- _].45% I 

We have maintained our disciplined underwriting approach as we increased our mortgage loan ponfolio. For loans originated in the nine months ended 
September 30, 2013, 35.3% had an LTV ratio of 50% or less, compared to 31.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012. For loans originated in the nine 
months tmded September 30,2013, 63.1% had a DSCR of 1.60 or more, compared to 71 .6% for the year ended December 31,20 12. 
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The following sections provide more information on the composition of our mortgage loan portfolio. On our consolidated balance sheets, mortgage loans 
are reported net of an allowance for losses, deferred loan origination costs, and unearned mortgage loan fees; however, the following tables exclude these items. 

Credit Quality 

We use the LTV rntio and DSCR as our primary metrics to assess mortgage loan quality. These factors are also considered in evaluation of our 
allowance for mortgage loan losses. For more information and further discussion of the allowance for mortgage loan losses, see Note 5 to our unaudited interim 
condensed consolidated financial statements. As of September 30, 2013, no loans were considered nonperforming. 

The LTV l"lltio compares the outstanding principal of the loan to the estimated fair value of the underlying property collateralizing the Joan. In the year of 
funding, LTV ratios are calculated using independent appraisals performed by Member of the Appraisal.lnstitute (MAl) designated appraisers. Subsequent to 
the year of funding, LTV ratios are updated annually using internal valuations based on property income and estimated market capitalization rates. Property 
income estimates are typically updated during the third quarter of each year. Market capitalization rates are updated during the first quarter based on 
geographic region, property type and economic climate. LTV ratios greater than l 00% indicate that the loan amount is greater than the collateral value. A 
smaller LTV ratio generally indicates a higher quality loan. 

The following table sets forth the LTV ratios for our mortgage loan portfolio: 

As or September 30, 2013 A<<>fD•••mber 31,2012 

Cul"}ing Carrying 
Value %of Total Value %of Total ----··- ·-·-- --~~~----~---~-----_..;,.;;,;;,;. ___ ____:..:....:..;_..:..:..:.:..:...._ ___ ___:.:..:...._ ____ __;_:..:...._:..:....__-: 

.~~·to:-'!'~~·-~t~l!.'------------------------ --- ---· .. ···- . ···--·--- --··---·-------. -----· 
<ora 50% _______ S ______ _l_~;~-------- 33.1% $ L007.:0 _________ ·--~~~~~-

·- 51%:._6~---. -·-- ·--- 1,063.! _______ --· _3_~:4 . --------~Q~,2 ___ - ... .. 22:3 __ 
61%-70% 

[_ 71%-75% 

~"!?_~! _______ ~·-····-- .. ·-· ·····-·-···-·- .------ $ 

The .following table sets forth the carrying value and weighted-average LTV ratios for our mortgage loan portfolio by year of origination: 

Carl"}illg 
Value 

As of September 30, 2013 

o/o of Total 
Volue 

Wel&bted 
Average 

LTV 
Carrying 

Value 

2007 105.7 3.1 57.4 119.0 

As of December 31,2012 

%of Total 
Value 

Welch ted 

Average 
LTV 

I 
·--·-~~-- ) 

62.3 --------·--··- ··-·-·-·-·· · · -·------ ·-------· ·-------· -·-·- .. ..... ·- -·--·------·-·----l :jo!>? __ ---~~~~= ---=~--- ______________ 7'?.~~--. _________ ~:• _______ . ______ _g.1_ __________ ~!._ .. __ ·····-----~-~ ·-··· _ ··- ____ ss:1 .. _; 
2005 53.0 1.6 58.5 60.0 1.9 60.6 

2004 and Jl.riOr __ 

Total $ 

114.3 

3,382.9 
3.4 

100.0% 
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37.3 153.6 s.o 39.3 l 
55.2% $ 3,101.2 
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100.0% 55.8% 



The DSCR compares the amount of rental income a property is generating to the amount of the mor1gage payments due on the property. DSCRs are 
calculated using the most current annual operating history for the collateral. The following table sets forth the DSCRs for our mortgage loan portfolio: 

As of September 30, 2013 

Carrying 
Value o/o of Total 

As of December 31 , lOll 

Carrying 
Value %of Total 

' J>!b~~':"iceCover~~~Ra~:_ ______ ~ .. --·--- --------- · ...... _____________ ............. ·--·---~--~- --~ --~- __ ·- ---· ----·------- --~ 

..... .>~~~-~~~ __ ~- __ . __ .. ________________________________ s ___ __ 1,987~---- __ ~:?~ _.!_ ______ 1._763.3 __ _ 56.9% 

'19.6- 1 . ~~o.-~ ).59 __ ...... . -· . -- -- ......... -- - ...... ----- ... ,. ___________ - --. 657.3 19.4 608.9 

1.20. 1.39 408.1 12.1 
. ~ ---~-------~-------,.. ------- -···-- --

1.00. 1.19 
~ -- --- ·- -· ·- --· ... --- ~---- ------ 212.9 6.3 

0.85.0.99 57.2 
~-- ·-···-· -- ··- ------- --- -------- --· ------ ·- ----- · .... 

~-~ ~~~-5--.- _·:----·---- -····--- . ------ .. --.. ------. 1.7 

1.8 60.4 

Total $ 3,382.9 100.0% 

405.4 13.1 
-·-- ----- ------- ··--- ~---~-----

21_3:~ .. .. ---------- - --~-- ' 
32.2 1.0 

-7i4 - --· --------- isl 
-:-----:---
$ 3,101.2 100.0% 

ru of September 30, 2013, loans with an aggregate carrying value of$ I 17.6 had a DSCR ofless than I .00. The average outstanding principal balance 
of these loans was $1 .8. 

Composition of Mortgage Loans 

The following table sets forth our investments in mortgage loans by geographic region: 

s 

As or Septembrr 30, 2013 

Carryiog 
Value 

131.4 
·------ ··· --

1,412.6 

3,382.9 

% ofTotal 

3.9 
--- ---- - - -- -- ----·-

41.7 

100.0% 

--- ---

$ 

As of December 31, 2012 

Carryiog 
Value 

142.0 
--- ·-----
1,279.4 

3,10\.2 

-----

%of 
Total 

4.6 
---- --------

41.2 ; 

100.0% 

The following table sets forth our investments in mortgage loans by property type: 

As or September 30, 2013 As of D~ember 31, 2012 

Carl'}in~ Carrying 
... _ ............ ----· _________________ v_lll:..:•:..:.• ______ .,..;,•_o_fT_ot_al ______ v_aJ_u_• _____ .......;o;..;.•.:of:...T.:..o:.;t;;;al _ __, 

-.. I 
'"' _ S~oypi_!'l~.c~t_ers and re1ail ., ___________________ ------~ _______ _ ~~:;;{ __ .. . _______ ---~~~~~~ ---~~~ ~-~·~:·~-~·-j~~}. ~--~- __ ~::~~] 
L --~!flee ~~~gs __ ~------·-· --------------- .... __ 

!odustria1 591.4 I 7.5 568.0 18.2 

. ___ M~~i:f~ly ... -~-- ~:~ ---~ :.·. ~----~ -- · ··· ---~ ·:~ --~~~~!-- --~: --~-~ ~-~-~4~2-- _- --~ -~~-~~-~~~---.3~--~~::-.~ ~~~ .. ~~ ~--~-4XJ 
Other 141~ ~2 12Q5 39 

~'[o~I, __ ........... ___ . 
-----·- -------------

$ 3,382.9 100.0% S 3,101.2 IOO.Oo/,[ ___ ......_ __ 
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Maturity Date of Mortgage Loans 

The following table sets fonh our investments in mortgage loans by contractual maturity date: 

As of s~prcrnbct Je. 2013 

Corrying 
Vo.lue %ofTotal 

As of Dffcrnber 31, 2012 

Corrying 
Value %ofTotal 

, 
l~~~~ t~-~-·tur:i~: ---- .. - - -----. - ------ - - --- --- ----- - - -~ --- - r 4··-- ·• ·-•- -- -~-· . . J 

Prior to their contractual maturity, the majority of our mortgage loans have' one or more specified rate resetting windows during which the loan typically 
can be prepaid without a fee. During these windows, we expect that a substantial portion of these loans will either be reset or refinanced at market terms, given 
the current low interest rate environment These Joan features are considered in our asset-liability management, and we align our expected mortgage loan cash 
inflows and duration with the amount and timing ofliability cash outflows. Additionally, our loan terms usually allow borrowers to prepay their mortgage loan 
prior to the stated maturity or outside specified rate resetting windows. Prepayments are driven by factors specific to the activities of our borrowers as well as 
the interest rate envirorunent. However, the vast majority of our mortgage loans contain yield maintenance prepayment provisions that we believe mitigate 
prepayments in a low interest rate environment 

Tnl!eslments in Limited Partnerships- Tax Credit Investments 

We invest in limited pannership interests related to tax credit investments. We amortize these investments over the period during which partnership 
losses are expected to be recognized. The amortization schedule for each investment is updated periodically as new information related to the amount and timing 
of losses is received 

Although these investments decrease our net investment income over time on a pre-tax basis, they provide us with significant tax benefits, which 
decrease our effective tax rate. The following table sets forth the impact of these investments on net income: 

----------------
•----~o~~n re~~~~-~ ~~~~vesbnents, net of taxes 

Realized losses related 10 laX cn:dit invesbnents, net of taxes ; -i~~~;;;;~------ ------------- ---- -----------
Impact to oer income 

For lbe ThrH Monlhs Ende-d 
September 30, 

2013 

for tile Nioe Mootbs Ended 
September 30, 

2011 a on zou _____________ ......;, ____ ----- __ ....;.....;..;...._ __ ___,___, _ ___, 

-------------- __ s _________ (3l_L ! ________ (~-QI. _s _ j~~~- ~ ______ _(10._8> _; 

.. - ___ ____ (~-~~-- -- -- -- (0.2) (3.1) · -------~-~~-
____ 1;_;,1_;,.8_ 9.5 30.8 24.6 

$ 6.4 $ 4.3 s 18.1 s 13.0 -----
The following table provides the future estimated impact to net income: 

Remainder of 20 13 
i . 2014 

2015 
: 2016 
I .... ~---- •--··-- ~· -

20 17 and ~9'ond 

!'~!ina!~ ~j)-~t lo !let income ___ ------------------------- ________ ·----

s 

Impact to Net 

lncomt 

7.1 

.. . 27.~_; 
19.5 

. :-.-::.~=--~:~ .. -.:.-::.=~-=----~=~~-----_-i~~( ; 
- ---- - - -_________ ____:6_;,.2~ 

s 78.5 
..... ---·- ----------

The tax credits from our investments in affordable housing partnerships are generally delivered in the first 1 0 years of the investment, with the largest 
portions provided in the middle years, while other tax credit investments provide benefits during the first year of the investment. We continue to evaluate 
opportunities for these investments. 
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Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Symetra conducts its opemrions through its opemting subsidiaries, and our liquidity requirements primarily have been and will continue to be met by 
funds from such subsidiaries. Dividends from its subsidiaries are Symetm's principal source of cash to pay dividends, fund the stock repurchase program 
and meet its obligations, including payments of principal and interest on notes payable and tax obligations. 

Historically, we have paid quarterly cash dividends on our common stock and warrants. We intend to continue to pay quarterly ~ash dividends to our 
stockholders. During the three months ended September 30, 2013, we declared and paid a cash dividend of $0.09 per corrunon share. The declaration and 
payment of future dividends to holders of our common stock will be at the discretion of our board of directors. See"- Dividends" below for further 
discussion. 

In February 2013, we began a stock repurchase program, authorized for up to 10.0 shares of Syrnetra's outstanding common stock. In May 2013, the 
authorization was increased to 16.0 shares. As of September 30, 2013, we had repurchased 7.0 shares for $93.4. Symetra has funded and plans to continue to 
fund this program mainly through dividends from its subsidiaries. Refer to Part II. Item 2- "Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds" for 
further information about the repurchase program. 

We actively manage our liquidity in light of changing market, economic and business conditions, and we believe that our liquidity levels are more !han 
adequate to cover our exposures, as evidenced by the following: 

As of September 30, 20 lJ we bad $23.4 billion of liquid assets, which includes cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, publicly traded 
faxed matwities and equity securities. 
While certain policy lapses and surrenders occur in the nonnal course of business, the low interest rate environment generally has resulted in lower 
than expected lapses of our fixed annuities, as policyholders have limited alternatives to seek a higher return on their funds. 
As of September 30,2013, we had the ability to borrow, on an unsecured basis, up to a maximum principal amount of$300.0 under a revolving line 
of credit arrangement. 
We continued to generate strong cash flows from operations, which grew by $60.6 to $806.5 for the nine months ended September 30,2013, from 
$745.9 for the nine months ended September 30,2012. 
As of September 30, 2013 our primary life insurance company, Symetra Life Insurance Company, had an estimated risk-based capital ratio of 
approximately 474%. This provides adequate capital levels for growth of our business. 

LUjuidily Requirements and Sources of Liquidity 

The liquidity requirements of Symetra 's insurance subsidiaries principally relate to the liabilities associated with their insurance and investment 
products, operating costs and expenses, the payment of dividends to the holding company, and payment of income taxes. liabilities arising from insurance 
and investment products include the payment of benefits, as well as cash payments in connection with policy and contract surrenders and withdmwals and 
policy loans. Historically, Symetra' s insurance subsidiaries have used cash flows from opemtions, cash flows from invested assets and sales of investment 
securities to fund their liquidity requirements. 

In managing the liquidity of our insurance operations, we consider the risk of policyholder and contract holder withdrawals of funds earlier than 
assumed when selecting assets to support these contractual obligations. We use surrender charges and other contract provisions to mitigate the extent, timing 
and profitability impact of such withdmwals. The following table sets forth liquidity characteristics of our general account policyholder liabilities, composed 
of annuity reserves, deposit liabilities and policy and contract claim liabilities, net of reinsurance recoverables: 
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As of Mplrmb.r 30, 20 IJ As ofDec~mbu 31, 20t2 

Amount %of Total Amount •t. of Total ,---- . ----~-------· ··-· . -------- ··------------------ _ __:_::....:...:....::..:..:.:::.__ ___ ..:..::::.::.::.;, __ ___ _;_;,;.,;..,;.;;;:;....--: 

,II~tq~t~_':l.~---- ___________________ ------------------------ ____ --------------- --- _ __ _ _ _______ j 
Suuctuml settlemeoiS & other SPlAs(l) $ 6,499.8 2~:6% --~----6-,~~ 28.2% 

[_ Dcf~~~ ~~tics with S-ycar p~yo~t ~;_~v~ii~~r_0/~S~ ~~---~ -:-::=·=~==:J~446~9~-~ -_ s._~ __________ __§54.1 -=-==~~ --=j~~J 
TraditionalimW'lncc(netofreinsUiaiJce)(3) -----------·· 170.7 _________ ~--- _ 175.0 0.7 

L_ __ Gro\l~~ealth&lifc(nctofrein~ce2(4)________ __ _ ______ __ 134.2 0.6 122.7 0.5 --l 

r Tot&lilliquidliabilitics ___ ---~~---------~3.8% _____ 7,537.6 32.2 

~~ha.!_~i-~~-d Liabilities ____ --------- __________________ --------- -- ____ . -------------- ~::_ _ -~-~ =-_-_::_~-~~-=--:J 
BOLJ(S) 4,857.8 19.9 4,748.3 20.3 

l __ _!?_e_fe.rre~-~uities with sumnder charJ!eS of_ 5% or higher -~~~: ~--~~~_5.~~4~~ --~-- ~ ~-=--=-2_2:5--~~-=- 6,076.~--~--=-----~Jl] 
Universal life with surm~der charges of5% or higher 285.9 1.2 285.3 1.2 '- ------ ..... -------------

L Tout som~~at liquid liabilities -------------------_ _!_0,647. 7 ____________ 4~._6_% . _ _ _ _ _!_!_~!_I.Ql_ ~--- - _______ -~~~- i 
Fully Liquid Uabilities 

[ 
r 

Deferred annu~ies wit!' ~~~nder charges of: _ 

_ 3%up to5% 

L __ _ Less than3% 

2,070.6 8.5 1,369.3 5.9 · -286.8' ___________ 1:2- -~------ 249_6 _________ Tt __ 
·- --------- -~-----------------------·-- --~-- --- ------

~-----·---~-------· -- --- ______ 2,671.5 10.9 2,642. 8 11.3 448.6 -- ---~:s-· ----44~· --- - ~1 

No swrender charges(6) 

-~-~!:!niversallife ~th sunen_~er cb~g~~!':_S~-~~ ~-~-·--------------·- __ _ - --- - . - ------ - -- ---- -- . I 
__ o~~~~----------- ________________________ __.:2:..:.6...;..8 ______ o:..:..2=-- 32.7 0.1 

, __ !otal futty liquid li•biti1ics 

Total(S) 

____________________________________ s.:..,s_o_4._3 ______ 2_2-'-'.6'-'-%;.... 4,742.1 

s 24,403.6 100.0% $ 23,389.9 ___ ;...__ 

20.3 

100.0% 

(1) These C<Jntmcts caanot be sUITCTldered. The bendits are specified in the contracts as fixed amounts, primarily to be paid over the next several decades. 
(2) This category includes annuity contncts with market value adjustment (MV A) features including certain FlA products. The MV A adjusts the value of the contract at 

surrender bas.ed on current in~er<ost mtes, subject to a guaranteed minimum ~C<Junt value ~pecified in the contract. In a liquidity crisis situation, we could invoke the five-yur 
payout pr.:.vision on certain annuity conlntcts without MV A features so that the eonttae1 v.alue with intertS1 is paid out ratably over five yeatS. 

(3) Represents trtlditionallife insunmce polioyholder liabilities, net ofreinsurane< recoverable•. There is no sunender value related to these contracts. 
(4) Represents inc~d but not reported claim liabilities, mainly related to our medical stop-less business. The sUJTender value on these contracts is generally zero but tbese 

liahilities art considered illiquid as the claims have not been reported to us and the precise timing and amount of tbe payment is unknown. 
(5) The biggest deterrent to surrender is the taxation on the gain within these contracts, which includes a I 0% non-deductible penalty tax. Banks can exchange certain of these 

contracts with other can:im, tax-free. However, a significant portion of this business does not qualify for this tax-free ueatment due to the employment status of the original 
covered ernployets and charges may be applicable. 

(6) Approximately half of the account value has been with us for many years, due to guarnnteed minimum interest rates of 4.0- 4.5~. that are significantly higher than those 
currently offered on new business. Given the current low interest rote environment, we do not expect significant changes in the persistency of this business. 

(7) Represents reported claim liabilities for BOLl, ln!ditional insurance, medico! stop-loss und group life. 
(8) Represents the sum of funds held under deposit contracts, fuwrc policy benefits and policy ond contrDct claims on the consolidated balance sheets, excluding other policyholder 

relote.d liobiliries and reinsunmce recoverables of $231.1 and $231.4 as of September 30, 2013 and December 31,2012. respectively. 

We are seeing a decline in oUT somewhat liquid liabilities and an increase in our fully liquid liabilities. This is primarily related to account values 
associated with our high level of fixed deferred annuity sales in 2009, as surrender charges on these policies are declining below 5%. Our fixed deferred 
annuity contracts impose surrender charges, which are typically highest in the year of contract issue and decrease to zero over a five- to seven-year period. We 
consider these contractual surrender charge provisions and the impact on expected policy lapses and surrenders in our asset and liability matching and rate 
crediting strategies. Generally, the current low interest rate environment bas resulted in lower than expected lapses of our fixed annuities. 

Liquid Assets 

Symetra's insurance subsidiaries maintain investment strategies intended to provide adequate funds to pay benefits without forced sales of investments. 
Products having liabilities with longer durations, such as certain life inSWllnce policies and structured settlement annuities, are matched with investments 
having similar estimated lives such as long-term fixed malllrities, mortgage loans and marketable equity securities. Shorter-term liabilities are matched with 
fixed maturities that have. short- and medium-terms. In addition, our insurnnce subsidiaries hold highly liquid, high quality, shorter-term investment securities 

and 
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other liquid investment-grade fixed maturities and cash equivalents to fund anticipated operating expenses, surrenders and withdrawals. 

We define liquid assets to include cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, publicly traded tilted maturities and public equity securities. As of 
September 30, 2013 and December 3 I, 2012, our insurance subsidiaries had liquid assets of $23.2 and $23.3 billion, respectively, and Symetra had liquid 
assets of $130.4 and $77 .6, respectively. The portion of total company liquid assets comprised of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments was 
$123.7 and S 136.7 as of September 30,2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. 

We consider attributes of the various categories of liquid assets (for example, type of asset and credit quality) in evaluating the adequacy of our 
insurance operations' liquidity under a variety of stress scenarios. We believe thu the liquidity profile of oUT assets is sufficient to satisfy liquidity 
requirements, including under foreseeable stress scenarios. 

Considering the size and liquidity profile of our investment portfolio, we believe that we have appropriately mitigated the risk of policyholder behavior 
varying from our projections. Our as set/liability management process takes into acco1111t the expected cash flows on investments and expected policyholder 
payments as well as the specific narure and risk profile of the liabilities. Historically, there has been limited variation between the expected cash flows on oUT 
investments and the actual payment of claims. 

DiviJends 

We declared and paid a quarterly dividend of $0.08 per common share during the first and second quarters of 2013 and $0.09 per common share 
during the third quarterof2013 for a total payout of $32.6. On NovemberS. 2013, we declared a quarterly dividend of $0.09 per common share to 
shareholders of record on November 19, 2013, for an approximate total of $10.6 to be paid on or about December 6, 2013. 

CllSh Flows 

The following table sets fonh a swnmary of our consolidated cash flows for the dates indicated: 

For the Nine Montlu £.11tltd September 30, 

1013 1012 

Operllting Activities 

Cash flows from our operating activities are primarily driven by tlle amount and timing of cash received for income on our investments, including 
dividends and interest, and premiums on our group insiiTlliiCe and tenn life insurance products, as well as the amo1111t and timing of cash disbursed for our 
payment of policyholder benefits and claims, underwriting and operating expenses and income taxes. 

Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 increased $60.6 over the same period in 2012. This increase 
was primarily the result of timing differences in the settlement of federal income tax liabilities, and higher net investment income from asset prepayments and 
an increase in average invested assets on strong fixed deferred annuity sales includina FlA. The increased cash inflows wtfe partially offset by higher 
commission and distribution-related payments associated with the strong ftxed deferred annuity sales, and an increase in paid claims in our Benefits division, 
which outpaced premium growth. 

Investing Activities 

Cash flows from our investing activities are primarily driven by the amount and timing of cash received from maturities and calls of fixed maturity 
securities, sales of investments and maturities of mortgage loans, as well as the amount and timing of cash disbursed for purchases of investments and 
funding of mortgage loan originations. Generally, the amount and timing of our purchases of investments correlate to sales of annuity and life insurance 
policies, which are recorded as cash inflows from fmancing activities. The amount and timing of cash inflows from investments generally correlate to 
amounts needed to fund policyholder obligations. 
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Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 increased $495.8 over the same period in 2012. This was primarily 
the result of an increase in purchases of fixed maturities, offset by lower mort&age loan originations and cash provided from calls on fiXed maturities, 
includin& prepayments. We focused on investing more of our uninvested cash in U.S. Treasuries during the third quarter 2013 to help increase investment 
yield until suitable investments are made. 

Fimmcing Activities 

Cash flows from our fmancing activities are primarily driven by the amount and timing of cash received from deposits into certain life insurance and 
annuity policies, as well as the amount and timing of cash disbursed to fund withdrawals from certain life insurance and annuity policies, dividend 
distributions to our stock and wammt holders and stock repurchase activity. 

Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30,2013 was $297.7, in comparison to cash used in financing 
activities of S 131 .7 during the same period in 2012. This change was driven by hi&}ler policyholder deposits, mainly on higher FIA sales, offset by shares 
repurchased as pan of the Company's common stock repurchase program. 

Item 3. QuantitJJtiv~ and Qualitative Disclosures about MtUket Risk 

Market risk is the risk of change in the value of financial instnunents as a result of absolute or relative changes in interest rates, foreign currency 
exchange rates, or equity or COJTlliiQdity prices. To varying deerees, the investment management activities supporting all of our products and services generate 
market risks. There have been no material changes in the nature of our market risk exposures from December 31, 2012, a description of which may be found 
in Part II, Item 7A - "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk" in our 2012 10-K. See Item lA- "Risk Factors" of Part I in our 2012 I O­
K for a discussion of how changes to the operating and investing markets may materially adversely affect our business and results of operations. 

Item 4. Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controh and Procedures 

We carried out an evaluation required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the" 1934 Act"), under the supervision and with the participation of our 
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined 
in Rule 13a-15(e) of the 1934 Act, as of September 30,2013. Based on this evaluation our principal executive officer and principal financial officer 
concluded that, as of September 30, 2013, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that infonnation required to 
be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the 1934 Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified 
in the SEC's rules and forms and to provide reasonable assurance that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our 
principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures . 

Limitations on Controls 

Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives as specified above. Management does 
not expect, however, that our disclosure controls and procedures wiD prevent or detect all errors or fraud. Any control system, no matter how well designed and 
open~ted, is based on certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute,.asSUiaDce that its objectives will be met. Further, no evaluation of 
controls can provide absolute assur.mce that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within 
the Company have been detected. 

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

There was no change in our internal control over financial reportin& during our most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably 
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 
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PART II-Other Information 
Item I. Legal Proceedings 

Disclosure concerning material legal proceedings can be found in Note I 0 to the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial 
statements under the caption "Litigation," which is incorporated here by this reference. 

Item lA. Risk Factors 

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, consideration should be given to the factors discussed in Part I, Item 1 A- "Risk Factors" in 
our 2012 1 0-K. If any of those factors were to occur, they could materially adveJSely affect our business, financial condition or future results and could cause 
acrual results to differ materially from those expressed in forward-looking statements in this report. There have been no material changes to the risk factors set 
forth in our 2012 10-Kas of September 30, 201J. 

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 

Purchases of equity securities by the issuer and affiliated purchasers 

Purchases of conunon stock made by or on behalf of the Company during the quarter ended September 30,2013 are set forth in whole shares below: 

(--~-- ·--
:retiod: 
\ ---- - ---~---

July I, 2013-July 31,2013 

c-i~~stj~3 -August 31,2013 

~ -·· September I, 2013 -September 30, 2(H 3 

{Total 

Total Numbrr 
ofSbarts 

Poreha .. d (I) 

171 s 

Average 
l'ri<r Paid 
Per Shore 

116 17.74 

287 s 17.88 ,;,.,.. __ _ 

Total Numb~r of Sharts 
Purchased as part or 
Publicly Anoouacod 
Plans or Progranu 

Maximum Numbtr (or 
Approximate Dollar Value) 

or Shares That may Yet 
Be Purchased Vader the 

Pl:aa.s or Programs 

9,047,734 

. -- ---===--=---~!047,7~ . .! 
9,047,734 

9-047,734 I 

(I) This includes restricted shares withheld to offset tax withholding obligations related to the vesting of restrittcd shares, and shan:s repurchased by the Company pwsuant to the 
stock Jepurchase program. 

On February 1, 2013, the board of directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to a total of 10.0 million shares of Symerra 's outstanding 
common stock. On May 21, 2013, the board of directors authorized the Company to repurchase an additional 6.0 million shares, for a total authorization of 
16.0 million shares of outstanding common stock. Under the stock repurchase program, purchases may be made from time to time in the open market, in 
accelerated stock buyback arrangements, in privately n<:gotiated ttansactions or otherwise. The program may be modified, extended or terminated by the board 
of directors at any time. 

During the three months ended September 30, 2013, the Company had no repurchase activity. The timing and amount of any stock repurchases will be 
determined by management based upon market conditions, regulatory considerations and other factors. Numerous factors could affect the timing and amount 
of any future repurchases under the stock repurchase program, including capital levels, our share price, potential opportunities for growth and acquisitions or 
other priorities for capital use. 
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Item 6. Exhibits 

Eshlblt 

~ 

10.1 

10.2 

10.3 

31.1 

31.2 

32.1 

32.2 

101 

* Filed herewith. 

Desrription 

Amendment dated September 30,2013 to the Agency Agreement dated as of September 26, 2006 among Symetra Life Insurance 
Company and Chase Insurance Agency, Inc. • 

Amendment dated September 23, 20 13 to the Agency Agreement dated as of September 26, 2006 among Symctra Life !nsuiance 
Company and Chase Insurance Agency, Inc. • t 
Amendment No. 2 dated September 30, 20 13 to Investment Management Agreement between White Mountains Advisors LLC and 
Symetra Financial Corporation together with Symetra Life Insurance Company and certain other Affiliated Companies, dated as of 
June I, 2011. • 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14{a} and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended* 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14{a) of the Securities Exchange Act, as amended* 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S. C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002* 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002* 

The following materials from Symetra Financial Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form I 0-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 
2013, formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated 
Statement of Income, (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss}, (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Changes 
in Stockholders' Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and (vi) the Condensed Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

t Confidential treatment has been requested for portions of this exhibil 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or IS( d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

SYMETRA FINANCIAL CORPORATION 

Date: Novcrnbe16, 2013 By: lsi Thomas M. Marra 

Name: Thomas M. Marra 
Tille: President and Chief Executive Officer 

Date: Novembe1 6, 2013 By: lsi Margaret A. Meister 

Name: Margaret A. Meister 

Title: Executive Vice President l!lld Chief Financial Officer 
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Amended Exhibit A- SLA Supplement 
Effective as of September 30, 2013 

Chase Insurance Agency I Chase Investment Services Corp 
ANNUITY CARRIER Service Level Requirements 

Business Model Requirements: 
Participation wilh !he NSCC 

0 Send daily COM files 
D Gross commission NSCC money settlement 
0 Send daily PVF (position and value files) and FAR {financial activity report) feeds 
(] Agent of Record change via ACAT/lFT 
D Agent Terminations via LNA 

Must record, store and make available BIN number as a unique contract identifier in all NSCC feeds 
Must accept agent license information from the National Producer Database in lieu of paper license copy 
Establish and maintain FTP file connectivity using Chase encryption standards. 

Exhibit 10.1 

Establish and maintain corporate deposit account(s) for accepting premium. Multiple accounts may be required to support multiple deposit account 
platfonns. 
Support EZ Forms sales process and release schedule 

[) Provide unlocked pdf versions of all forms 
[) Advanced notification of all product I form changes 
D Provide experienced testing resources to validate EZ Forms output within the timeframes provided 
0 Support and maintain internal and external wholesaling demonstration efforts 

Serve as an accountable project participant in all strategic initiatives (this will include M&A activity, system conversions, automation and efficiency 
initiatives, etc.) 
Create and conduct training sessions in multiple locations, examples include but arc not limited to the training of PRD, Operations, Product, etc. 
Report monthly performance results for defined Chase service level standards 
Adoption of compliance with any Regulation creations or changes 

Chase Representative contact requirements: 
Adhere to wholesaling rules of engagement 
Do not send any communications to the Reps. via US Postal mail, email, fax, etc. (copies of statements, confirms, etc.} 
Provide customized website access (all pages must be compliance approved and reflect our current product suite). This website must adhere to Chase 
authentication standards. 
Refer any bold harmless leners, rate negotiations, unapproved product solicitation, or other exception case approvals to the Issue Resolution Team, do 
not work directly \vith the reps. 
Refer any producer or fmn compensation questions to the Area Managers 
Do not accept new business directly 
Do not contact the Rep. to resolve any NIGO issues. Any new business NIGO issues will be reported to the Chase middle office via the NIGO 
spreadsheet; Chase will contact the rep for resolution. 
Accept inbound servicing calls from any active, licensed Rep. of CIA I CJSC, do no limit access of service infonnation to the Agent of Record on the 
accounl Active status is verified by using the ActiveAgentxJs file or carrier system of record minus T ermA gent. xis file. Must authenticate rep via 
acceptable standards. 
When responding to an inbound call from a Rep, you must be able to: 

Articulate Cbase specific product requirements 
(] Owner and annuitant must be the same (e"cept for non-natural owners) 
ll Jt Owners must be spousal 
ll Fixed annuity new business and addition age maximum = 85 (Carriers can accept additions directly from the clients in accordance with !he 

contract) 
[] Variable annuity new business and addition age maximuin = 80 (Carriers can accept additions directly from the clients in accordance with 

the prospectus) 
[) Specific rider restrictions as conununicated. 

Higb level understanding on Chase sales process 
[] Do not facilitate paper kit ordering, direct rep. to utilize EZ Forms system 
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For beneficiary changes, direct rep. to utilize EZ Fonns system or assist client directly with modifying their beneficiary information. 
(effective 2/1107} 

Customer contact requirements: 
0 All issued contracts are delivered directly to the client and will include a copy of the prospectus (where applicable) 
0 ADy service tranSaction NIGO wiD be resolved by contacting the client directly 
0 When corresponding to customers related to system or operations issue, Chase must be contacted prior to customer communication (where 

more than 25 clients are impacted) 
0 On an annual basis, communicate the current beneficiary designations (either incorporated on annual statements or an individual client 

communication) 

Chase notification requirements: 
Product filing status 
Product modifications 
Form modifications 
Customer market timing activity (warnings and restrictions) 
Customer complaints related to sales practice I rep activity 
NASD, SEC, DOl inquiries related to sales practice I rep activity 
Proactive notification of system or operations issues prior to customer notification. The following information will be pr9vided: 

0 Scope of issue 
0 List of affected clients and reps 
0 Draft of outgoing client communication piece with 13Tieted mail date 
D Root cause analysis along with corrective action plan 
0 Conservation plan 
0 Defined process to ensure the finn will not receive a chargeback for any cancellations that arise due to this issue 

Rate Information 
D Minimum of 3 business days prior to rate increase or decrease 
D Must maintain and conununicate rate and renewal rate history in the Chase fonnat for any product in the Chase block. 

Wholesaling activity reports 
Sales reports 

Operations requirements: 
Accept and issue all funded and unfunded business from FTP of faxed documents. The original I 035 Exchange I Trustee Transfer form will be sent 
via overnight mail to supplement the FTP file for unfunded business. · 
Accept retirement services and brokerage transfers as funded sales 
Do not accept or issue any new business that is not sent through the FTP feeds (directly from the rep) 
Process transaction requests within Chase service level standards 
Daily exchange and processing of the following reports: 

0 Outstanding Deposit Report (ODR) 
0 New Business NIGO 
0 Funding (for multiple source exchanges only on single premium contracts) 

Work with Chase to facilitate customer accommodations/exceptions that are within the boundaries of compliance and leg~~! guidelines. Accept hold 
harmless letters as the letter of authorization to transact such instructions. 
Accept inbound servicing calls from and provide information on any contract in the Chase book of business to Chase middle office Operations team 
(processing) and Broker Services (call center). Authenticate middle office personnel using an agreed upon password or other acceptable standard. 
Provide website access for home office employees to view the entire book of business 

0 Titling information 
0 Account type information 
0 Status 
0 Rate and balance 
0 Transaction history 
0 I 035 Exchange status 
0 Commission statements (secured by login for accounting resources only) 
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O~rations requirements (c:ontioued): 

Accept Agent of Record changes via electronic feed. Appoint reps at the point of an a&ent of record change, if they do not have an active appointment 
status. 
Accept common fonns 

0 Beneficiary Letter of Insttuction (2007 development) 
0 ACORD I 035 Exchange I Transfer 
0 NAIC State Replacement 
0 Annuiry Service Request (furure development) 
0 Senior Personal Consultation 
0 Agent Appointment 

Append payee name and address to customer transaction confiiTttations when withdrawals arc processed from annuity contracts effective June 2014. 

Fill:ed Aunultles: 
Credit interest as of the date of deposit, not the date of rcccipl 
Interest mtt is determined at the date of deposit 
Interest rate lock for unfunded transactions is set by the written date 

Variable Au•uides: 
Follow Chase requirements for mouey senlemeot which includes the S day letter process (allows Chase to work on &elting the transaction in good 
order and suitability approved by Day 10 versus Day 5) 
Must delivery quarterly and annual statements on CD I DVD 
Do not allow Reps. authority to conduct financial transactions on behalf of the client 
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Exhibit 10.2 
Portions marked [•u] have been omitted pursuant to a Confidential Treatment Request by Syrnetra Financial Corporation, this information has been 

filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

AMENDMENT TO SALES AGREEMENT 
ANNUITY BASE COMMISSION SCHEDULE 

.. \ ~ ....... . .. 'I 1'"-- -· -·.,..~·: ... , ~" • •• , ".r. ,.·---~.., ~ ~_,...,..~~~'\Wf"~·~ .. • ·~·~....,.....-:.·•!·r:...,.,~., ... ¥~""·,.-, ·W"Vf'··-.c-~-e'-:'·_..,.,~,....._ •. ~.lJ 

LSA # 
,, 

Payout 
J (mterna1 c~~miSS.IOn ~ 

Product Name !_::u~_Age Opt1ons .... ~ Purchase Payment . . _ ~-~ <:~.~"Li .. s,.~!.~"-,:~91'~: .. -.~:1~~-;.t_~ 
"' ~.A. • • • • .. '-c.- ..... ~ ~ ... , ~ ...: .. ,\.;/....._ - .,.~.~ ~ .... 
FIXED INCOME ANNUITlES 

Advantage Income ~ All All lr"l 603n 31112007 

FIXED DEFERRED ANNUITIES' 

Selects+ o.aD All $10,000 to $49,999.99 r'1 3018 101412010 

o.aD sso.ooo to $99,999.99 rl 
o.ao $100,000 and over r··, 
81-116 All $10,000 to $49,999.99 II 3018 101412010 

81-atl sso,ooo to $99,999.99 , ... I 

81-atl $1~0.000 end over 
I" I 

81~0 All $10,000 to $49,999.99 II 3018 101412010 

87.00 SSMOO to $99,999.99 I" I 
87·90 $1 00,000 and over 

,~1 

Selec:t7 0-80 All $10,000 to $49,999.99 1~1 7442 912312013 

0-80 sso.ooo to $99,999.99 II 
0-M $100.000 and over 

II 

81-atl ~~ $10,000 to $49,999.99 (-I 7442 912312013 

81~ sso.ooo to $99,999.99 r-1 
81~ $100,000 and over n 
87·90 All $10,000 1o $49,999.99 II 7442 912312013 

87·90 sso.ooo 1o $99,999.99 ("'I 
87·90 $100,000 and over 

I" I 

Edge7 o.aD All s 10,000 1o $49,999.99 II 7699c 2125a013 

{).8() S50.00{1 to $99,999.99 j'J 
G-80 5100,000 and over 

r-·J 

Refer to the Chargeback provisions of the Annuity Terms and Conditions. 

•ease oommissicn applies to initial and subsequent deposits. 

+ If the Contract owner replaces a Select 5 Contract to a new five year term at any ~me after the fifth oontract year, Company will pay Agency the same rates as the 
Base CommissiO'\ acoonding to new Issue Age. Upon replacement, Company wiD issue a new Contract to the Contract owner. 

THIS SCHECULE SUPERSEDES ANY PREVIOUS VERSION OF THE FIXED ANNUITY GRID. TMIS SCHEDULE MAY BE MODIFIED OR CANCELED BY 
COMPANY AT ANY 11ME BY PROVIDING WRJTTEN NOTICE. 

Chase nanNY Grid- Version 2 Symetra Life Insurance Company • 



Exhibit 10.3 

AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO TO INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This AMENDMENT Number TWO, dated as of September 30, 20 I 3 to the Investment Management Agreement ("Agreement") dated as of June 
I , 2011 originally made by and among WHITE MOUNTAINS ADVISORS LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the "Advisor"), and 
SYMETRA FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the "Client"). Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the 
meaning set forth in the Agreement. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, SYMETRA INVESTMENT SERVICES, INC is an Affiliated Company as defmed in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, effective September 30,2013, SYMETRA INVESTMENT SERVICES, 
INC. was sold to John Hancock Financial Network and shall no longer be treated as a party to the Investment Management Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 18 of the Investment Management Agreement, the Advisor desires to update Schedule B to the 

Investment Management Agreement to reflect the severance of SYMETRA INVESTMENT SERVICES, INC. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the 
Investment Management Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 

Scbedule 8 to the Investment Management Agreement is hereby updated to read in its entirety as set forth in Scheciule 8 of the Agreement. 



ADVISOR: 

WHITE MOUNTAINS 
ADVISORS LLC 

By: (sf Ma!k ].Plourde 

Print: Mark J. Plourde 

Title: CFO & Treasurer 

CLIENT: 

SYMETRA FINANCIAL 
CORPORATION 

By: lsi Margaret Mejster 
Print: Margaret Meister 

Title: CFO 
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AFFILIATED COMPANIES: 

SYMETRA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 
SYMETRA NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

By: /s/ Margaret Meister 

Print: Margaret A. Meister 
Title: Executive Vice President 

Chief Financial Officer 

FIRST SYMETRA NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF .NEW YORK 

By: /s/ Margaret Meister 

Print: Margaret A. Meister 
Title: Executive Vice President. 

Chief Financial Officer 

TIF INVEST m, LLC 

By: lsi Margaret Meister 

Print: Margaret A. Meister 
Title: President 
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SCHEDULE B AFFILIATED COMPANIES 

Symetra Life Insurance Company 
Symetra National Life Insurance Company 
First Symetra National Life Insurance Company of New York 
T1F Invest Ill, LLC 
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATION 

I. Thomas M. Marra, certify that: 

I. I have reviewed this quaJterly report on Form I O·Q of Symetra Financial Corporation (the "registtant"); 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial infonnation included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange 
Act Rules l3a-IS(e) and 15d-IS(e)) and internal control over fmancial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d·l S(t)) for the 
registrant arid have: 

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occuned during the registrant's most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

S. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation ofintcrnal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
l.il<.ely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; apd 

b. A!Jy fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control 
over financial reporting. 

Date: November 6, 20 13 By: lsi Thomas M. Marra 
Thomas M. MIUT1I 

Pr.,idont and CMel Encvtivt Oflitor 



Exhibit 31.2 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Margaret A. Meister, certify that: 

I. I have reviewed this quarterly .-ePon on Form I 0-Q of Symetra Financial Corporation (the "registrant .. ); 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the 
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this rcpcin; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial infonnation included in this report. fairly present in all material respects the 
financial condition. results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in !his report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange . 
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over fmancial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{t) and 15d-15(t)) for the 
registrant and have: 

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused sucb disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision. to 
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those 
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external plllJlOSes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in !his report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d. disclosed in !his report any change in the registrant's internal control over fmancial reponing that occurred during the registrant' s most recent 
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repon) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to 
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of·intemal control over financial reporting, to the 
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably 
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and repon fmancial information; and 

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control 
over financial reporting. 

Date: November 6, 2013 By: Is/ Margaret A. Meister 
Margaret A. M~ls1er 

Executive VIce Presldtllt and Cbitf Financial Offlctr 



Certification Pursuant to Section IJSO of Chapter 63 
of Title 18 of the United States Code 

Exhibit 32.1 

I, Thomas M. Marra. Chief Executive Officer of Symetra Financial Corporation, certify that (i) the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30.2013 
fully complies with the requirements of Section I 3(a) or IS( d) of the Secwities Exchange Act of 1934; and (ii) the information contained in the Form 10-Q for 
the quarter ended September 30, 20 I 3 fair! y presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Symetra Financial 
Corporation. 

Date: November 6, 20 13 By: lsi Thomas M. Marra 

Thomas M. Marn 
I'TesldeDI aDd Chief Eneatlve Officer 



Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 
of Title 18 ofthe United States Code 

Exbibit 32.2 

I, Margaret A. Meister, Chief Financial Officer ofSymetra Financial Corporation, certify that (i) the Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 
2013 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (ii) the information contained in the Form I 0-
Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2013 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Symetra Financial 
Corporation. 

Date: November 6, 2013 By: lsi Margaret A. Meister 
MarJ:~Lr<l A. Meister 

Encudve Vic• Prooid•nt and Chid Fimandal Officer 
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Cus~ody Agreements 



Applicant Name: Symetra Life Insurance Company NAIC No. 68608 
FEIN: 91-0742147 

Item II -Custody Agreements 

Excluding items shown in the Schedules of Special and Other Deposits in the applicant's Annual Statement, real 
estate, mortgage loans and investments held physically in the Applicant's offices,·vaults or safety deposit boxes, all 
stocks, bonds and other securities, are held pursuant to a custodial agreement with JP Morgan Chase. The written 
agreement includes appropriate safeguards for the handling of the securities, ·in accordance with those specified in 
the NAIC Financial Examiners' Handbook. 

Prior to effectuating the redomestication, the applicant will engage with JP Morgan Chase to amend its in-force 
custody agreements to comply with Iowa Code § 5.11.8 and implementing regulations. 

' 
Copies of the applicant's in-force custody agreements are included with Item II: 

Exhibit II-A 

Exhibit 11-B 

Domestic Custody Agreement between Symetra Life Insurance Company and JPMorgan Chase 
Bank, N.A., dated 
December 22, 20 I I 

Global Custody Rider between Symetra Life Insurance Company and JPMorgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., dated 
Dec~mber 22, 2011 
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